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CORPORATE PROFILE

RN

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED (“Hopson Development”)
was founded in 1992, and its shares have been listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 1998 (Stock
code: 00754). Hopson Development is a major property group that
specializes in the development of medium-to high-end large-scale
residential properties. In terms of land bank, it is one of the largest
property developers in the People’s Republic of China.

Since 1995, Hopson Development has started to establish its brand on
a nationwide scale through deploying appropriate corporate strategy
and business model. The principal focus is on three Core Economic
Zones, namely Pearl River Delta, Huanbohai Area and Yangtze River
Delta, with Guangzhou, Beijing, Tianjin and Shanghai as the core
cities. In Guangzhou and Beijing, the brands such as “Regal Riviera”,
“Gallopade” and “Fairview"” have been established to cover a range of
businesses including product designs, customer services and facilities;
and to accommodate different community cultures and different
operating models. Each property project is featured with a unique
theme to demonstrate the strength of our corporate branding. Strong
brand recognition at project level enhances the positioning and

marketability of the corporate branding.

Major investments were made in the first-tier cities such as

Guangzhou, Beijing, Tianjin and Shanghai over the past few years.
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CORPORATE AND LISTING INFORMATION
TE& ETER

Corporate Information EEHR

Board of Directors EEE

Executive Directors HITEF

CHU Mang Yee (Chairman) KA (/%)

XIANG Bin (Deputy Chairman) ' OW (Bl )

ZHAO Hai (Deputy Chairman) iiz JiEl (s?’/fi:‘f)

(Resigned on 31st December 2008) (RZFFENF+ZAH

=+ —HEE)

CHEN Chang Ying (Appointed as Chief Executive Officer R~ & (R=ZFEENF—A++H

on 17th January 2008) EZERTHAEHR)

AU Wai Kin X8 &

XIAO Yan Xia (Resigned on 19th May 2008) mARE (RZFZENFERA
+ /BB E)

XUE Hu B IR

ZHAO Ming Feng (Appointed on 19th May 2008) HAE (R=ZFFNFAHA
T EEZF)

Non-executive Director FHITEE

SHAFRAN, Steven (Resigned on 19th May 2008) 1t 2% &) (R=ZFEZENFAA
+ A E)

Independent Non-executive Directors BIIHBITEFE

YUEN Pak Yiu, Philip B dt 12

LEE Tsung Hei, David THEE

WONG Shing Kay, Oliver mACHE

Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee BERRFMES

YUEN Pak Yiu, Philip (Chairman) B 4k 12 (/)

LEE Tsung Hei, David FHEE

WONG Shing Kay, Oliver =HAE

Qualified Accountant

LEE Bun Ching, Terence

Company Secretary

MOK Wai Kun, Barbara, solicitor

Authorized Representatives

AU Wai Kin
XIAO Yan Xia (Resigned on 19th May 2008)
ZHAO Ming Feng (Appointed on 19th May 2008)

Independent Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
22nd Floor

Prince’s Building

Central

Hong Kong
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CORPORATE AND LISTING INFORMATION

XN EHER

Legal Advisor

As to Hong Kong Law

Jones Day

29th Floor, Edinburgh Tower

The Landmark, 15 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

Principal Bankers

Agricultural Bank of China

Bank of China

Bank of Communications

Bank of East Asia

China CITIC Bank

China Construction Bank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia)
Standard Chartered Bank

Branch Share Registrars In Hong Kong

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
46th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

Registered Office

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda

Principal Office

Suites 3305-09, 33rd Floor, Jardine House
1 Connaught Place

Central

Hong Kong

Representative Offices

Guangzhou - 16th Floor, South Tower
Zhujiang Investment Building
421 Zhujiang East Road
Zhujiang New City, Guangzhou

Beijing — Zhujiang Development Centre
23 Dawang Road West
Chaoyang District, Beijing

Shanghai — 18th Floor, Guangdong Development Bank Building
555 Xujiahui Road, Shanghai
Tianjin — No. 14 Dongchengnan Road

Baodi District, Tianjin
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CORPORATE AND LISTING

Shareholders’ Calendar

Register of Shareholders

Close of Register
11th June 2009 to 16th June 2009 (both days inclusive)

Annual General Meeting

16th June 2009

Dividends (Per Share)

Interim dividend HK9.51 cents
Paid on Friday, 28th November 2008

Proposed final dividend HK10.5 cents
Payable on Tuesday, 30th June 2009

Listing Information

Shares Listing

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Stock Code

00754

Guaranteed Senior Notes Listing

The Company’s 8.125% Guaranteed Senior Notes are listed on
The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited

USD Settled Zero Coupon Convertible Bonds

The Company’s zero coupon convertible bonds are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE
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Beijing Plaza
Royale Hotel
ERERREBE

Beijing Regal Court
ERHEIFR
Citta Eterna

BESER
Hopson
International
Garden
SEERTEE
Beijing Xinjingrun
Project

ERHFEER
Beijing Dongfang-
wenhua Project
ERRAXEEE
Beijing Desheng
Building
bR RS
Kylin Zone
B AL
Majugiao Project
BEmEE
Yuhe Project
FAEE

Tongzhou Yongshun

Project
BMKIEE B

Beijing Zhujiang
Century Property
Management
Limited
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Tianjin
K

Hyatt Regency
Jingjin City
SRS B I

Jingjin New Town
SURHE
Tianjin Hopson
International Tower
RESEEBRKRE

Tianjin Hopson In-

ternational Mansion
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Dalian Lushun Hopson
Regal Seashore
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Shanxi
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Shanxi Taiyuan
Tongye Project
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Qinhuangdao
Dibai Project
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Shanghai
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Hopson Town
BERRD
Shanghai Hopson
International Tower
LESEEBRAE
Hopson Golf Mansion
REBRALE
Sheshan Dongziyuan
RIWREE
Hopson Lantern Villa
SEMER
International Garden
BERRER
Hopson Dongjiao Villa
SERNEIE
Hopson Yuting Garden
REMER
Shanghai Zhongxian
International 292 Project
L EEIRR292E R
Haiyuntian Project
BEXEE

Hangzhou
Technology Digital
—  Plaza Project
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Hopson
— International City —
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Guangzhou Regal
Riviera Hotel

EMBOTH RBE

Gallopade Park
BRtE

Pleasant View Garden

BeEE

Huanan New City
3

Gallopade Park —
South Court
B
Regal Riviera
BRIFR
Regal Palace

RER
Yijing Huayuan
R 250
Guangzhou Hopson
International Tower
EMEEEBRAE
Yunshan Xijing
ZLER
Regal Villa
BRI
Junjing Bay
ERE

Guangzhou Jiahe
Commercial City
RN S
Hopson Yujing
Mid-level
BEER¥IL
Guangzhou Jiufo
Machao Project
BEMNBEHEE
Top Royal View
MER
Guangzhou
Nam Fong Garden
Project
EMmEAEERR

Guangdong Esteem
Property
Services Limited
RRERVERY
ARAR

AREEAR

Bl

Zhongshan Torch Project
LA SEERE
Zhongshan Dongkeng
Project
FILRGIRA
Zhongshan Rainbow
Project
HILRIEE

Ningbo j§§ Guangzhou §Zhongshan jj Huizhou

=M

Hushan Guoji Villa
ML ERR
Huizhou World
Island Project
Mt RBER
Huizhou Regal
Riviera Bay
TR
Hopson Interna-
tional New City
AR
Wangxiangying
Project
BREEER



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

B 7548 22

Revenues

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit for the year

Minority interests

Profit attributable to shareholders

Profit attributable to shareholders
(excluding the effect of revaluation
and excess of acquirer’s interest at
fair value over cost of acquisition)

Earnings per share
— Basic
— Diluted

Dividends per share

Net assets value per share

LON
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D EE R

S 3R B 1 0 A

A SR B A 0w B (R EHE A
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2B ERmR
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FRA T

— &KX

— #E

FREE
BRAEFE

HK$'000
FHET

3,973,184
816,146
(298,338)
517,808
(85,023)
432,785

432,785

HK43 cents {1l
HK43 cents 71l
HK9 cents il
HK$3.32 &7t

HK$'000
TAT

6,133,894
1,812,627
(611,446)
1,201,181
16,142
1,217,323

1,011,403

HK113 cents 7811l
HK113 cents 7811l
HK33.95 cents LI
HK$4.75 7T

HK$'000
THT

6,920,294
2,461,536
(837,358)
1,624,178
(70,426)
1,553,752

1,092,535

HK127 cents 711l
HK126 cents 71l
HK37.9 cents #1lll

HK$6.40 7T

HK$'000
FHET

11,130,643
5,177,451
(1,629,245)
3,548,206

(30,894)
3,517,312

1,993,451

HK254 cents 1Ll
HK249 cents j#1ll
HK41.9 cents j#1ll

HK$13.64 77T

2008
—BBN\F

HK$000
FiEx

10,774,624
3,861,762
(1,912,812)
1,948,950

14,774
1,963,724

1,736,159

HK133 cents &l
HK133 cents &1l
HK20.0 cents &4l

HK$15.33 7T

(HK$'000)
FHET
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9,000,000
6,000,000
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Chu Mang Yee K&K
Chairman E/&

The Group is one of the leading property developers in Mainland China in
terms of overall strengths. As a competent developer, we are equipped with
first-class capabilities of real estate operations, sophisticated corporate
governance structure, flexible operation mechanism, strong development and
marketing power and abilities in resources integration. Moving ahead, the Group
is committed to achieve steady growth in its results and reap satisfactory returns
for our shareholders.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHRE

The Group is one of the leading property developers in Mainland China
in terms of overall strengths. As a competent developer, we are
equipped with first-class capabilities of real estate operations,
sophisticated corporate governance structure, flexible operation
mechanism, strong development and marketing power and abilities in
resources integration. Moving ahead, the Group is committed to
achieve steady growth in its results and reap satisfactory returns for

our shareholders.

(1) Market Overview and Operating
Environment

(i) Nationwide

In 2008, China overcame numerous difficulties and the
national economy sustained stable and steady
development. Initial evaluation showed that the GDP was
RMB30,067 billion, increased by 9.0% from last year.
Excluding price factor, the disposable income per capita of
residents recorded an 8.4% growth. According to the
information of National Statistical Bureau, the balance of
National Foreign Exchange Reserve reached US$1,950

billion, jumped 27.3% from last year.

During the first half of 2008, the Central Government
implemented prudent fiscal policy and tight monetary
policy to prevent an overheated economy and inflation.
The Central Bank raised the capital adequacy ratio for 5
times to a historic high of 17.5%. In the second half of
2008, the Central Government introduced proactive fiscal
policy and relaxed its monetary policy to offset the impact
of global financial crisis and economic turmoil. Several
reductions on capital adequacy ratio were recorded and
interest rate was lowered for 5 consecutive times, with a
cumulative drop of 216 basis points. Growth and

development become the principle of the economic policy.

10 Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

REBRTEAMGEAE HREHME
BRAz— AE-RANBEEELR
NEN RENQAAAELEBREEN
EIEMS  BAMRETERITHEESD U
RERBEMEN BERKR AEH
HE - SPEREENBEER - ARE
12438 18 /9 O 3R]

(T EREREERER

(i) =E

2008 F B KX 7= fR & & &~ F| B
= HERECEABRBTIER
RER - VEZE 2FEER
4 E B EEH A RK300670
B EFEEIN B
RAHAZREBEANRERSLE
ZBEBREESI% - REBXK
BRETRER  BRINERE
BREEINGSEREETL BE
FHREERE27.3% °

2008F E¥F - AL E R
BARBEWR FRENFE
TERENVHBENRENE
BEE  RIISARESTFRE
BEELERENIS%HNEL TS -
2008F T¥4F - BrlaEike
7 £ 4 0 R BS BB I 8 B A
EHNTE PRBINFETT
BN BRBENEERERD
EMHWE  ZREREFEREE
CRITBEBHESKEE Rt &
B216EES - RIBK - (2%
B BEEBRAEEBE -



(1) Market Overview and Operating
Environment (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Nationwide (Continued)

In 2008, investments in real estate continue to grow
persistently. Information of National Statistical Bureau
revealed that nationwide investment in real estate
development totalled RMB3,058 billion, soared 20.9% on
a year-on-year basis. Following the feverish property
market in 2006 and 2007 where housing prices persisted
to soar, the real estate market entered a stage of
adjustment in 2008 where homebuyers were taking wait-
and-see attitude. The gross floor area of nationwide
commodity housing sold was 620 million square meters
(“sq.m."), representing a decrease of 19.7% from last year.
The adjustment of the property market in China was
intensified during the second half of 2008 with the
outburst of global financial crisis which badly affected the

PRC economy.

The Central Government adjusted its austerity measures
for property in accordance with the needs of overall
economic development by introducing a number of
favourable new policies to encourage spending on housing
markets. The measures included reduction of deed tax to
1% for first-time homebuyers, cutback of down payment
to 20%, provision of a maximum of 30% discount in
interest rates for loans, mortgage support for buyers
upgrading their homes, shortening of levy period of
business tax for second-hand housing from 5 years to 2
years, switch of levy method from levying on whole sum to
levying on price differences and etc. The series of measures
helped stabilising the property market.

Southern China

Guangzhou is the core of the Group’s business activities in
southern China and the Group also has business exposure
in neighbouring cities like Huadu, Nanhai, Huizhou, and
Zhongshan. The Group holds premium land reserve and
engages in property development in prime areas of these
cities. In 2008, approximately 49% of the Group’s revenue

was generated from southern China.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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(1) Market Overview and Operating
Environment (continued)

12

(ii)

(iii)

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

Southern China (Continued)

In 2008, GNP of Guangzhou posted an increase of 12.3%
to hit RMB821.582 billion over last year. GNP per capita
reached RMB81,233 while annual disposal income per
capita of urban residents was RMB25,317. Guangzhou
ranked third among other major cities in the PRC in terms
of aggregate economic output and managed to witness

the momentum for economic growth.

In 2008, average transaction price of residential property in
prosperous districts such as Guangzhou old city district and
Zhujiang New Town remained at the level of over
RMB10,000 per sq.m. The selling price of the Group’s
projects was regarded as the benchmark among various

districts in Guangzhou.

Having experienced speedy development in the past 30
years since its reform and opening, Guangzhou was
equipped with vast resources and extensive development
experience. It possesses a relatively sophisticated
mechanism of market operation and shows great
improvement in its ability to counteract various risks. As
the host city of the 16th Asian Games in 2010, Guangzhou
will benefit from this historical event which will not only
enhance its reputation in the world, but also improve its
urban outlook and bring tremendous social and economic
advantages. We therefore believe that after a short period
of adjustment, the property market in southern China will
develop in a steady and healthy manner in the long run

with Guangzhou as the leading city.

Northern China

The current strategy of the Group in northern China is to
consider Beijing as its core, with both cities of Beijing and
Tianjin as the central development zones that spread to
the Huanbohai Economic Zone. In 2008, around 38% of

the Group's revenue was from northern China.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHRE

(1) Market Overview and Operating (T EMEREERIE &)

Environment (continued)

(iii) Northern China (Continued) (i) FEEE (£)

The 2009 Government Working Report of the Beijing
Municipal Government pointed out that GDP of Beijing
rose 9% from last year to reach RMB1,048.8 billion in
2008. GDP per capita exceeded US$9,000 and disposable
income per capita for urban residents hit RMB24,725,
representing a growth of 7%. The overall national

economy grew at a rapid pace.

In 2008, transaction price of property in Beijing grew by
9.5% from 2007, of which the price of new dwellings rose
by 11.9% where the growth rate has recorded a
slowdown. Investment sentiment in property development
has been weakened in the second quarter of 2008. The
expansion of new GFA for development of commodity
property slowed down. Both the growth rate of GFA under
construction and completed GFA recorded a drop as

compared with the same period last year.

As the nation’s capital city, a cosmopolitan and a renowned
historical and cultural city, Beijing has attracted talents
from various sectors which push up demand for diverse
types of real estate in Beijing. In the fourth quarter of
2008, average selling price of property posed a decrease.
However, the price drop was seen mainly in non-core
districts such as suburban areas while price in core urban
areas remained strong. The property price of the Group's
projects still remains the benchmark of the district. In the
short run, the announced measures on interest rate
reduction, tax concession and credit support for developers
are beneficial to avoidance of property price fluctuation.
The demand for property in Beijing is expected to register

stable growth in the long run.
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(1) Market Overview and Operating
Environment (continued)

14

(iii) Northern China (Continued)

(iv)

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

As an important city in the Huanbohai region, Tianjin will
benefit from the development of the area where the Binhai
New District in Tianjin was chosen by the Central
Government as the major development zone. Significant
development is expected in the years to come. The
opening of Beijing-Tianjin Intercity Railway will facilitate
the economic activities between the two cities and catalyze
regional development in the property markets of Beijing

and Tianjin.

We believe the real estate market in northern China, in
particular the Beijing market, will show stable and healthy
development in 2009.

Eastern China

The Group regarded the Yangtze River Delta Economic
Zone as future profit centres where Shanghai is in the
centre with Ningbo and Hangzhou as neighbouring cities.
In 2008, about 13% of the Group's revenue was generated
from eastern China.

Figures from the Shanghai Statistics Website reflected that
GNP of Shanghai was RMB1,369.815 billion, rose 9.7%
from last year. GNP per capita was RMB88,745 and
disposable income per capita of urban household was
RMB26,675, up 12.9% from last year. Shanghai is
characterized by its export-oriented economy which is

driven by investment.

(T EHMERKLEIRE »)

(i) EdEE (&)

(iv)
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ERwE

(1) Market Overview and Operating (M ERERKLERE (@)
Environment (continued)

(iv) Eastern China (Continued) (iv) EREE (&)
Although transaction volume of residential property in 2008F FEEERZHERL
Shanghai dropped in 2008, various policies implemented 7%  2008F F M FEH HE
in the fourth quarter of 2008 had restored market BHRESMESELAEMREHR -
confidence. The World Expo to be held in Shanghai in BE2010F Bttt A E g
2010 will generate economic benefits and win worldwide A ESEREEME - A
recognition for Shanghai. Shanghai will continue to play its FEMEBEMEE  HERRE
leading role in economic development in eastern China. WA IERGE —FHE -
Through this round of consolidation, the real estate market EHRIYEHETIS LB AR
of eastern China will be revitalised following the economic FE - BEEELENITEE
recovery. BRNER -
(2) Prospects of the PRC Property Sector (DOFEEMEITEDN
BRAI=
Looking ahead, the global and domestic economy is expected to B EE20094F  BBR & B A7 2% R
face fluctuations and uncertainties in 2009. China may take the HENTEEMTIEERAEZRAK
lead for economic recovery as a result of favourable policies and % BERZELERXELER
the strong support from the Central Government, coupled with BOSTHENETNEMNKR —RAAE
the positive impact of measures which stimulate domestic FRBEARNTMERELETFEER
demand and facilitate economic growth. After numerous MEBREmBEEL  EXRBZE
challenges and substantial adjustment, the property sector will WER - PEBR R ELLE
return to a stage of steady development, amid an operating Bk - BHETEBRKS T
environment which undergoes adjustment and gradual recovery. CMMEBEEZTAMNER  BEX

BRZEEARABTORE - @
BETRDEERBERBRER
SRR ELE
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Jingjin New Town in Tianjin
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(2) Prospects of the PRC Property Sector

16

(Continued)

In the short run, the prime mission of China is to sustain growth.
To achieve this goal, the Central Government has introduced
timely adjustment in its measures regarding property sector in
the area of credit, monetary and taxation. The Government
Working Report in March 2009 revealed that a more proactive
approach will be adopted in its policy to restore market
confidence and stabilize investment in property in order to boost
the real estate sector. Through the execution of credit, taxation
and other measures to encourage spending on housing for living
and upgrading purposes, it helps facilitate the development of
real estate market in a healthy and steady manner. Different
regions in China have formulated respective policies targeting its
property market. In Guangdong, for example, the local
government has introduced 15 guidelines to promote the steady
growth of its economy including favourable measures for
developers, such as extension of deadline for land premium
payment and credit support for developers from commercial
banks.

The above policies will gradually take effect. In the beginning of
2009, we are seeing signs of rebound in different markets.
Transaction volumes in cities like Beijing, Shanghai and
Guangzhou have shown upward trends after Chinese New Year.
It is expected that the various favourable policies launched by the
Central Government will boost the real estate market to pick up

its steady development.

As the largest emerging economy in the world, the PRC’s
galloping economy has provided its people with wealth and
higher living standard. Urbanization further facilitates the
demand for quality homes and boosts the property market. The
middle and long-term outlook of property market in the PRC is
promising with tremendous potential.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008
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(3) Prospects of the Group

The Group had already foreseen in 2007 the upcoming market
adjustment and corresponding measures were implemented to
prepare for the change. The Group has optimized its operation
model and decision-making mechanism.

The Group will persist to maintain a stable business operation for
steady growth. The Group strives to upgrade its management
level and boost its property sales to improve liquidity and
strengthen its ability in risk management in light of the ever-
changing market environment. The Group will continue to adopt
a prudent principle in land bank acquisition and sharpen its focus
on prosperous cities to fulfill the development needs. Customer
recognition will be achieved by strenuous efforts in upgrading
product quality and service standards. Leveraging on its existing
solid business operation, the Group will explore every business
opportunities to reap satisfactory returns for the shareholders.

Modify operation model in pursuit of production
improvement

The ever-changing economic environment and property market
in China required a higher standard in business operation. Since
2008, the Group strengthened the operational management by
its headquarters. The Group will take a further step in 2009 to
simplify management flow and upgrade decision-making
standard for improving quality and efficiency. It is expected to
reinforce the Group's capability in matching to the changing
economic condition.

The Group will look to improve efficiency in production through
optimized operation model and cooperation among different
operation divisions.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

E RS

EEBzZARRE

£ B 722007 FF 2 T8 B BI A8 B 2K &Y
MEHE WHETHEYR Y
SEERBEXAMARBRETTE
—SHEI -

AEBEREEFTRELENR
8 REFERTER - BB TEH
ﬁD?ﬁ BRI & EE KA
BETBHEERMESEL  NREE

FEV ’ iﬁ@ﬁéﬁ%/m@”f{ %Elﬂﬁﬁi%
mEREE S BREFIE B &
%ﬁ’l@;imigbuitmﬁﬁﬁ CEmFEAT

iﬂﬁﬁ?ﬁrﬂéﬁuﬁu%ﬁﬂﬁﬁ%
7J</‘§ BEPHREAMEBE - &
%ﬁ;%%ﬁ’]%m PR L=
e BERSBERREHEZEBLORD
ERER

REEEEX  BELEBR

BAEERRARITEERLE &
THEERLEERHETERER &
[ #£2008 & 7 26 & ™ A0 5k & E &
DBE’JM FNE - SERE T MR
BER HEREERRE  RBeREK
G2 HRERAETEREEBRE ¢
BAEBEHKBETL RS

BEETEERAEL  HELE
REREROBE  AEENEE
MG — ST -

Guangzhou Regal Riviera Hotel
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(3) Prospects of the Group (continued)

Faster property sales for better liquidity and
risk management

With a sound property portfolio and projects in 2009, together
with the Group's existing competitive edges such as its high-
quality projects, strong sales capacity, optimum pricing strategy
and fast sales pace, the Group endeavours to achieve a steady
growth in turnover. The Group expects to improve its liquidity
and its ability in risk management so as to ensure a safe and

solid operation and earn good profit for the Group.

Prudent and moderate land bank strategy

The Group will adopt a prudent principle in land bank acquisition
and acquire land with great potential and prospects in a
moderate manner to meet the development needs for the next
three to five years. The Group will sharpen its focus on
prosperous areas in first-tier cities while also consider second-tier
and third-tier cities where suitable land is available.

Enhance product quality and service standards

Sound brand image and customer loyalty can only be built by
strenuous efforts in upgrading product quality and service
standards. The Group will further invest in project design,
research and development and strengthen our construction
management in order to enhance our construction and project
quality. We strive to consolidate our market leading role by
developing high-end and stylish projects for a diversified product
mix. For property management service, the Group will enhance
service quality by upgrading the standard of our property
management company to provide premium and comprehensive

services to our clients.

CHU MANG YEE
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21st April 2009
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Chen Chang Ying R & #2

Chief Executive Officer 77iB 485

The Group has anticipated in 2007 the upcoming economic fluctuations
and adopted a stringent and prudent strategy in development. Through
modifying the operation model and simplifying the management flow, our
decision-making is efficient and we achieved a solid and healthy operation
with reasonable liquidity and sound profitability.

KﬁlﬁmwifﬁﬁﬁmﬁWT%%W%@*ﬁﬂ%%‘%ﬁ%%@
RRE-EHREY BBEEMLCEEEN  BEANRE RSAROIMBEEYR
%’EET%T%% REFTRENESHAERFEKFE -
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TTHAEERRS

The global financial turmoil in 2008 had led to numerous challenges
and we witnessed tremendous fluctuations in both international and
domestic economy. The introduction of the series of measures by the
Central Government enabled the national economy to sustain a steady
development. The property sector experienced phased adjustments.
The Group has anticipated in 2007 the upcoming economic
fluctuations and adopted a stringent and prudent strategy in
development. Through modifying the operation model and simplifying
the management flow, our decision-making is efficient and we
achieved a solid and healthy operation with reasonable liquidity and
sound profitability.

With a prime portfolio of properties and project locations in 2008, the
Group leveraged on its quality projects and superb services to achieve
steady growth amid the business environment where the competitors
were cutting price. The Group managed to reap a turnover of over ten
billion Hong Kong dollar and roughly the same level as 2007.

(1) 2008 Results Overview

2008 Major results figures:

Results Figures

2008%F - HEIREEEKEERTMEA
ENFET BRENBANKELZE R
BlE(L BEERRBN— R ERKEE
MRET BREFERBRES T FIBH
ROES FHETEHLERETHERMLES
EORE - AEBEE2007 FRRBERM
BRATHEMER  RERKE  FEDH
HREE BEBEY BEELEER
X BERE EREAROMBMESEY
2 -EBRTRELE RETEEME
& FERFEKF -

2008F - EEEMGEBRI B S
MER - EMETEFHRIMEBRRE
B AEBBRUASRENOME 5
WRBEREBRETS  BEHRETAAKLEN
BEER REFEEZERABRREBE
HEARE2007FEHF -

(—) 2008 F X E M E

2008 F EXELEEEFEWT ¢

2007 Year-On-Year

Turnover EETON HK$ million
AEET
GFA Completed FRNERIEE  sqm.
during the year oK

—ETLF [t
10,775 11,131 -3%
1,707,739 1,115,837 +53%
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Dalian Lushun Hopson Regal Seashore
RNERIEES £ LR
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(2) Business Review

In the beginning of 2008, the Group adopted effective measures
in strengthening brand building, expanding marketing channels
and boosting property sales of major projects in prime locations.
The Group also strengthened its management of projects so as
to offset the adverse effects of suspension of construction during
the Olympic Games. Through our efforts and dedications, we
achieved a turnover of of HK$10,775 million and the delivered
GFA was 750,286 sgq.m. The Group was able to keep its sales

capability amid the downturn in market conditions.

TGRS

—
~

£ JE)E

2008 £ ¥ + A Al R HU R B £5 b
BlemEER mEHEEE - N
AEENE BRESERE EEH
BHEMHEE  REHBEENBEE
B onmTRESHMEEIEIRE
HEBROTFTE  BRRASH
FEIRLEEWA0775BB T BT
LI FE 5 750,286 F K o fE R %
B T35 AT R AR 5 BT BV B B R

jj o
Turnover EEWA
2008 Turnover by geographical locations: 2008 F @i &l D 2 EEWAER
wmr
2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
HK$ million Ratio (%) HK$ million Ratio (%)
BEEAT Lt 5l (%) BEBT EE 51(%)
Southern China 5 & 1 5,295 49 5,997 54
Northern China b [ 15 4,128 38 4,233 38
Eastern China EH (& 1,352 13 901 8
Total A& 10,775 100 11,131 100

Turnover by business segments:

BEBEDEERNOT :

2008
—mENF e

HK$ million Ratio (%) HK$ million Ratio (%)
Business Segment BBAERT L 51 (%) BEBTT Lt 51(%)
Property development LR gE 10,248 95 10,722 96

Property investment MERE 66 1 58
Property management YEER 306 3 235 2

Hotel operations B JE & 8 155 1 116
10,775 100 11,131 100

Revenue from property sales was HK$10,248 million and income
from property management was HK$306 million. Property
investment and hotel operations contributed HK$66 million and
HK$155 million to the Group's revenue respectively.

BERAREEERAF

Ha W EiEE WA R10248 18 %
T MEEBWRAR3GEET
MERERAREEEERASD
76,6008 T R 1.55EE T °
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(2) Business Review (continved) (D) XK B EE w)
Turnover (Continued) EEWA(E)
Turnover by major projects: RFEFEZHEBE 2EERAMT :

2008 2007
—EE2NF —EELF

HKS$ million Ratio (%) HK$ million Ratio (%)
BEABT L (%) BEBT b 51(%)

Beijing Hopson International Garden 1t & 4 BB 1E 1,756 16 1,224 11
Beijing Regal Court ERHEIFTR 1,611 15 1,057 9
Guangzhou Regal Riviera EMNKI®R 1,414 13 1,224 M
Pleasant View Garden iR 22 1,016 9 663 6
Hopson Town & 646 6 568 5
Yunshan Xijing ELESR 642 6 192 2
Huanan New City ZE 7 HT 553 5 542 5
Yijing Huayuan FBsED 419 4 2 —
Junjing Bay =& 389 4 — —
Hopson Lantern Villa A ERAE 313 3 332 3
Others Hh 2,016 19 5,327 48
Total & 10,775 100 11,131 100

Beijing Hopson International Garden
EREEBRE
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(2) Business Review (continued)

Contracted sales by major projects:

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT
THRBH RS

(D) EBFEEE 2

BREBZRBEDZ2ANHEEWT ¢

Beijing Regal Court EREIFR 1,125 11 1,886 17
Pleasant View Garden RER 699 6 825 7
Top Royal View b = 688 6 — —
Hopson Town B HE P FB 682 6 633 6
Guangzhou Regal Riviera  EM KL T 5 629 6 1,864 17
Yunshan Xijing ZELES 605 6 11 1
Hopson International City & 4= B B2 3, 596 6 — —
Gallopade Park — B =540

South Court 577 6 281 3
Hopson Lantern Villa ABERAE 406 4 334 3
Yijing Huayuan (==Y 373 4 54 —
Others H 2,378 23 4,985 46
Sub-total NEE 8,758 84 11,023 100
Beijing Dongfangwenhua  Jt ;3 5 X 2

Project 15 B 1,647 16 — —
Total A&t 10,405 100 11,023 100

-
ﬁ"
b b
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=
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— ==

Beijing Regal Court
ERHKIHR
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(2) Business Review (continved) (D) XK B EE w)
Project Completion Volume ITRERREIE
Project Completion in 2008 2008 F A 5T TH &
2007
—EELF
Area Ratio
[Tk £ 51(%)
sq.m.
75K
Southern China #E g [ 1 944,565 55 705,289 63
Northern China AL @ 19 394,995 23 338,337 30
Eastern China #E (S 15 368,179 22 72,211 7
Total A& 1,707,739 100 1,115,837 100

Beijing Xinjingrun Project
bR RIEE A
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(2) Business Review (continued)

Project Completion Volume (Continued)

Project Development Completion (Projected)

Name of Project

Beijing Regal Court ERKIFS

Citta Eterna BERE

Beijing Xinjingrun Project R REIER

Beijing Dongfangwenhua I RER XE
Project T8 H

Beijing Desheng Building I REBRE

Kylin Zone 2 3o

Majugiao Project HHisER

Yuhe Project EAIE B

Tongzhou Yongshun Project 3@ /1 7k JIETE B

Jingjin New Town TR

Tianjin Hopson International ~ K3#EA& £ BB AE
Tower

Tianjin Hopson International  KEALBE A S

Mansion

Dalian Lushun Hopson

RNEBIRIES £

Regal Seashore T® R
Shanxi Taiyuan Tongye Project L 78 A R $ 22 18 B
Qinhuangdao Dibai Project REBMFEIER
Hopson Town & HEF

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT

2009
Completed
Area
—2BRE
TIHEE
(sq.m.)
(FHK)
Total

At

77,481
58,316

140,514

22,768

55,609

TTHRARERE

(D) EKOREE 2)

ITRxTIE (&)

MR T T (FRET)
2010 2011 2012 and after
Completed Completed Completed
Area Area Area
2B B ZEBE-Z=-fR
ZIEE RZIEE UETIEE
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(F7HK) (F7HK) (FRK)
Total Total Total
A4t At a3t
— — 248,843
120,000 180,894 491,021
— 54,052 -
151,207 — —
— 121,457 388,231
10,000 — -
— — 334,197
139,156 139,000 2,886,892
— 134,550 —
— 137,120 —
45,803 62,535 342,115
— — 1,244,773
— — 764,523
62,409 149,873 —

BERAREEERL2T ZZENFFH 25
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(D) XK B EE w)

(2) Business Review (continued)

Project Completion Volume (Continued) IRTIE (&)

WERE T T (FAE) (B)

Project Development Completion (Projected) (Continued)

2009 2010 2011 2012 and after

Completed Completed Completed Completed

Area Area Area Area

—EBAE ZEB-F —BE-——fF ZB-ZFR

Name of Project TIEE TIEE EIEE UAZIEE

(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)

(F7K) (7 K) (7 K) (F7K)

Total Total Total Total

& &t & &t & &t B &t

Hopson Golf Mansion EEEBBRALSE — 58,123 — —

Sheshan Dongziyuan KRIEEE 32,298 74,141 — —

Hopson Lantern Villa & AR E 1,691 — — —

International Garden & EBEERIE 96,445 8,991 — —

Hopson Dongjiao Villa A HERB R E 62,125 — — —

Hopson Yuting Garden AT — 90,053 35,549 —

Shanghai Zhongxian B R — — — 353,300

International 292 Project 29218 H

Haiyuntian Project BEXRIEHE — 53,357 — —

Hangzhou Technology Digital  #71 M &} 5 175 — 92,418 — —
Plaza Project EiHTEE

Hopson International City A HE BB 30,988 105,279 106,820 194,973

Gallopade Park ®ETEE — — — 439,529

Pleasant View Garden ®r=2E — 79,971 16,091 556,382

Huanan New City I — — 22,347 1,929,906

Gallopade Park — South Court B 5 & 8 15,479 — 32,180 92,637

Regal Riviera HI®s 13,608 — 35,683 770,275

Yijing Huayuan FE = — — 57,802 —

Guangzhou Hopson EMNEEBEBEKRE 99,059 — — —

International Tower
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(2) Business Review (continued)

Project Completion Volume (Continued)

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT

Project Development Completion (Projected) (Continued)

TTHARERS

(D) EKOREE 2)

ITRxTIE (&)

MR T T (FAE) (8)

2009 2010 2011 2012 and after
Completed Completed Completed Completed
Area Area Area Area
—E2EENEF BB ZE2——F ZE-—-FR
ZIEE ZIEE TIEE NUETIEE
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(FHK) (F7HK) (F7K) (FRK)
Total Total Total Total
Name of Project & &t A Et A&t At
Yunshan Xijing ElLEs 29,599 — — —
Regal Villa el 17,776 20,302 59,791 —
Junjing Bay EgE 17,316 48,960 175,347 414,298
Guangzhou Jiahe &N 5= FO e — — — 238,918
Commercial City
Hopson Yujing Mid-level EEMEFWL — 23,000 30,000 331,510
Guangzhou Jiufo BEM NS HEE — — — 193,513
Machao Project
Top Royal View NEE & — — — 244,745
Guangzhou Nam Fong EIMmE A EEEE — — — 103,151
Garden Project
Zhongshan Torch Project FILAEIE B 27,195 19,990 31,852 121,548
Zhongshan Dongkeng FILRILIEB — — — 537,257
Project
Zhongshan Rainbow AL ST IR B — — — 479,499
Project
Hushan Guoji Villa L B R 116,166 75,380 — 1,251,799
Huizhou World Island BMNEREIEA — 29,113 123,395 2,082,119
Project
Huizhou Regal Riviera Bay B M 2% 24,500 189,154 — 329,717
Hopson International & BRI 8,158 30,462 88,698 884,128
New City
Wangxiangying Project &8 EIEA — — — 1,383,667
Hyatt Regency Jingjin City — F IR SN UE IS 90,290 — — —
Total B 1,338,229 1,527,269 1,795,036 19,633,466

BERAREEERLATE ZZENFFH 27
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(2) Business Review (continved) (D) XK EEE g

Land Bank T i fE B

With considerable prudence, the Group acquired new land in 2008 E - AEESBEMERER
2008 to meet development needs and to sustain continuing ERMREEEBRKFBEER &
growth. During the year, 3.2 million sq.m. of new land was BEEEEEFNRATEMNTHE
added to the Group’s land reserve (a gross floor area of 3.2 By I i 48 0 2008 F AR S B HE TS
million sg.m.). By the end of 2008, total land bank of the Group g T EAE3208 F AR (REER
was 25.66 million sq.m. 53208 F 7 K) © £2008F K &

B+ TR 52,5668 F 75K o

The following is the new land in 2008 that the acquisitions have 2008 F 72 Ak W B8 #7 18 £ 1 i s W
been completed: K

Group's Gross  Saleable
Name of Project interests Location of Project Floor Area Area
r& CIRES

HE &R 2z BEBEME EEEE #HEE®
(sg.m.) (sg.m.)
(F5K)  (F5K)

Guangzhou Nam Fong Garden Project 100% Nos. 168 and 170 Canggang Mid Road, 103,151 103,151
BMmE A ERIEE Haizhu District, Guangzhou

BT E B M §&168-1705%
Guangzhou Wangxiangying Project 100% Taipingxu, Taiping Village, Licheng Street, 1,383,667 1,383,667
EMEBEER Zengcheng City

BT BB EAFR AT S

Qinhuangdao Di Bai Project 100% Ji Liao province border, 764,523 764,523
25 mAFEA Liao Dong Wan West north shore
BEREALE  EEMERRE

Beijing Majugiao Project 100% Majugiao Town, Tongzhou District, Beijing 509,688 509,688
ItREHEEE dRmEMEEEE R

Beijing Tongzhou Yongshun Project 100% Qiaozhuang Village, Yongshun Town, 334,197 334,197
b B M K IEIE B Tongzhou District, Beijing

b 7 77 38 M 8 oK JIB 88 7 A

Beijing Yu He Wen Bao Project 100% Plot #11 of South District in Beijing 10,000 10,000
bR EAXRIEE Yu He Wen Bao Area
IERFENRBE AR5 MR

Shanghai Wu Jiao Chang Project 100% Lot No. NS-1, 1157 Xiangyin Road, 38,400 38,400
EERABER Yangpu District, Shanghai

LETRAGHRE57H
Shanghai Haiyuntian Project 100% 483, Feihong Road, Hongkou District, Shanghai 53,357 53,357
FEBEXRER B4 AR R EE 483 5%
Total 3,196,983 3,196,983
BE
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(2) Business Review (continued)

Land Bank (Continued)

Land acquisition contracts signed in 2008 but the acquisitions

were not completed by end of 2008:

Group's
interests
r5E
2R

Name of Project

HHER

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT
TR RS

(D) EKOREE 2)

T it (&)

RERTK

Location of Project

5 E R

2008 FEHEEMWB L mipmER

Saleable
Area
i

HEEE
(sq.m.)
(7 XK)

Gross
Floor Area

EEEE
(sq.m.)
(FRXK)

Huizhou Daya Bay Xiangshuihe Project 100% Xiangshuihe South, West side of Daya Bay 2,718,117 2,718,117
BMAEEEKTEE PANEER: 1% V) SCEEE S S

Huizhou Daya Bay Houzaiwan Project 100% Houzaiwan, Aotou, Daya Bay Area 779,705 779,705
BN AT R AT EERFR A

Huizhou Xiao Jin Kou Project 100% Bai Shi Village, Xiao Jin Kou Street, Huizhou 632,199 632,199
EMNEOEE BMTELS  NEAHERELEBANRER

Total 4,130,021 4,130,021
B

RURRARL i meani; ]

BERAREEERAF

Kylin Zone in Beijing
2 P36 R0 BB AL
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(2) Business Review (continved) (D) XK EEE g
Land Bank (Continued) TR (E)
Usage and Location ARt E

Saleable Area (million sg.m.)
AHHEEEmB(FE T K)
™ Tianjin Shanghai® Ningbo

Guangzhou Huizhou Beijing

B M =M ik = P= EiE 2K
Residential x= 7.23* 3.92 3.19 3.82 0.75 0.44 19.35
Shopping arcade 7% 0.73* 0.23 0.87 0.07 0.37 0.02 2.29
Office WA= 0.20 — 0.38 0.01 0.17 — 0.76
Car parks =B85 1.08* 1.1 0.37 0.02 0.11 0.04 2.73
Hotels B E 0.06 0.11 0.22 0.14 — — 0.53
Total FEE 9.30 5.37 5.03 4.06 1.40 0.50 25.66
Development Status and Location BERMAARHE

Saleable Area (million sq.m.)
AHHEEERE (BEET A K)
@ Tianjin Shanghai® Ningbo

Guangzhou Huizhou Beijing

&M =M = X2 L& BiR
Completed properties BERYE 0.59 0.13 0.18 0.23 0.18 006 137
Properties under development % &/ #) % 0.75 0.60 0.81 0.48 0.55 021 340
Properties to be developed — F#REWE 7.96* 4.64 4.04 3.35 0.67 023 2089
Total | 9.30 5.37 5.03 4.06 1.40 050 2566
*  See note (6) on page 32 of the annual report. * REWME3I2EMEE®) -

(N
1 s ]
¥
']
i
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FE
-
"

.r o
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e s T NN IR LA L L LR =
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e F- j =

i i i S

LA A AN NN A
P EEEE

LLEEFRFLLLLEFEF

]
1

-

L o o Nl oo N o i

A . R B BY BB R R

L S 510 oo i

e S R

L

Veereeril

Huanan New City — lJiangshan Dijing
FEEHH —TLF=R
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(2) Business Review (continued)

Land Bank (Continued)

Development Status and Usage

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT
TTIRBH RS

(D) EKOREE 2)

T fEE ()

BRMRAR AR

Saleable Area (million sq.m.)

AHEEER(BE LK)

Shopping Car

Residential arcade Office parks  Hotels

= B BAE FEHB HIE
Completed properties BER % 0.57 0.30 0.07 0.28 0.15 1.37
Properties under development & H ¥ % 2.40 0.11 0.35 0.39 0.15 3.40
Properties to be developed TERME 16.38* 1.88* 0.34 2.06* 0.23 20.89
Total B 19.35 2.29 0.76 2.73 0.53 25.66

Title Status and Location FrE REM R R i B

Saleable Area (million sg.m.)
AHEEAE (BEEFEHXK)

(8)

Guangzhou Huizhou Beijing” Tianjin Shanghai

BN BN L= RE L&

Ningbo

BiK

Land use rights [ER:EE Junbi 1.15 148  1.12 0.33 0.81 050 539
certificates and FRERER
construction works ITRHE
planning permits FraE
obtained"

Land use rights [ER:EE Junbi 232 2.65 1.18 0.93 0.18 — 726
certificates obtained FERAEER
but without BER&IE
construction works MBI EY
planning permits®

Construction land use ~ EEGEH 1.72 124 114 - — — 410
planning permits FA 3 55 2
obtained® e EOO

Grant of major BHEIEBHMX 4.11 — 159 2.80 0.41 — 891
approvals and REBEEZ
certificates not yet it i @e©
obtained“*"®

Total Rk 9.30 5.37 5.03 4.06 1.40 0.50 25.66

*  See note (6) on page 32 of the annual report. * BFREIEWES) -
EHAREEARA G —EENFEFER 31
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(2) Business Review (continued)

32

Land Bank (Continued)

Title Status and Location (Continued)

Notes:

(M

)

3)

@)

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

Relevant land use rights certificates and construction works
planning permits have been granted.

Relevant land use rights certificates have been granted while
the appertaining construction works planning permits have
not yet been obtained.

Relevant construction land use planning permits have been
granted. However, the land use rights certificates have not yet
been obtained and will only be secured upon execution of the
relevant land transfer contracts and payment of land premium.

Only upon completion of the land grant procedures (e.g.
obtainment of the construction land use planning permits,
and the execution of land transfer contracts) and the payment
of the appertaining land premium will the land use rights
certificates be obtained.

For payment status of land premium, please refer to notes 22
and 39 to the financial statements.

The Group has established a sino-foreign co-operative joint
venture in the PRC for the development and construction of
residential commercial properties of Huanan New City on a
site of approximately 3,000 mu/Chinese acres in Panyu of
Guangdong Province, among which approximately 2,000 mu/
Chinese acres were contracted but have not yet been
transferred to the Group. Huanan New City is currently under
various stages of development. In mid-2007, the Urban
Planning Bureau of Guangzhou City ordered to revoke the
construction land use planning permit obtained for a portion
of 1,500 mu/Chinese acres translating to approximately
1,297,500 sg.m. of saleable area of Huanan New City,
reinstating the user thereof from residential-commercial
properties to affordable housing. A user application has been
re-submitted to the Land and Housing Management Authority
of Guangzhou and the Land and Resources Department of
Guangdong Province to reinstate the user to residential-
commercial properties. Such application has currently been
submitted for approval by a higher government bureau and is
pending for review.

Including Dalian and Shanxi Taiyuan.

Including Hangzhou.

(D) EKOEE 2)

+ i (8
BRI R e B ()

W3

(1

(6)

E%ﬁﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁ%%&@
RLRRABIFFAIE -

EEBEBEHLHFEAEREMRE
%Z@ STRRMBEFIEFEL R
g

EREREROERMAMRE G
AE A WARSABD
THERE MABLLER

EFREEBRTLIHEZARALRK
XNBELIMHESRRGE -

THEREER TR LR B
B (MESERMALREIFFA
ERBTEIHERAR) R
BRLHHEREZ R AES -

THHEE 2EARRELE
M B B FE22 %39 ©

KE@E RERSZI P INAES
BhE UPREREAENTES
— 8 493,00084 (E # %94 2,000

MERT WM AEREARESR)

M EBEREREERHRZ

FEEEAYE EmFMIRE

FTERERZEZERKE R _F

TAFEGE - EMNTIHTREED

TSR ERNBAEEmES

1,500 #1 ( 491,297,500 F 75 3K ) &B

19 1t 7 72 3% FA 3R 81 7F A %

ARSELHERERELSRE

FTRERZFEEFHAWE - £

FREEHBIXAEMNTELER

MEEEEREXHD  UKE

FREAREEEHEAYE - §

BEFERCEA L —RBFTE

FISSHLPEERR - EHESEER -

BRERXERLEKRR -
BTN -
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(3) Principal Business Strategies in 2009

Strive for growth in operating results

The Group will keep the principle of “Stable Operation” as its
development guideline in 2009. We strive to achieve a steady
development for the Group in 2009 to withstand the challenges
in the market environment. The Group plans to increase its GFA
of commencement and completion from last year and to launch
more projects for pre sales. With the inventory brought forward
from 2008, the Group has sufficient projects in 2009 with a
sound portfolio of properties. It is expected that the contracted
sales in 2009 should grow when compared to 2008.

Moderate land bank replenishment

Guangzhou, Beijing, Shanghai have long been the primary
regions of the Group’s business development. The Group
acquired new land with prudence in these regions. In 2009, the
Group will have regard to the market situation and keep abreast
of its prudent land bank policy to acquire premium land in major
cities.

Operate with solid financial position

In 2009, the Group will operate with solid financial position and
strengthen its ability in financial risk management and at the
same time improve its liquidity. Cost control measures will be
adopted and production efficiency will be enhanced to secure
the Group’s business for a stable and sustainable development.

Maintain a moderate scale of investment property

The Group will maintain a portfolio with property sales business
as its focus and an appropriate portion in commercial property.
In 2009, the Group will continue to develop its existing
commercial property projects in order to obtain a stable source
of cash revenues.

1T AB R RS

Z)2009F ARl EBMES
54

R B

Z 5

NEEEXBERER

SE000F N RBELE | AR
BERIRA - KERQFTE20094F
BEHE  BRAAERKEIIIR
HHER - 2000FE£EHAT - BT
HEKLEFEE—EEBE T8
TEZEEEINTIREEEHE - I
L2008 FEMAEEEE - 2009F &
EEExT En#HBEEMSGRE -
TEET2009F EE B A& NHEBEKT
2008 A L BE—FTRERIER o

i R & A R B N

SE—EHEUEM R LEBAE
BEBMNEMNES  WELFED
BT M EREES TS 0 2009
F EEBEERAERE BED
HEE - BETMSBRLETEKES
RIEA - AP LETAES it
& -

RENMBEE

2000F - EEBEBRENBR
&t BRERZESEE D IS
B FEKE  FKEFARERNR
B REaRAEHER  RESH
EEMNBERBERE -

REEENBHRLERE

EEBEUNEEHWERR AT - &
WiEE R EEEB - 2009 F
NABEERER BN EMER
B TEFREHESBTETORESR
I @NE
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(4)

(5)

Corporate Governance

During the year, the Group continued to maintain effective
corporate governance practices. Apart from the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Connected
Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee continued to
operate in accordance with the corporate governance practices
of the Group.

Details of the corporate governance report of the Group is set
out on pages 100 to 109 of the annual report of the year.

Appreciation
I would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to our management

and all staff members for their commitments and dedications to
the Group.

Chen Chang Ying

Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 21st April 2009
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Sheshan Dongziyuan in Shanghai
R EBMRURE
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PROPERTY PROFILE
YIRET

HU\A[\I BOHAI| EconOoMIC ZONE YANGTZE\RlVER DELTA ECONOMIC ZONE
RF B eam EI=AMNenm

BEERIEE
23. Hopson Dongjiao Villa
BERIAIE
24. Hopson Yuting Garden
BEMER
25. Shanghai Zhongxian International 292 Project
g B 29218 B
26. Haiyuntian Project
pa:p BEXRIER
11. Jingjin New Town 27. Hangzhou Technology Digital Plaza
SO MMNB R EIEESEER
12. Tianjin Hopson International Tower 28. Hopson International City
RESEERKE BRI
13. Tianjin Hopson International Mansion
REEEEBRDE
14. Dalian Lushun Hopson Regal Seashore
RERIESETILFSR
15. Shanxi Taiyuan Tongye Project
LA RRIFZEIER
16. Qinhuangdao Dibai Project
REBBFIRA

o

TR iii e

e —

’ | _‘. 1 '1 I IE




PROPERTY PROFILE
EILVIN

PEARL RI\{ER DELTA economic zoNE
BI=ZAMNenm

Huanbohai
Economic Zone

IR E s E

Yangtze River Delta
Economic Zone

RIZAMwE B Bl

. Zhon
L TS
48. Hushan Guo
AL B R
49. Huizhou Wo
BN it 5 Pearl River Delta
50. Huizho C Economic Zone
Lo =Y a0
Hopson Inter
BEBIRRE
52. Wangxiangying Projec
BREIEE

51.




_pENG.
5|

IDonagsishitia

Ring East
b PO 3R R B

== S

Beijing

49‘?% Tongzhou District

BN E

A5
1. Beijing Regal Court 6. Beijing Desheng Building
ERKIFR EREBAE
2. Citta Eterna 7. Kylin Zone
BER= 1.4 o
3. Hopson International Garden 8. Majugiao Project
& EBRRIER SHBEA
4. Beijing Xinjingrun Project 9. Yuhe Project
bR R EIE B FRIE B
5. Beijing Dongfangwenhua Project 10. Tongzhou Yongshun Project
IRRANEIEREE MK IEIE B

BEIJING REGAL COURT
ERBHIHS

23, Xidawang Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing (100% owned)
it REAMG @ 7 K 2R 235% (B 100% %)

1

F 75k
Sg.m.

BExEL Construction completed 127,948

HE P A T B Al 52 T Construction to be completed

e “ET in 2009 77,481

« —TE——FK A in 2012 and after 248,843

R-ZEZENE+=A Land bank as at

=t+—BztH#EE 31st December 2008 454,272
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CITTA ETERNA
&S RE
4

107, Chaoyang Bei Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing (100% owned)
I RHABGERFABIEE 1075 (HH 100% # &=

HOPSON INTERNATIONAL GARDEN
& ERIEE

oK
Sg.m.
BExEL Construction completed 22,681
BRATERTET Construction to be completed
s _ZTTNF in 2009 58,316
RZZEZENF+ZA Land bank as at
=t+—BzLtifEE 31st December 2008 80,997

31, Guangqumenwaida Street, Chaoyang District, Beulng (100% owned)
1t 5 % 15 [ /8 3 P39 K731 5% (878 100% 18 25 )

(88.56% owned)

jt/?\iﬁiéilﬁﬂ

1t B 4 [ B 15 ok /)N & DA SR (1 /5 88.56% HE 5 )

F oK
Sg.m.
2T Construction completed 7,620
RZZEZENF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—BzLiFHEE 31st December 2008 7,620
e 8, Xiaoyun Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing (80% owned)
b R EIE B 1t RS E T B8 5E (A 80% M 35
Sg.m.
1 P DA T B ] 52 T Construction to be completed
e T —THF in 2010 120,000
e — T ——% in 2011 180,894
e T - FLAIE in 2012 and after 491,021
R-ZZEENE+=A Land bank as at
=+— Bz tihfEE 31st December 2008 791,915

BEUING DONGEANGIVENHUA PROJECT No: DA Donas Redevelopment Avea, Dongcheng District, Biing

oK
Sg.m.
1 7 LA TR B il 58 T Construction to be completed
s _ETNF in 2009 140,514
R-ZBEENFE+_A Land bank as at
—t+t—BzLiFEE 31st December 2008 140,514
EHEAREEERLAT Z—ZEN\EFH 39



BEIJING DESHENG BUILDING
il:?f\ = %‘rﬁf“

KYLIN ZONE
FEEL e+

MAJUQIAO PROJECT
F5E1E

YUHE PROJECT
EDLIREES

' "0

De Wai Guan Xiang, Xicheng District, Beijing (100% owned)
I REE R BN A (B 100% 12 %5 )

75K
Sqg.m.
BRI TN T Construction to be completed
e T ——fF in 2011 54,052
RZZEZNF+H Land bank as at
= +t—BzLFEE 31st December 2008 54,052

Interchange of Wanjing Street and Futong Xida Street, Wangjing, Beijing
(100% owned)
EREREBAARFMERERER (A 100% #1)

7oK
Sqg.m.
HE P LA T By Al 58 T Construction to be completed
s _T—THF in 2010 151,207
ZEENEFE+ZA Land bank as at
TRz LRHE 31st December 2008 151,207
Majugiao Town, Tongzhou District, Beijing (100% owned)
EREIN RS 5 E (H B 100% 4# =
oK
Sqg.m.
HE P LA T B Al 58 T Construction to be completed
o — T ——14 in 2011 121,457
o — T ——FkPliE in 2012 and after 388,231
RZZEZENF+ZAH Land bank as at
=t+t—BztiFEE 31st December 2008 509,688

Plot 11, Southern District of Yuhe Wenbao Area, Dongcheng District,
Beijing (100% owned)
IEREWE N XRBEANEE 1195 (BB 100%#E =)

5K
Sqg.m.
1 7 LA T Bl 52 T Construction to be completed
e —T—TF in 2010 10,000
RZZTEZNF+H Land bank as at
= t—BHBZLFHE 31st December 2008 10,000
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Qiaozhuang Village, Yongshun Town, Tongzhou District, Beijing
(100% owned)
bR AN E K R EE A (BB 100% %)

T oK
Sqg.m.
1% PA T B el 58 T Construction to be completed
o —E——FPLB in 2012 and after 334,197
 R—EENE+ A Land bank as at
—t+t—BztifFHE 31st December 2008 334,197

e

S

o

Nightview of Beijing Xinjingrun Project located next to Chaoyang Park
NEBREAERMOFTREEE RS

EEAREEERAE ZEENFEH 41



CLANIN

y= =

11.

12.

13.

A

Beijing
1t =

Baodi District
== =
EiXE 0

Tianjin

Rz

Heping District
A0 &

Jingjin New Town
TR F L
Tianjin Hopson International Tower

REABEBBRKRE

Tianjin Hopson International Mansion
REGHEEBRERS

1, Zhujiang South Road, Zhouliangzhuang Town, Baodi District, Tianjin
(92.3% owned)
REERRERABERTIEE -5 (HEH23%#EH)

F oK
Sg.m.
2x T Construction completed 156,014
P LA T B Al 58 T Construction to be completed
o —TETNF in 2009 300,848
o — T T F in 2010 139,156
e — T ——4 in 2011 139,000
o —E ——FH A in 2012 and after 2,886,892
NZEBEENE+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HztHEE 31st December 2008 3,621,910
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Interchange of Fuan Main Street and Xingan Road, Heping District, Tianjin
(at Beian Bridge) (98.9% owned)

REMFBEZAFEMALELA (LLHBHE) (HH 8% M)

oK
Sqg.m.
1% PA T B el 58 T Construction to be completed
e — T ——F in 2011 134,550
R-_ZTEZNE+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—Bztif#EE 31st December 2008 134,550

Interchange of Weijin South Road and Shuishang North Road,
Nankai District, Tianjin (100% owned)
REMFARAZEKEK KRR O (JEH100% # =

Sqg.m.
7% B DA R el 58 T Construction to be completed
o« — T ——14F in 2011 137,120
RZEZENF+ZA Land bank as at
=t+t—RziiEE 31st December 2008 137,120

Fﬁ’ :
I»L--\Jp.. At

RAN

Jingjin New Town

TR
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_DAAN
KE

|
(L]

ADalian City Centre

Lushunkou Station
N 7

R IE B 3k

14 Dalian Lushun Hopson Regal Seashore
RERIEES T ILFER

DAHAN LUSHUN HOPSON REGAL SEASHORE 808, Yanbei Road, Tieshan Town, Lushunkou District, Dalian

A (100% owned)
FIERIES E/IIJ_I X3 ¢ 11 6 4 1L 98 3E It % B083% (FE 75 100% 25

oK
Sg.m.
BRATERTT Construction to be completed
e —TETNF in 2009 22,767
o — T —T4F in 2010 45,803
o —T——£ in 2011 62,535
o« — T ——FE 1B in 2012 and after 342,115
N_ZEZNE+_1 Land bank as at
s el = vz R 31st December 2008 473,220
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-'] A EVMJ%N AYUAN

\
=
R Provincial Government
g LR
S Municipal Government
o5 B @
@
=}
g 5
3 2
4 e
z
g g
3 5
=
2
o
3 : i
3 N HE
< = &
g
o — Yingpan Street
Eﬁﬂ iﬁé EEE
k=) e
) ®g
b5

Changfeng Street & &7

Shanxi University
- PN~
Xuefu Street 2 £1

15. Shanxi Taiyuan Tongye Project
I KRIFEER

SHANXI TAIYUAN TONGYE PROJECT Z\t’ESttO“TB'”gzhO:h Roade)gi/t of let:j)Road and North of Eryingpan
L ﬁj&ﬁﬁﬁ %IE\ B reet, Taiyuan, Shanxi 6 owne

RKERHAMBIAT  BERIAR - — 2R AL (FEH100% )

F 7oK
Sg.m.

BRATERTET Construction to be completed

« —TE——FK Ak in 2012 and after 1,244,773

RZZEZENF+ A Land bank as at

=t+—HztHEE 31st December 2008 1,244,773
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_LAONING

2N

==

ine Town

T

16. Qinhuangdao Dibai Project
REBAEFEIEA

Intersection of Hebei and Liaoning Provinces, Northwestern coast of
1 6 %NQUQN?E&D%%Q'BEAl PROJECT Liaodong Bay (100% owned) ’
= == >~

BEREMILF  REMERTE (HEH100%E )

75 5K
Sqg.m.
BRI TERTET Construction to be completed
o« — T ——F B in 2012 and after 764,523
RZZEZENF+ZA Land bank as at
=+—HztTHEE 31st December 2008 764,523
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2 01

17.
18.
19.

20.

21.

Changning District

LB EER#S

Hongkou District\
4T O [& 0

Shanghai Honggiao International Airport

I
Yangpu District
%58 &

R R

4% Shanghai Civil Aviation Airport
LERMBEERS

=¥
»/l < port RO2 &
) AP
(20} 4
4|
74R\'
\
% \
o / D\ y
/ \ ‘fs
pa \ Minhang
Sheshan P \ District
£l A/ NPT Y
74 \ \ /)
,, \\ \ /(_——'l
P )
7 \ il
||
J/ \) =

Hopson Town 22.
B EWF

Shanghai Hopson International Tower  23.
EEEEEERE

Hopson Golf Mansion 24,
EERBRNE

Sheshan Dongziyuan 25.
RILREKE

Hopson Lantern Villa

BEAEE 26.

International Garden
& EBERER
Hopson Dongjiao Villa
BHERR R E
Hopson Yuting Garden
aEHER
Shanghai Zhongxian
International 292 Project
EBPEREER29218 R
Haiyuntian Project

B EXRIEH

518, Anning Road, Minhang District, Shanghai (100% owned)
FBREITEZEES185 (¥ A 100% # 25

BExL
BRI TERTT
« ZTTNHF

e T T F

RZZEENF+_A
= +t—BzZLFEE

BERAREEERAF

Construction completed
Construction to be completed
in 2009

in 2010

in 2011

Land bank as at
31st December 2008

—EE

— ==

NEF R

Pudong New District

)

T 75 K
Sg.m.
10,559

55,609
62,409
149,873

278,450
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166, Lujiazui Ring Road, Pudong New District, Shanghai

(Contracted to dispose in 2006)

bR BT [ B R B R K 166 5% (10

“EEXRFEEHNLE)

oK
Sg.m.
BxEL Construction completed 82,700
RZZEZENF+ZA Land bank as at
=t+—HzttFEE 31st December 2008 82,700
1095, Jiangpu Road, Yangpu District, Shanghai (100% owned)
BB E R TR 10955 (# B 100% # % )
Sg.m.
Y B ATERRETT Construction to be completed 58,123
¢« 2T in 2010
RZZEZENF+H Land bank as at
=t+t—BztifHE 31st December 2008 58,123

1189, Linhu Road, Shanghai Sheshan National Holiday Resort, Shanghai
(100% owned)
B8 A L B SR B 0% 2 R R MO R 1189 5% (BB 100% #E 2 )

Sg.m.
BRI TERTET Construction to be completed 17,545
Bx T Construction completed
o —ET N F in 2009 32,298
e —_T T F in 2010 74,141
RZZEZENF+=A Land bank as at
= t+t—BztifHEE 31st December 2008 123,984

199, Zhenle Road, Zhaoxiang New City, Qingpu District, Shanghai
(100% owned)
B EHE S ARG RR 1997 (A 100% %)

oK

Sg.m.

BxETL Construction completed 45,737
BRI TERETET Construction to be completed

s —ETNF in 2009 1,691

RZZEZNF+A

=T—BZ i E

Land bank as at
31st December 2008 47,428
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(94% owned)

=4 BIFR{EE

|NTERNAT|ONAL GARDEN 1290, East Changxing Road, Dongjing, Songjiang District, Shanghai

AT R ORI = BB B8 12905F (B 94% 2 )

HOPSON DONGJIAQ VILLA
AE% B 51| ZF

F 5K
Sg.m.
15 7 LA TR B il 58 T Construction to be completed 21,135
BExT Construction completed
s ZETNF in 2009 96,445
N = =F in 2010 8,991
R-ZBEENFE+_A Land bank as at
8 —+— B2zt E 31st December 2008 126,571

7, 699 Nong, Cuibai Road, Pudong New Area, Shanghai (100% owned)
PEBRIERAKE9F 7R (A 100% %)

oK
Sg.m.
1 B DA T B ] 52 T Construction to be completed
s —TTNF in 2009 62,125
RZZEZENF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—Bz G 31st December 2008 62,125
Land Parcel No. 5 Zhaoxiang Town, Qingpu District, Shanghai
HOPSON YUTING GARDEN foe e
a4 it E 5 A S (G 100% HERS)
50K
Sg.m.
% 7 LA T BE ] 58 T Construction to be completed
s —T—TF in 2010 90,053
e —F——%F in 2011 35,549
RZZEZNF+H Land bank as at
=t+— Bz EE 31st December 2008 125,602
SHANGHAI ZHONGXIAN INTERNATIONAL 292 PROJECT _ » |
292 liefeng, Yangpu District, Shanghai (100% owned)
inpiSies 5‘5. m292 ISR 2925 55 (#  100% HE 35)
Iy e b q_,._.g-:ﬁr- iz - e
Sg.m.
BRI TERETET Construction to be completed
o — T — —FPliE in 2012 and after 353,300
RZEENF+ZA Land bank as at
=+— Bz LifFE 31st December 2008 353,300
BEAREEERAT ZZENFFH 49



HAIYUNTIAN PROJECT

483, Feihong Road, Hongkou District, Shanghai (100% owned)

20

BEKXIER 5 UT O[5 A 4T 25 48395 (JE 75 100% 4 35
F 7K
Sg.m.
BRIATERETT Construction to be completed
o — T —TF in 2010 53,357
: RZZEZENFE+_A Land bank as at
—t—HztiHEE 31st December 2008 53,357

Hopson Town

B EW I
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_ HANG/HOQY
AL

C
, 5
> -
> \
BT N 7.
S o " Municipal Government
[o%

] BB

27. Hangzhou Technology
Digital Plaza Project
UM BB 8RS B35 TH B

HANGZHOU TECHNOLOGY D|G|TAL PLAZA PROJEU 327, Tianmushan Road, Xihu District, Hangzhou (95% owned)
ﬁ’)‘l‘ %gl,j:igﬁﬁ%]gigla E MNP R KRB L3275 (A 95% )

F K
Sq.m.
BRI TERTLT Construction to be completed
e —E T in 2010 92,418
RZZEZNFE+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HzLihFEE 31st December 2008 92,418
EHERAREBEBRALT
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Kongpu Park
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28. Hopson International City

&£ BB

1, Zhongbao Road, Zhenhai New City, Ningbo (100% owned)

Jiangdong District
LR [E

ERBBNMEBDK 19 (JEH100% # =

BRT
R TH BT
« —EThE

=
T—FF

o222

LT — _Fo A
RZEBEZENF+ A
—t—BHBZLIHFE
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Construction completed
Construction to be completed

in 2009
in 2010
in 2011
in 2012 and after

Land bank as at
31st December 2008

F 7K
Sg.m.
58,286

30,988
105,279
106,820
194,973

496,346



E M

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44.

Gallopade Park
BREE

Pleasant View Garden
%= 2R

Huanan New City

E 7 K

Gallopade Park —

0"

Huadu District
TE#BE

=7

P
e =

%ort Express

Luogang District

South Court - R

%5;% = I:'ﬂ §E BawunﬁDl:trlct
- AEE
Regal Riviera , L
HIBS . Guangsan Express T|anh§uD|:tr|ct Guangslle; Fxpress
e KAl & BARER
N ==l
Regal Palace S A e
=z han et £ Huangbu District
HRED FEsiEm Nanhai District S - 9
#lm e . EMm —-_— =

Yijing Huayuan HEE . - J b ERBE %

S35
BRER @ Guangzhou
Guangzhou Hopson Tianhe Railway Science City

International Tower . Station BN R 2,

T A EE -

BIN& £ BB K E
Yunshan Xijing

= | =2
= SN

Baiyun District
HEE

Regal Villa

7 & 1L i

Junjing Bay

Guangzhou Jiahe
Commercial City

F& I 2= 70 7 3 4

Hopson Yujing Mid-level

BEMEMRF L

Guangzhou Jiufo Machao Project

BN #6555 #1E B

Top Royal View

N =

Guangzhou Nam Fong
Garden Project

BIMmE G5 EEE AR

uexiu Distri

HFEER

Haizhu District
@ BIRIE

Panyu Distric

HBE

GALLOPADE PARK
52 7t

Metro'Line No.3

P

W t*})\
S
I S~
S
e
S

I
Metroline No.5

tm,ﬂm

Guangzhou
BN

=

Guangzhou
ﬂﬂai‘?ﬁi% University City
X BN K 235

Ell

X
.
0
)
L}

190, Zhongshan Avenue, Tianhe District, Guangzhou (95% owned)
JE& N KA [ AP Ll K38 190 55 (1 5 95% 1 %5 )

BERAREEERAF

F 5K
Sqg.m.

B5E L Construction completed 3,435

#5 LA TS B A 58 T Construction to be completed

o T FHIUR in 2012 and after 439,529

RZEENF+ZA Land bank as at

=t+t—RziFE 31st December 2008 442,964
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PLEASANT VIEW GARDEN
% =2 EF

Guangzhou Avenue South, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (94.98% owned)
BEMNEEREEMNKER (% B 94.98% # =

GALLOPADE PARK — SOUTH COURT
BR=mn

Sg.m.
BExEL Construction completed 57,858
1 B A TR T Construction to be completed
s _T—FTF in 2010 79,971
o — T —— 14 in 2011 16,091
e T ——4FRPLIE in 2012 and after 556,382
RZZEENF+ZA Land bank as at
=t—BRztiHE 31st December 2008 710,302
+P N . C Xingnan Avenue, Panyu District, Guangzhou (99% owned)
= = AT I N B 8 s B A (75 99% 36
Sg.m.
B L Construction completed 120,243
NN Construction to be completed
e T ——4 in 2011 22,347
o —TE——FHUR in 2012 and after 1,929,906
RZZEZENF+H Land bank as at
=t+t—Rzt#E 31st December 2008 2,072,496

190, Zhongshan Avenue, Tianhe District, Guangzhou (95% owned)
&M R & 1l K 1905 (FEH 95% K2 )

. 5 0K
P, Sg.m.
3 BE5ET Construction completed 95,677

BRATERTT Construction to be completed
e —TETNF in 2009 15,479
« —E——1£F in 2011 32,180
o« — T ——F A% in 2012 and after 92,637

RZEZENF+=A Land bank as at

=t+—BzLtiFEE 31st December 2008 235,973

REGAL Rl\/l E RA 1, Haojing Street, Yizhou Road, Haizhu District, Guangzhou

N (99.5% owned)
b A~ BB 59 T 8 5 0 B8 5 2 41 9% (7 99.5% HE 35

F 755K
Sg.m.
BT Construction completed 119,212

ofd TRIATERETET Construction to be completed
¥ o —TTNGF in 2009 13,608
o« —EF——1F in 2011 35,683
e —TE—_FELAE in 2012 and after 770,275

e N —TTN\F+A Land bank as at

B = —HZ L 31st December 2008 938,778

54  Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008



REGAL PALACE Guangzhou Avenue, Chigang, Haizhu District, Guangzhou

(100% owned)

=TS0 B 55 5 B 77 1 M A8 (7 100% 135 )

75K

Sg.m.

S Construction completed 13,880
RZEZENF+=A Land bank as at

=t+—BztHEE 31st December 2008 13,880

YIJING HUAYUAN

Dongxiaonan Road South, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (50% owned)

B =250 8 N 5 5 B S 9% 7 25 (4 50% #E2)
5K
Sg.m.
it g ExT Construction completed 29,270
E BRATERTI Construction to be completed
e —T——fF in 2011 57,802
; N EENE+ = A Land bank as at
y —T—HZ LR 31st December 2008 87,072
36 GUANGZH/%J HOPSON |NTERNAT|ONAHOWER Yuehua Road, Yuexiu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
EMNE LR AE PR 5 5 1032 98 (45 100% B )
o5 K
Sg.m.
NN Construction to be completed
s ZETNF in 2009 99,059
R-ZZEZENE+=-A Land bank as at
=t+t—HzZ i EE 31st December 2008 99,059

-

Y U S HAN XU | NG Guangzhou Avenue North, Baiyun District, Guangzhou (70% owned)
zij:l_umﬁ. BN BB E RN KB (B 70%H )

7oK
Sg.m.
BExT Construction completed 18,777
P LA T B Al 2 T Construction to be completed
e —TETNF in 2009 29,599
R-ZZEZENFE+=-A Land bank as at
= +t—BzLFEE 31st December 2008 48,376
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56

REGAL VILLA

=8
=Lt

GUANGZHOU JIAHE COMMERCIAL CITY

J&& M 32 N 7 S 33

HOPSON YUJING MID-LEVEL

SEHSY¥ L

Hopson Development Holdings Limited

Aoti Road, Tianhe District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
&M RO R B A2 B (HE A 100% 1 %5 )

Sqg.m.
: ExT Construction completed 10,281
HBRATERTET Construction to be completed
s —_TENEF in 2009 17,776
o — T T4 in 2010 20,302
e _F——F in 2011 59,791
R-_TENFE+_A Land bank as at
=t+— Bzt EE 31st December 2008 108,150
Huangqgi Beicun Avenue, Dali, Nanhai District, Foshan,
Guangzhou (100% owned)
B G ILEEEE AES I KE (HEA100%# %)
F oK
Sg.m.
BT Construction completed 15,950
P LA T B Al 52 T Construction to be completed
s —ETNF in 2009 17,316
o — T —FT4F in 2010 48,960
o T ——1F in 2011 175,347
o T ——FPig in 2012 and after 414,298
RZZEZENF+ZA Land bank as at
=t+t—HzLTiHEE 31st December 2008 671,871

Guangzhou Avenue South, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)

BEMEIREEMA B (HA100%#m)

75K
Sg.m.
&R A T Rl 52 T Construction to be completed
e ZT——FERPE in 2012 and after 238,918
R-_TEENE+_F Land bank as at
e = v R 31st December 2008 238,918

Honbenggang Reservoir, Shiling Town, Huadu District, Guangzhou

(95.5% owned)

J& N 7E #B 12 0 55 SE AT A e 7K BB (BB 95.5% #E 25 )

Sg.m.
BRATERTET Construction to be completed
e —T—THF in 2010 23,000
o — T ——14F in 2011 30,000
o —E—_FE A% in 2012 and after 331,510
RZZEZENF+ZA Land bank as at
=t—Hz T HE 31st December 2008 384,510

Annual Report 2008



GUANGZHOU JIUFO MACHAQ PROJECT
&N L1355 518 B

Jiufo Machao Industry Town, Guangzhou (55% owned)

BMNAGESBITEN (A% Eam)

o5 K
Sg.m.
NSNS Construction to be completed
o« — T ——F A% in 2012 and after 193,513
R Tz \E+-A Land bank as at
=t—HzLiHEE 31st December 2008 193,513
O , OE 198, Xiaobei Road, Yuexiu District, Guangzhou (51% owned)
NEHE B 3855 I s db 25 19858 (47 51% B 26)
50K
Sg.m.
BRATERTET Construction to be completed
e —E——FHLAI% in 2012 and after 244,745
RZZEZENE+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—HztiEE 31st December 2008 244,745
168-170, Canggang Mid Road, Haizhu District, Guangzhou
(100% owned)
EMNBIKE S T 18 168-1705% (B 100% #Ez)
750K
Sg.m.
BRI TR T T Construction to be completed
e — T ——FKPLIE in 2012 and after 103,151
R-ZZEZENE+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—HzZ i EE 31st December 2008 103,151

Huanan New City

5
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45. Zhongshan Torch Project
LB R

46. Zhongshan Dongkeng Project
FILERSTIE B

47. Zhongshan Rainbow Project
L AIE R

ZHONGSHAN TORCH PROJECT
P KEIEE

Linggang District, Huoju Development Zone, Zhongshan (100% owned)
FR LT KCAE B T P e [ (BB 100% #E &5 )

K
Sg.m.
B ATERTIT Construction to be completed
o« —ETNF in 2009 27,195
e — T —TIF in 2010 19,990
t o — T — —4F in2011 31,852
5 e — T ——FilE in 2012 and after 121,548
RZZEENF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—BzLitFEE 31st December 2008 200,585
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Dongkeng, South District, Zhongshan (100% owned)
R TEE R (A 100% )

5K
Sg.m.
2 1 7 LA T B il 58 T Construction to be completed
i o« —T——EHAIE in 2012 and after 537,257
__"‘. RZZEZENF+=A Land bank as at
o =t+—BzLiFEE 31st December 2008 537,257

Caihong Planning Zone, West District, Zhongshan (100% owned)
PRI E PRSI E (B 100% )

:1:1:-;#. | 1 e ] '__' v oK
i th 5 L Sq.m.
=S NN Construction completed 479,499

T——F A& in 2012 and after

TENF+ A Land bank as at
— Bz LA 31st December 2008 479,499

Zh(-)ngshan Torch Project
Ll AEEE
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48. Hushan Guoji Villa 51. Hopson International New City
L B B B A BB R
49. Huizhou World Island Project 52. Wangxiangying Project
BMERSIEE S8 E1E A

50. Huizhou Regal Riviera Bay

VLY

HUSHAN GUOJI VILLA

Yuanzhang Avenue, XintangTown, Zengcheng City (100% owned)

SEA L R PR 40 350 70 97 9 SEUR B K (45 100% 1 )
Sq.m.
BRI TERETET Construction to be completed
e —TTNF in 2009 116,166
« T T T4 in 2010 75,380
e T ——FgLAE in 2012 and after 1,251,799
R-ZEZENF+ -8 Land bank as at
= t+t—RBztHfFE 31st December 2008 1,443,345
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HUIZHOU WORLD ISLAND PROJECT
BN REIEH

Maliao Area, Dahe Village, Shuikou Town, Huizhou (100% owned)
BEMHKOERMN - ERME (HH100% %5 )

F 5K
Sg.m.
BRI TERTET Construction to be completed
e —T—TF in 2010 29,113
o —_T——1F in 2011 123,395
o — T ——FeiAE in 2012 and after 2,082,119
fE R—_ZEZNF+_A Land bank as at
=+t—HzZLtfFEE 31st December 2008 2,234,627
N 1, Wenchangyi Road, Jiangbei District, Huizhou (100% owned)
B 43 . .
EJM%E‘ /% BMAIEXE —B15% (HEH100%#=)
Sg.m.
B 5= Construction completed 39,140
BRI TERERT Construction to be completed
e —TTNEF in 2009 24,500
e —T T in 2010 189,154
o — T - F g in 2012 and after 329,717
RZZEZENFE+ZA Land bank as at
=t+—BztiRFEE 31st December 2008 582,511

Yaxin Garden, Lianhe Village, Shuikou Town, Huizhou (100% owned)

BMOK O SRBE AN S EE (H A 100% a5 )

F 7K
Sg.m.

BT Construction completed 92,017

HE P LA T B Al 58 T Construction to be completed

o —TETNF in 2009 8,158

o — T —FTF in 2010 30,462

o« — T ——4 in 2011 88,698

o —_T—_F B in 2012 and after 884,128

RZZTEZNF+A Land bank as at

=t+t—Bziui#E 31st December 2008 1,103,463

YY_ANSSE('ANGY'NG PROJECT Taipingxu, Taiping Village, Licheng Street, Zengcheng City (100% owned)
%&E IEE HRIR T 7 WA KA K (HEH 100% 4 )

oK
Sg.m.
1 7 LA T B i 58 T Construction to be completed
o —ET—_—F LB in 2012 and after 1,383,667
I R—_FENF+_-A Land bank as at
=t—BzLiuiEE 31st December 2008 1,383,667
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INVESTMENT PROPERTY FACTSHEET

REWE —

Details of the investment properties of the Group as at 31st December

2008 are as follows:

Location

Phases 5A, 6A, 6B, 6C and 6D
Huajing New City

105 Zhongshan Avenue
Tianhe District

Guangzhou

Guangdong Province
Mainland China

Phase 2, Jinan Garden

South side of Zhongshan Avenue

Tianhe District
Guangzhou
Guangdong Province
Mainland China

Phases 1, 2 and 3
Fairview Garden

238 Xingang West Road
Haizhu District
Guangzhou
Guangdong Province
Mainland China

Phases 1, 2 and 3
Gallopade Park

South side of Zhongshan Avenue

Tianhe District
Guangzhou
Guangdong Province
Mainland China

Phases 1 and 2, Regal Court
East side of Longkou West Road
Tianhe District

Guangzhou

Guangdong Province

Mainland China

Gallopade Park-South Court

South side of Zhongshan Avenue

Tianhe District
Guangzhou
Guangdong Province
Mainland China

REAEERE RN

R AL KB 1055
ESHWESA

6A - 6B - 6C 6D £

REARRERE BT
KABHIUARERE
ERitEF

REARERREBMNT
IR B 3523855
BsHERE— — k=

REAEERE BN
RARFILAERE

BRUERE— ZRk=H

PEAEERE BT
K AP R E
wREE— L8

hEAEERE BN
KABHIUARERE
SRRIEE —Fg

RZZEZENF+_A=+—HIt &H
BREWEFEINWAT ¢

Group's interest

SE G ES

100%

90%

90%

95%

100%

95%
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Existing use

BATAZ

Commercial/retail
and carparking

BE/ TEREES

Commercial/retail

EEYE

Commercial/retail
and carparking

BE/TEREES

Commercial/retail
and carparking

BE/TEREES

Commercial/retail
and carparking

mE/TEREES

Commercial/retail
and carparking

BE/TEREES

Approximate

gross floor area

BHRERAER

49,857 sq.m.
49,857F ;7K

10,373 sg.m.
10,373F 5 £

22,324 5q.m.
22,324 Jr K

1,782 sq.m.
1,782 7K

20,887 sq.m.
20,887 5%

34,995 sq.m.
34,995%



INVESTMENT PROPERTY FACTSHEET
HEYE — B

Approximate

Group's interest Existing use

gross floor area

Location EE T hER BrRifZE BAERELEER

Fairview South Court

212 Xingang West Road EREIAET 21258 and carparking 1,299 77K
Haizhu District e W%/ TERESS
Guangzhou
Guangdong Province
Mainland China
East and Central area of hEAREERE EMT 94.98% Commercial/retail 34,408 sq.m.
Pleasant View Garden BHRERMNAERAT and carparking 34,4087 J7 K
West side of Guangzhou RERERRKTR HE/TERESES
Avenue Haizhu District
Guangzhou
Guangdong Province
Mainland China
Phase 1, Huanan New City hEIAEERE EMT 99% Commercial/retail 64,521 sq.m.
Panyu District FER and carparking 64,521 77K
Guangzhou EETRE—H ¥/ TEREES
Guangdong Province
Mainland China
Shanghai Zhongxian FEIRKE B 100% Commercial/retail 353,300 sg.m.
International 292 Project BHE292MY and carparking 353,300F 5 5%
292 Jiefeng, Yangpu HiEshaBpR29218 8 HE/TERESS
District, Shanghai
Mainland China

EEAREEARAT —ZEZENEFH 63
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DIRECTORS' PROFILE
E= 5187

Executive Directors
HITES

CHU Mang Yee, aged 49, has been a Director since 1997. He is the Chairman of the Company
and one of the founders of the Group. Mr. Chu has over twenty years’ experience in trading,

construction, property investment and development. He is also a member of the National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, an Honoured Citizen
of Meizhou of Guangdong Province and the Vice Chairman of Guangdong Research
Institute for the Development of Corporate Strategy. Mr. Chu is the sole director of Sounda
Properties Limited. Sounda Properties Limited is a substantial shareholder of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

KRB 9K B NMWNEFLEERARFEF - RA/LARAETFERA
SENEP—UAERA - KRAELEHEES  BEE VERERBERITAHE
BR_T+FER -RAREZERBEE BEREBMNTRETRNERCEZRREBA RIS R - KL
ERFEBEXBRAFZE-ES REILSMBEHRIEXVE  FEEX/ARAZTERR -

XIANG Bin, aged 60, has been a Director since 2001. He is the Deputy Chairman of the
Company and director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Xiang is a registered

Professional Manager in the PRC and a senior engineer. Mr. Xiang was a senior
management staff of a public listed company before joining the Group in February 2001.
He has over thirty-five years’ of experience in construction and administration
management.

BHIE 60 B -_ZEZE—FHEARAEF - WR/ARAABEELAR
ARAETHEBRARAZER HALHATHAMBELENSRIRE
AR R T -—F_ANBAKEN  BEES - LT RFANER
EBAE MERERTHRERBTERBEBEB=THFLER -

CHEN Changying, aged 41, has been an Executive Director since 2003 and the Chief
Executive Officer since 17th January 2008. Mr. Chen holds a Master degree in Engineering
and is a senior engineer. Before joining Hopson in 2003, Mr. Chen was a senior
management staff of a subsidiary of a listed company. He has over ten years’ of experience
in civil engineering, property investment, marketing and enterprise management and is
the Chairman of Beijing Guangdong Enterprise Commercial Association.

REE 4B B-TE=_FHEATEFAEIR -_FT/N\F-A+LtH
REETHRAER REAEERIRSBELRSRIREM R-ITT=F
MBEEZAA—LTRARZMBARNSRERAER RELEL
AN -MWERE LHEEMMXEETEHEE THRFER - LHEMT
EtRERECXEHEER -
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DIRECTORS' PROFILE
SFEHN

ZHAO Mingfeng, aged 54, has been a Director since 19th May 2008 and the Chief Financial Officer of
the Group since 17th January 2008. Ms. Zhao holds a Bachelor degree in Economics. She is a senior
accountant and a certified accountant in the PRC. Prior to joining the Group in 2007, she was
Vice President of a large listed group. Since 1982, Ms. Zhao had held different financial
management positions at provincial level and municipal level of the People’s Bank of China as
well as in large enterprises. She has extensive experience in financial management and monetary
expertise.

HEE S BTN\ FHEATNAREEARRAESR IR T NF—H

TEHHRBEEAEENBRAE BRI AKREREL SRS+ PEIMSE

B e —_TZELFNBAEBZAEE—RAREETEBBRAE - — AN\ ZFUEKD
AIERBEARBITET M7 AUCEEEMBEERLE RAFLYENMBKERR
TREXTEMNTELR -

AU Wai Kin, aged 53, has been an Executive Director since 1997. Mr. Au joined the Group

in 1995. He is also a director of our other member companies. Mr. Au graduated from the
Zhongshan University in Guangzhou and has over twenty years’ of experience in
construction of buildings, town planning, real estate investment and property development.

BEE 53m B NANEtFHERTEFT -BEER - ANTFEFNEAEER -
URAEEEMKERRAZES - HEXRBEMFPUARE -BAEEEET
BE - CHTRE  WERERYMEZRRITEAEBA _TFLR -

XUE Hu, aged 43, has been an Executive Director since
23rd October 2007. He is also the Executive Vice President of the Group. Mr. Xue graduated
from the Zhongshan University in Guangzhou and obtained a Master degree in Business
Administration. He is a senior economist and worked for higher education institutes and
large state-owned enterprises in the PRC. Mr. Xue joined the Group in 1994 and has over
ten years' of experience in real estate investment, marketing and enterprise management.

BR BR B TTLFTA-TZHBUERATEZ - BIARAEE
FHEAH BELEEENEMNPLUABYETHERRLIEN  BAD
MAEEED - SEBREASEEREAEERLE - —ANAWFEMBELRE
B EFMERE EHER CEEEIEERATFELR -

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BAFAITES

YUEN Pak Yiu, Philip, aged 74, is an Independent Non-Executive Director. Mr. Yuen is a
retired solicitor and is a director of a number of listed companies. He is a China Appointed
Attesting Officer in Hong Kong and panel member of the China International Economic &
Trade Arbitration Commission. Mr. Yuen has been a member of our Board since 1998. He is
also the chairman of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee of the Company.
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DIRECTORS' PROFILE
EESLY

LEE Tsung Hei, David, BBS, JR aged 59, is an Independent Non-Executive Director. Mr. Lee is
an Executive Director of PY Development Management Limited. He qualified as a Chartered
Valuation Surveyor in 1973 and registered as an Authorised Person in 1977. He is a fellow
of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, a Registered Professional Surveyor, a fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Directors, an associate of the Incorporated Society of Valuers and

Auctioneers, and an associate of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators. Mr. Lee is a former

member of the Central Policy Unit, which is known as the Government “Think Tank”,
a past Chairman of the Hong Kong Housing Society, a former director of Hong Kong
Cyberport Management Company Limited and a former Council member of Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. He is currently a member of the Land and Building

Advisory Committee, a member of the Steering Committee on Review of the Urban

Renewal Strategy, a member of the Supervisory Board of the Hong Kong Housing Society, a member of the Salvation

Army Advisory Board and Chairman of the Property Advisory Committee of the Salvation Army. Mr. Lee has been a

member of our Board since 1998. He is also a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the

Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee of the Company.
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WONG Shing Kay, Oliver, aged 57, is an Independent Non-Executive Director. Mr. Wong
obtained his professional accounting qualifications in both Hong Kong and Canada. Mr.
Wong is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of the
United Kingdom. Mr. Wong is also a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, an ordinary member of The Society of Chinese Accountants and
Auditors and an associate member of the Certified General Accountants of
Canada. Mr. Wong had worked in various renowned auditing firms in Hong Kong

with over 15 years’ experience in handling auditing, financial accounting and
taxation matters. Mr. Wong is currently appointed as an independent non-
executive director and a member of Audit Committee of several listed companies in
Hong Kong. He has also assumed the duty of financial controller for several listed companies in both Hong Kong and
Canada for over ten years. Mr. Wong is presently practicing as a Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong. He has
expertise in financial accounting, taxation, import-export business and company management. Mr. Wong has been a
member of our Board since 1998. He is also a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee of the Company.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S PROFILE

LIAO Ruoqing, aged 45, Vice President of the Group. Mr. Liao
graduated from the Zhongshan University in Guangzhou and obtained
a Master degree from the University of Western Sydney of Australia.
He engaged in real estate investment and business management for
over ten years. He has extensive experience in working with
government departments, legal affairs and investment development.

ZHU Gouxing, aged 59, Vice President of the Group, President of
Commercial Property Headquarters and General Manager of Eastern
China Commercial Property Company. Mr. Zhu holds a Master degree.
He is a senior economist and a certified accountant in the PRC. He was
appointed as Head of Financial and Taxation Bureau in Zhabei District
of Shanghai, Head of Financial and Taxation Bureau and Head of Audit
Bureau in Pudong New Area of Shanghai and the President of a large-
scale state-owned group since 1988. He is the Chairman of Industry
Association in Lujiazui of Shanghai, Vice Chairman of Commercial
Association in Pudong New Area of Shanghai. Mr. Zhu has substantial
management experience in commercial property industry and has
in-depth knowledge in the operation and administration of office
building, hotel, shopping mall and hi-technology software park.

XU Hong, aged 40, Assistant to President of the Group, Chairman
and General Manager of the eastern regional company. She graduated
from the University of Western Sydney in Australia with a Master
degree in Business Administration. Prior to joining the Group in 1994,
she worked in the real estate sector for over ten years and has
extensive experience in investment, development and management of
land bank, real estate and project operation. She possess good
relations with the government and a vast network in the community.

TAN Ning, aged 36, Assistant to President of the Group. Ms. Tan
graduated from the Zhongshan University in Guangzhou and holds a
Bachelor degree in Law. She also holds a Master degree from the
University of Western Sydney of Australia and is a qualified solicitor.
Ms. Tan joined the Group in 1996 and engaged in management of
human resources, legal affairs and corporate culture. She has
accumulated extensive hands-on experience.

ZHANG Liming, aged 41, Assistant to President of the Group. He
graduated from the Xinjiang University and is an economist. Prior to
joining the Group in 2002, he worked in Shenzhen Taxation Bureau
and had been engaged in real estate investment, operation and
management for over ten years. He has substantial experience in
government public relations and investment and development.
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Turnover

(i)

68

Recognised Sales

The Group achieved a satisfactory turnover of HK$10,775 million
in 2008 (2007: HK$11,131 million) amid the downturn of the
overall property market in the Mainland and the reinforcement
of national macroeconomic regulations during the first half of
the year. Sales volume of properties delivered was held back by
the pessimistic market sentiment. GFA delivered by the Group in
2008 dropped 33.5% to 750,286 square metres (2007:
1,128,655 square metres). The impact of the fall in the volume
of delivered area on the turnover was offset by the growth in
average selling price.

In 2008, the average selling price for delivered and completed
properties rose approximately 32% to RMB12,528 per square
metre (2007: RMB9,459 per square metre). The growth was
driven by a considerably big supply of high-end products and the
continuing demand for quality homes from buyers. Beijing
achieved a significant increase in the average selling price of
77% following the delivery of Citta Eterna, Beijing Regal Court
and Hopson International Garden, which were sold in the second
half of 2007 when the property market was active. In Tianjin, the
average selling price grew 18% owing to the delivery of villas of
higher price. Huizhou area also recorded an 18% price increase
due to the delivery of the sizeable project, Huizhou Regal Riviera
Bay. Shanghai showed an approximately 16% rise in average
selling price due primarily to the launch of high-end products
such as Shanghai Sheshan Dongziyuan and Ningbo Hopson
International City, and the 26% price increase of Shanghai
Hopson Lantern Villa. Guangzhou secured a price rise of 9%
following the delivery of Pleasant View Garden, Yunshan Xijing
and Yijing Huayuan.
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Turnover (continued)

(ii)

Contracted Sales

The global economic downturn in 2008 had an adverse effect on
contracted sales of properties. The market took a wait-and-see
attitude in 2008. However, the Group managed to achieve a
total of RMB9.53 billion in contracted sales, which included the
proceeds from the disposal of the Beijing Dongfangwenhua
commercial building. The disposal of this commercial building is
expected to complete in 2009 and to yield a profit of
approximately RMB380 million to the Group.

Guangdong recorded a high level of contracted sales of
RMB4,287 million representing 45% of the total contracted sales
of the Group in 2008. 17 property projects were on sale in
Guangdong, of which 3 were located in Huizhou. The major
projects were Gallopade Park — South Court, Pleasant View
Garden, Regal Rivera, Yijing Huayuan, Yushan Xijing, Junjing Bay,
Top Royal View and Hushan Guoji Villa.

The combined contracted sales of Beijing and Tianjin, inclusive of
the sale of the Beijing Dongfangwenhua commercial building,
amounted to RMB3,110 million, representing 33% of the total
contracted sales of the Group. 5 residential projects under sale
were Citta Eterna, Beijing Regal Court, Hopson International
Garden, Dalian Lushun Hopson Regal Seashore and Jingjin New
Town. The average contracted selling price in Beijing was
RMB19,287 per sq.m., an increase of 12% over 2007.

Shanghai had 6 property projects for sales comprising Hopson
Town, Hopson Lantern Villa, Hopson Golf Mansion, International
Garden, Sheshan Dongziyuan and Hopson International City, and
generated RMB2.13 billion representing 22% of the total
contracted sales of the Group.
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Cost of Sales

Cost of sales included land and construction costs, decoration and
design costs, capitalized interest and land premium amortization. In
line with the decrease in turnover, cost of sales was down by 11% to
HK$5,916 million (2007: HK$6,670 million) and, as a percentage of
turnover, dropped 5% to 55% (2007: 60%) due primarily to more
sales with higher profit margin recognized in 2008.

Gross Profit

Gross profit margin increased from 40% in 2007 to 45% in 2008 due
mainly to the general rise in average selling prices, the increase in
economies of scale and the delivery of some new high-end
development projects with higher gross margins achieved during the
year.

Other Gains

Other gains comprise: (1) a sum of HK$193 million from the
recognition of the excess of interests acquired by the Group at fair
value over the cost of acquisition paid for certain companies with land
sites located in Guangzhou, Shanghai and Qinhuangdao; (2) a surplus
of HK$34 million from revaluation of certain investment properties; (3)
tax grants totalling HK$80 million from government authorities in the
mainland, and (4) fair value loss of HK$8 million on investment in listed
securities.

Operating Costs

The net operating costs relating to expenses for selling, marketing,
general and administration amounted to HK$ 1,080 million
representing an increase of 36% from 2007 of HK$792 million. The
increase was mainly due to (1) additional benefits and compensation
costs expended on senior management and staff of new projects; (2)
greater outlay of amounts on selling and promotional activities for new
projects; (3) the new PRC land use tax levied on projects, and (4)
depreciation and other operating costs of fully operated Tianjin Jingjin
Hyatt Hotel and golf course. The increase was, to a certain extent,
offset by an exchange gain of HK$272 million on account of the
strengthening of Renminbi.
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Finance Costs

Gross interest before capitalization increased to HK$1,157 million
(2007: HK$788 million), up HK$369 million or 47%. The increase was
mainly attributable to the additional bank borrowings made in 2008.
The effective interest rate in respect of the Group’s borrowings was
approximately 7.5% per annum (2007: 6.9%).

Operating Profit

Operating profit in 2008 decreased by 21% to HK$4,078 million
(2007: HK$5,163 million).

Share of Loss of a Jointly Controlled Entity

Following the consolidation of Guangzhou Zhujiang Qiaodao Real
Estate Limited into the Group’s accounts from September 2007, the
share of loss from the remaining jointly controlled entity located in
Beijing was HK$1.71 million in 2008, down HK$104 million or 102%
as compared with the prior year.

Taxation

Under the new Corporate Income Tax law, which was effective from
1st January 2008, the applicable corporate income tax (“CIT") rate
was reduced to 25% from 33%. The effective tax rate was increased
to 49% in 2008 from 32% in 2007. The increase was mainly
attributable to (i) the reversal of deferred tax liabilities arising from the
effect of change in the CIT rate of approximately HK$123 million in
2007, and (ii) the increase in Mainland China land appreciation tax
(“Mainland China LAT") of approximately HK$396 million due
primarily to the sale and delivery of products with higher gross profit in
2008.

Excluding (1) the adjustment made to deferred tax liabilities of HK$123
million in 2007 and the effect of increase in Mainland China LAT of
HK$396 million above; (2) non-taxable items of fair value gains and
negative goodwill amounting to HK$193 million, government grants
of HK$80 million and interest income of HK$12 million, and (3) share
of loss from a jointly controlled entity and associates of HK$1.74
million, the effective tax rate of CIT for 2008 would have been 22%
(2007: 30%).
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Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the
Company

Profit attributable to equity holders was HK$1,964 million for 2008
(2007: HK$3,517 million). Fully diluted earnings per share was
HK$1.33. Excluding the effect of the gain representing the difference
of the fair value of interests acquired over purchase costs amounting
to HK$193 million and the gain from investment property revaluation
of HK$34 million, underlying profit was HK$1,736 million, down
HK$257 million or 13% as compared with previous year. The decrease
was mainly due to higher operating and finance costs and a greater
amount of Mainland China LAT charged in this year.

Segment Information

Property development remains the Group’s core business activity
(95%). The geographical spread of financial performance among
different regions this year was similar to that of 2007, except that
Shanghai increased its revenue contribution from 8% to 13% and
Huizhou decreased its revenue contribution from 13% to 1% to the
Group in 2008. Guangzhou continued its leading position as top
revenue contributor within the Group (47 %), followed by Beijing
(35%), Shanghai (13%), Tianjin (4%) and Huizhou (1%).

Financial Position

As at 31st December 2008, total assets of the Group amounted to
HK$58,272 million and its total liabilities (excluding minority interests)
amounted to HK$35,708 million, representing an increase of
HK$10,339 million and HK$7,853 million respectively on the previous
year. The increase in total assets was mainly attributable to the increase
in (1) investment in new land sites located in Guangdong Province,
Beijing, Shanghai and Tianjin; (2) acquisition of equity interests in
project companies located in Guangdong Province, Shanghai and
Qinhuangdao, and (3) development cost incurred in the construction
and completion of projects. Aligned with this, total liabilities also
increased, primarily due to (1) additional bank borrowings obtained,
and (2) increase in accounts payable, accruals and other payables and
tax liabilities for newly acquired land sites and companies and
completion of projects.

Current ratio was 2.49 in 2008 (2007: 2.91). Equity increased to
HK$22,564 million at 31st December 2008 from HK$20,078 million at
31st December 2007, due mainly to (1) the contribution from the
current year’s profit attributable to shareholders, and (2) increase in
currency translation differences reserve.
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Liquidity and Borrowings

In managing the liquidity risk, the Group regularly and closely monitors
its current and expected liquidity requirements to maintain its rolling
cash flow at a level which is considered adequate by the Group to
finance the Group's operations according to its cash flow projections
and to maintain sufficient cash to meet its business development
requirements. As detailed in Note 2 of the financial statements,
management has prepared cash flow projections for the period up to
30th April 2010 and the Group has a number of alternative plans to
offset the potential impact on the Group’s business development,
should there be circumstances that the anticipated cash flow may be
affected by any unexpected changes in global economic conditions.
The Directors consider that the Group will be able to maintain
sufficient financial resources to meet its operation needs.

As at 31st December 2008, the Group’s liability-to-asset ratio (i.e. the
ratio between total liabilities and total assets, excluding minority
interests) was 61% (2007: 58%). The net debt-to-equity ratio (i.e. total
debt less cash and bank deposits over shareholders’ equity) was 63%
(2007: 52%).

As at 31st December 2008, the Group has cash and short-term bank
deposits amounting to HK$2,414 million (2007: HK$2,262 million) of
which approximately HK$87 million (2007: HK$168 million) were
charged by certain banks in respect of the processing of mortgage
facilities granted by the banks to the buyers of the Group’s properties.
98% of the cash and bank deposits were denominated in Renminbi,
0.4% in Hong Kong dollars and 1.6% in United States dollars.

Total borrowings from banks amounted to HK$11,908 million as at
31st December 2008 representing an increase of 45% or HK$3,717
million as compared to those at 31st December 2007. Gearing
measured by net bank borrowings, Guaranteed Senior Notes and
Convertible Bonds less cash and bank deposits as a percentage of
shareholders’ equity, was 63%, up 11 percentage point from 52% as
at 31st December 2007. The increase was mainly due to the increase
in bank borrowings for financing of development of Group’s projects
in 2008.
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Liquidity and Borrowings (continued)

All of the bank borrowings were either secured or covered by
guarantees and were substantially denominated in Renminbi with fixed
interest rates whereas the United States Dollars denominated Senior
Notes and the Renminbi denominated United States Dollars settled
Convertible Bonds due 2010 were both jointly and severally
guaranteed by certain subsidiaries with fixed interest rate, representing
approximately 68%, 15% and 12%, respectively of the Group’s total
borrowings.

All of the other borrowings were unsecured, interest-free and
substantially denominated in Renminbi.

The Group’s borrowing repayment profile as at 31st December 2008
was as follows:

RHEEREE »)

FTERITEESABEFNER BX
BHOUARKETE - I AEEF X
B MBETHEEEZEBERR -2 —
TFEIB|ZARBFEEZELLETRK
BEHABETHERRER M@ EL
BR UUABEFNEFE - =& 5 54
KREBEEBFEL68% * 15% M 12% °

FFEREMERELSREER - 28 RAH
MRARBFHE -

AEBER-EENF+-A=+—A02
EEERHERNT -

As at 31st December 2008 As at 31st December 2007
RZBENF+ZA=1+-H E+-A=1-H
Guaranteed Guaranteed Guaranteed ~ Guaranteed
Bank Senior  Convertible Other Bank Senior ~ Convertible Other
Borrowings notes bond  borrowings Borrowings notes bond  borrowings
REEE RETER REEE RETAR
RITEE 2B &%  HitfEE RITEE B & EthiE &
(HKS million) (HKS million)
(AB%R) (B8%T)
1 year —FR 4,263 - - L4 5,204 (30%) 2,899 — — 375 3274 (25%)
1-2 years —FERE 5,017 - 2,022 - 7,039 (40%) 3,590 — — — 3,590 (28%)
2-5 years —ERHE 2,299 2,663 — — 4,962 (28%) 1,546 2,675 1,753 — 5974 (46%)
After 5 years Ak 329 — — — 329 (2%) 156 — — — 156 (1%)
Total ey 11,908 2,663 2,022 L4 17,534 8,191 2,675 1,753 375 12,994
less: Cashand 35l : &R
bank deposits ~ R4TTF K (2414) (2,262)
Net borrowings &35 15,120 10,732

As at 31st December 2008, the Group had banking facilities of
approximately HK$27,112 million (2007: HK$13,023 million) for short-
term and long-term bank loans, of which HK$15,204 million (2007:
HK$4,832 million) were unutilized.

Financial Guarantee

As at 31st December 2008, the Group provided guarantees to banks
for mortgage facilities granted to buyers of the Group’s properties
which amounted to HK$8,737 million (2007: HK$7,793 million).
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Pending litigations FREFFER

Various Group companies are involved in litigations arising inthe EF&EEBARMAERB B XK BT SR
ordinary course of their businesses. Having reviewed outstanding FRFDR KEBENATEZRELL
claims and taking into account legal advice received, the Directors are EEfGB T2 EREERE EFERAD
of the opinion that adequate provisions have been made in the ERBERERPIELE T EEE -

financial statements.

=

ER

i

U

Charge on Assets

As at 31st December 2008, certain assets of the Group with an R—_EENFE+_A=+—8 &%
aggregate carrying value of HK$10,147 million (31st December 2007: & T 4 8k ™ {8 /&10,147,000,000 /% JT
HK$4,363 million) were pledged with banks for loan facilities used by Z2EE(ZEE+F+-_A=+—8":

subsidiaries, jointly controlled entity and related companies. 4,363,000,0007 70) EFMM B R A ~ &£ [
RHEEREEQARFER BN E K
BT RTT -
Commitments RIE
The Group'’s commitments as at 31st December 2008 were as follows: RZBEZENF+-_A=+—H8 x5%E
ZAEENT
As at As at
31st December  31st December
2008 2007
R-BBENE RZZTZ
+=A
=+—H
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEBTT
Capital commitments BRI
Contracted but not provided for EETHE KRB
— Property construction costs — PIEREERL AN 411 519
— Acquisition of land and equity interests ~ — W BB % T o B A P B 52
in certain Mainland China entities 2 T R AR A R R 656 1,341
— Capital contribution to BJ —RIERRAXEZ
Dongfangwenhua BEARTRE 258 247
1,325 2,107
Authorized but not contracted for BIREBRETH
— Land costs — FHBAR AN 78 93
— Property construction costs — WIEERER A 696 739
774 832
2,099 2,939
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Commitments (continued)

TRIE ()

As at As at
31st December  31st December
2008
AZZENF
+=A
=+—H
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEATT
Property development commitments W) B R RE
Contracted but not provided for EEEEES T
— Property construction costs — MEFERK A 8,599 5,326
Authorized but not contracted for EEREERETH
— Property construction costs — MEFEEK AR 29,365 20,709
37,964 26,035

The Group’s share of capital commitments of the jointly controlled

entity not included in the above were as follows:

URBEE X AEBBE AR
PHER Y EARBMT

As at As at
31st December  31st December
2008
A—EENF
+=A
=+-H
HK$ million
BHEBT
Contracted but not provided for BEETH B R
— Property construction costs — WIEREER A 222 319
Authorized but not contracted for BIRERRETH
— Land costs — B AN — 63
— Property construction costs — MEFERK A 506 196
506 259
728 578
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Commitments (continued)

The Group has operating lease commitments in respect of premises
under various non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The future
aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases are as follows:

T ERZARN ZFIR

Amounts payable

FINANCIAL REVIEW
B 5[0l R

TRIE ()

AEERZNERBEENEZ A EH
KeHEBEMALEHEAE - RIE
FAEHEKLE2MON AR Z & EENE
THRRBEWAT

As at As at

31st December  31st December

2008 2007
R=BENE ]

+=H
Sr=[2
HK$ million
BEER

HK$ million
BEATT

— Within one year — —FR 40 27
— Within two to five years — —Z0HFR 116 97
— After 5 years — RFE 9 24

165 148

With continuous cash inflow from property sales, the banking facilities
available and the cash in hand, the Group is expected to be in an
adequate liquidity position to meet these on-going commitments by
stages.

Treasury Policies

The Group adopts a prudent approach with respect to treasury and
funding policies, with a focus on risk management and transactions
that are directly related to the underlying business of the Group.

a4

AREEARLDH

HRMEHEREEERESRAA ML
APHAZRTEERTFERSE  A&E
EHARREARDE S ARNTRMER
R BEANRANE -

BMEHXK
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFTWE

The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together with
the audited accounts of Hopson Development Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year
ended 31st December 2008.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries,
associates and a jointly controlled entity are principally engaged in
investment holding and property development, investment, property

management and hotel operations.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by activity and their respective
contributions to operating profit for the year ended 31st December
2008 by geographical locations is as follows:

EEEMAREZALAREEERAA
([R2AEDEEMBAR (ATHRMEIA
SEDHEE-_FENF+_A=1+—H
LTEENFHRERLEZRR -

FEER

ARRR—BREZEKRATF - AT S
Brm BMEQARRARENERTIE
REREER DXER VWERE -
MEEBREBRBEELEE -

AEBBE-TETAFT=A=T—8
LFEREEEH 2 ERBERAE A Y
BERFZEMSFOT

Contribution to

Turnover operating Profit

Eap ety il

—E 3] Z B R

HK$000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Guangzhou & M 5,058,950 2,046,244
Beijing = 3,746,211 1,567,650
Shanghai apis! 1,351,075 589,178
Tianjin P 382,004 (263,995)
Huizhou =M 236,384 (87,220)
Others Hi — 226,037
10,774,624 4,077,894

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by business segments for the year
ended 31st December 2008 is as follows:

MEER
MELRE
MEERE
B2 E

Property development
Property investment
Property management
Hotel operations

ARERZ-FE\F+-A=1—A
ItFEREBEDE > NE XTI
™

Turnover

EE S

HK$'000
TAT

10,247,744
65,535
306,306
155,039

10,774,624
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Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 31st December 2008, the five largest customers
of the Group accounted for approximately 1.8% of the Group’s
turnover while the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
approximately 7% of the Group’s purchases. In addition, the largest
customer of the Group accounted for approximately 0.55% of the
Group’s turnover while the largest supplier of the Group accounted for

approximately 6% of the Group’s purchases.

Save for the association with certain related companies as set out in
Note 41 to the accompanying audited financial statements, none of
the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) has a beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers or five largest suppliers.

Results and Appropriations

Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31st December 2008
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 114 of this

annual report.

An interim dividend of HK$0.0951 per share, totalling
HK$140,022,000, was declared and paid during the year. The Directors
recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.105 per share,
which will bring the total dividends for the year ended 31st December
2008 to approximately HK$154,599,000.

Share Capital

Details of movements in share capital of the Company are set out in

Note 26 to the accompanying financial statements.

Reserves

Movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company during the

year are set out in Note 27 to the financial statements.

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31st December 2008,
calculated under the Companies Act of Bermuda, amounted to
HK$123,773,000 (2007: HK$3,848,000).
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TERERHEERS

RBE_ZTTNF+_A=1t—HLHF
EHE AEENAERARELPEAE
BEEBENI8%  MAEENAERZRZAK
HEBAANEARNEERBERLNT% ° -
AEEHNRATEFPHEASEZXED
0.55% - 1M AN 5 B /9 & K 4 /& 7 Al G A
SERBHENC6%

BRREMAKEZHBRRMENAE

HETHERAAEBEN BEES -
MENBEAXTARR(BEEMHA

BRABBARASN ZBAE) RAEE
MABRRAEFPIARRANMHER
BEE#ES -

AEBEHZ_ZEENF+_A=+—H
FFENEEFBIRNATREI14EHN
MAEBHmEANRN -

fERAR B 20,0951 7T + A $£140,022,000
B  ERAFERNEREEZN - EERE
HREREAR B Z 01058 7T © WUt - &L
EZFE)N\FT+ZA=FT—HLEFERE
48 58 15 49 /5 154,599,000 7T °

SR

KRB AEBFBHD
WK M FE26 -

fe& 8

BE P 2 B 7
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A 5 R MY £ 27 ©
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Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable donations totalling
HK$18,652,000 (2007: HK$34,606,000) to various charitable

organizations for charitable purposes.
Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws and there is no restriction against such rights under the laws

of Bermuda.

Properties and Equipment and Investment
Properties

Details of movements in properties and equipment and investment
properties of the Group during the year are set out in Notes 7 and 8 to

the financial statements, respectively.
Subsidiaries and Associates

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries and associates are set out in
Notes 13 and 14 to the financial statements, respectively.

Borrowings

Particulars of borrowings as at 31st December 2008 are set out in Note
24 to the financial statements.

Pension Schemes

Details of the pension schemes are set out in Note 30 to the financial

statements.
Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 234 to 236.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

On 13th April 2006, the Company and Guangdong Hanjiang
Construction Installation Project Limited (“Hanjiang”), being the
respective holding companies of the Group and the Hanjiang Group
(comprising Hanjiang, its subsidiaries and its associates), entered into a
framework agreement (the “Framework Agreement”) setting out,
among other things, the principal terms in respect of services/leased
premises to be provided to the Group by the Hanjiang Group and of
services/leased premises to be provided by the Group to the Hanjiang
Group. The Framework Agreement is effective for a term from 29th
May, 2006 to 31st December 2008. Hanjiang, a company owned by
the brother of Mr. Chu Mang Yee (the controlling shareholder and
chairman of the board of Directors of the Company) (“Mr. Chu”) as to
90 percent and the brother-in-law of Mr. Chu as to 10 percent, is a
connected person of the Company under the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Hence, the transactions
between the Group and the Hanjiang Group as contemplated under
the Framework Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules. Details of such
continuing connected transactions are set out as follows:

(i) Construction

For the three years ended 31st December 2008, the Group may
appoint Guangdong Zhujiang Construction Limited (" GZ
Construction”) and Hanjiang to carry out construction works on
certain property development projects of the Group and
Hanjiang agrees to, and/or procure GZ Construction to, carry out
such construction works for the Group. The construction fees
payable by the Group to Hanjiang and GZ Construction for
carrying out construction works for various property projects of
the Group in the PRC shall be determined by the parties by
reference to the market rate charged by independent third
parties for similar construction projects, which shall conform with
the stipulated standards issued by the relevant government
authorities. As mentioned above, Hanjiang is a connected person
of the Company. GZ Construction, a wholly-owned subsidiary
(directly and indirectly) of Hanjiang, is an associate of Hanjiang
and is therefore a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules. During the year ended 31st December 2008, total
construction fees paid/payable by the Group to Hanjiang and GZ
Construction amounted to approximately HK$2,180,086,000
(2007: HK$2,862,087,000).
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

(i)

(iii)

82

Property management

For the three years ended 31st December 2008, the Group may
appoint Shanghai Hopson Property Management Limited
("Shanghai Hopson”) to manage certain properties developed
and to be developed by the Group in Shanghai. The amount of
management fees payable by the Group to Shanghai Hopson for
providing management services to the said properties in
Shanghai shall be determined by the parties by reference to the
market rate charged by independent third parties for providing
similar property management services in similar locations.
Shanghai Hopson, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
Hanjiang, is an associate of Hanjiang and is therefore a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
During the year ended 31st December 2008, management fees
paid/payable by the Group to Shanghai Hopson amounted to
approximately HK$1,947,000 (2007: HK$2,689,000).

Design

For the three years ended 31st December 2008, the Group may
appoint the Hanjiang Group to carry out design works for certain
property development projects of the Group and Hanjiang agrees
to procure any member of the Hanjiang Group which is engaged
in the business of property design, to carry out such design
works for the Group. The amount of design fees payable by the
Group to the Hanjiang Group for carrying out the design works
for various property development projects of the Group shall be
determined by the parties by reference to the market rate
charged by independent third parties for similar design projects,
which shall conform with certain standards prescribed by the
relevant government authorities. During the year ended 31st
December 2008, design fees paid/payable by the Group to the
Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately HK$27,013,000
(2007: HK$24,298,000).
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

(iv)

(v)

Installation and decoration

For the three years ended 31st December 2008, the Group may
appoint the Hanjiang Group to carry out installation and
decoration works for certain property development projects of
the Group and Hanjiang agrees to procure any member of the
Hanjiang Group which is engaged in the business of installation
and decoration, to carry out such installation and decoration
works for the Group. The amount of installation and decoration
fees payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group for carrying
out the installation and decoration works for various property
development projects of the Group shall be determined by the
parties by reference to the market rate charged by independent
third parties for similar installation and decoration projects,
which shall conform with certain standards prescribed by the
relevant government authorities. During the year ended 31st
December 2008, installation and decoration fees paid/payable by
the Group to the Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately
HK$65,997,000 (2007: HK$28,466,000).

Intelligent-building design and installation

For the three years ended 31st December 2008, the Group may
appoint the Hanjiang Group to carry out intelligent-building
design and installation works for certain property development
projects of the Group and Hanjiang agrees to procure any
member of the Hanjiang Group which is engaged in the business
of intelligent-building design and installation, to carry out such
intelligent-building design and installation works for the Group.
The amount of intelligent-building design and installation fees
payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group for carrying out
intelligent-building design and installation works for various
property development projects of the Group shall be determined
by the parties by reference to the market rate charged by
independent third parties for similar intelligent-building design
and installation works. During the year ended 31st December
2008, intelligent-building design and installation fees paid/
payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group amounted to
approximately HK$16,610,000 (2007: HK$18,720,000).
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Office lease

For the three years ended 31st December 2008, the Hanjiang
Group agrees to lease certain premises in Guangzhou in the
aggregate size of approximately 5,200 square meters to the
Group for use as office. The rent payable by the Group to the
Hanjiang Group will be determined by reference to the market
rents charged by independent third parties for the leasing of
similar properties in the vicinity. During the year ended 31st
December 2008, rental paid/payable by the Group to the
Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately HK$3,524,000
(2007: HK$5,352,000).

Shop lease

For the three years ended 31st December 2008, the Group
agrees to lease certain premises in Guangzhou in the aggregate
size of approximately 6,200 square meters to the Hanjiang
Group for use as shops. The rent receivable by the Group from
the Hanjiang Group will be determined by reference to the
market rents charged by Group for the leasing of the same or
similar properties to independent third parties. During the year
ended 31st December 2008, there was no rental received/
receivable by the Group from the Hanjiang Group (2007: Nil).

(viii) Vacant property management

84

For the three years ended 31st December 2008, the Hanjiang
Group may appoint the Group to manage certain vacant
properties of the Hanjiang Group. The amount of management
fees receivable by the Group from the Hanjiang Group will be
determined by the parties by reference to the market rate
charged by independent third parties for providing similar
property management services in similar location, the location of
the vacant properties and the scope of management services
required, which shall conform with the standards prescribed by
the relevant government authorities. During the year ended 31st
December 2008, vacant property management fees received/
receivable by the Group from the Hanjiang Group amounted to
approximately HK$2,316,000 (2007: HK$1,938,000).
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

The independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the

above transactions and confirmed that:

(i)

(ii)

a.

the above transactions have been conducted at arm’s
length between the parties on normal commercial
terms or, if there are not sufficient comparable
transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favorable to the
Company than terms to or from (as appropriate)
independent third parties;

the above transactions have been entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of the business of the
Group;

the above transactions have been carried out in
accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the

Company as a whole;

during the year ended 31st December 2008, total

construction fees paid/payable to Hanjiang and GZ

Construction amounted to approximately HK$2,180,086,000
(2007: HK$2,862,087,000), which have not exceeded the

annual construction fees paid/payable to Hanjiang and GZ

Construction in respect of the year concerned as disclosed in

the announcement of the Company dated 13th April 2006

(the "Announcement”);
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)
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(iii)

(iv)

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

during the year ended 31st December 2008, management
fees paid/payable to Shanghai Hopson amounted to
approximately HK$1,947,000 (2007: HK$2,689,000),
which have not exceeded the annual management fees
paid/payable to Shanghai Hopson in respect of the year
concerned as disclosed in the Announcement;

during the year ended 31st December 2008, design fees
paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group amounted to
approximately HK$27,013,000 (2007: HK$24,298,000),
which have not exceeded the annual design fees paid/
payable to the Hanjiang Group in respect of the year
concerned as disclosed in the Announcement;

during the year ended 31st December 2008, installation
and decoration fees paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group
amounted to approximately HK$65,997,000 (2007:
HK$28,466,000), which have not exceeded the annual
installation and decoration fees paid/payable to the
Hanjiang Group in respect of the year concerned as
disclosed in the Announcement;

during the year ended 31st December 2008, intelligent-
building design and installation fees paid/payable to the
Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately
HK$16,610,000 (2007: HK$18,720,000), which have not
exceeded the annual intelligent-building design and
installation fees paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group in
respect of the year concerned as disclosed in the
Announcement;
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

(vii) during the year ended 31st December 2008, office rental
paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group amounted to
approximately HK$3,524,000 (2007: HK$5,352,000),
which has not exceeded the annual office rental paid/
payable to the Hanjiang Group in respect of the year
concerned as disclosed in the Announcement;

(viii) during the year ended 31st December 2008, there was no
shop rental received/receivable from the Hanjiang Group
(2007: Nil), so the annual shop rental received/receivable
from the Hanjiang Group in respect of the year concerned
as disclosed in the Announcement has not been exceeded:;
and

(ix) during the year ended 31st December 2008, vacant
property management fees received/receivable from the
Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately HK$2,316,000
(2007: HK$1,938,000), which have not exceeded the
annual vacant property management fees received/
receivable from the Hanjiang Group in respect of the year
concerned as disclosed in the Announcement.

In accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board of
Directors engaged the auditor of the Company to perform certain
factual finding procedures on the above continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Related
Services 4400 “Engagements to Perform Agreed-Upon Procedures
Regarding Financial Information” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has reported the factual
findings on the transactions based on the agreed upon procedures to
the Board of Directors.
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Connected Transactions

During the year ended 31st December 2008, the Group entered into

the following connected transaction:

On 29th January 2008, the Group entered into a land transfer contract
in respect of a piece of land situated at Ma Ju Qiao, Tong Zhou District,
Beijing, the PRC (the “Land”) with Beijing State Land Resources
Bureau. As required under the land transfer contract the Group also
entered into a reimbursement agreement with Beijing Zhujiang Real
Estate Development Company Limited (“Beijing Zhujiang”). Pursuant
to the terms of the reimbursement agreement, a sum of
RMB324,721,500 (equivalent to approximately HK$349,163,000) was
paid to Beijing Zhujiang by the Group upon the signing of the
reimbursement agreement for the reimbursement of the costs incurred
by Beijing Zhujiang in carrying out the first class development of the
Land prior to the sale of the land use right in respect of the Land.
Beijing Zhujiang is an associate of Guangdong Zhujiang Investment
Company Limited, a substantial shareholder of certain subsidiaries of
the Company and the associate of the brother of Mr. Chu. The Land
occupies approximately 129,070 square meters. The Group intends to
develop a commercial complex on the Land containing office and

residential buildings, hotel, entertainment and sport facilities.

In respect of the continuing connected transactions and connected
transaction, the Company has complied with the disclosure

requirements under the Listing Rules in force from time to time.
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Directors and Directors’ Service Contracts

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of

this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chu Mang Yee (Chairman)
Mr. Xiang Bin (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Zhao Hai (Deputy Chairman)
(Resigned on 31st December 2008)
Mr. Chen Chang Ying
(Appointed as Chief Executive Officer on
17th January 2008)
Mr. Au Wai Kin
Ms. Xiao Yan Xia
(Resigned on 19th May 2008)
Mr. Xue Hu
Ms. Zhao Ming Feng
(Appointed on 19th May 2008)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Shafran, Steven

(Resigned on 19th May 2008)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip
Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David
Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver
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Directors and Directors’ Service Contracts
(Continued)

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at annual general

meetings of the Company in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Chu Mang Yee, Mr.
Chen Chang Ying and Mr. Au Wai Kin retire from office by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not terminable within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

Independent Non-Executive Directors’
Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received independence confirmation from each of
the independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu,
Philip, Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David and Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver, and
considers them to be independent.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 41 to the accompanying accounts, no other
contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries, associates, jointly
controlled entity or holding company was a party and in which any of
the Company’s Directors had a material interest, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures

As at 31st December 2008, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), to be notified to the Company and

the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(1) Long positions in shares

Number of shares of the Company
AAARGEA
Corporate

interests

Personal
interests

ETY

Name of directors interests

EEASR

(PN £ REER

D R

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
FERWE

ESERTHREAHRNK D -
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Approximate
percentage of
shares
outstanding
HiEERT
ROBD

Other
interests

H At 1

Mr. Chu Mang Yee (a) sk & {5~ (a) — — 915,542,346 — 915,542,346 62.18%
Mr. Au Wai Kin (b) BUEEE & (D) — — 34,500,000 — 34,500,000 2.34%

Notes:
a. Mr. Chu Mang Yee held 915,542,346 shares of the Company

through Sounda Properties Limited, a company wholly-owned
by him, and HKSCC Nominees Limited.

b. Mr. Au Wai Kin held 34,500,000 shares of the Company
through a company wholly-owned and controlled by him.

A
=

SRREEERAF

W g

a. KREERELEBBHZ2EHBAN
NEEXEARRAAILESPR
HEERBA)BRQARFEAR
NT)915,542,346 B BX 17 -

b BEZLLEEZBEH " A
3

> & W
FESOARAFEEARARDFR
34,500,000 B f% 17 °

—EENFEH 9



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFTWE

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interestsand EZEZER1ITHEHNAKR S - 8
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares RO RELSEECEZR
and Debentures (continued) A

14

N ()

o

(2) Long positions in share options 2 REREZHE
The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was KRRz B & ([%ar8))»
adopted on 4th November 2002. The following table discloses TEE_F+—AUBERK T
movements of the share options granted under the Scheme REBEFRNREZTIRE ZEBK
during the year: ZEHBFN

Number of share options

KRG #HE
Exercise Granted  Exercised Lapsed
price per Beginning during during during
Date of grant share Exercise period of year the year the year the year
RS BRITEE TEH £ FRARE FRATE FRAX
Mr. Wu Jiesi 19th January HK$20.75  19th January 2007 to 7,964,000 — — 7,964,000 —
2007 18th January 2012
REREE  —TTLF 075ET —TTLE-A+HIA
—AThE E25-CF
—A+thA
Mr. Zhao Hai 26th November ~ HK$25.20  26th April 2008 to 1,000,000 — — 1,000,000 —
2007 22nd October 2012
HELE ZEELE BAET ZTTNFMAZ1RB
T-A BEZ-CF
il & TAZ+ZR
8,964,000 — — 8,964,000 —
Note: B 5
Mr. Wu Jiesi and Mr. Zhao Hai resigned as Directors of the Company REBLEELRBEEBLAENPBR -_EE
on 17th January 2008 and 31st December 2008 respectively and NF—A+EtEERZZFEENF+ZA
their unexercised options therefore lapsed upon their resignation. =+ —HEEARAES AUESE

RATEE 2 BAER R FBHER R
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures (continued)

As at 31st December 2008, none of the Directors, chief executives of
the Company and their respective associates had any personal, family,
corporate or other interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would
have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required , pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or
which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors or any of their spouses or children under 18 years
of age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate, and no
Directors or chief executives or their respective spouses or children
under 18 years of age had been granted any right to subscribe for
equity or debt securities of the Company nor exercised any such right.

The Company used Binomial Option Pricing Model to determine the
fair value of the options granted as at the date of grant.

The Binominal Option Pricing Model was developed to estimate the
fair value of American style options. It is one of the commonly used
models to estimate the fair value of an option which can be exercised
before the expiry of the option period. The value of an option varies
with different variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any change
in the variables so adopted may materially affect the estimation of the
fair value of an option.
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Substantial Shareholders

Other than interests disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and
chief executives’ interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures” above, as at 31st December 2008, according
to the register of interests kept by the Company under section 336 of
the SFO, the following entity had interests or short positions in the
shares of the Company which fall to be disclosed to the Company
under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Capacity and nature

Name of shareholder of interests

B3R &8 B RERNE

Beneficial owner

BERBEBA

Sounda Properties Limited

MEEXERAA

Save as disclosed above, the directors are not aware of any other
persons who, as at 31st December 2008, had interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

Information on Share Option Scheme

The following table is a summary of the Scheme disclosed in
accordance with the Listing Rules:

FERR

BEXTEERTRAERNEND  HER
hWhREFER G NRR ] — AR
Bz RZEENFT_A=T+
—HB - BARAREBEZESZ KBS HEHE
3Pb6HRAFEZERM L THE
RARBRDPHEEREBEESRYPE
BIEXVEESE2 R F3 D RBA R AR B 5
ZHEFIRE

e

Approximate

percentage of

Number of

issued shares shares outstanding

B#®T MIEE BT

BHEA Bt 8 2t

915,542,346 62.18%
FREXHIBEEN  RESEHAA - HE

AAEMATR-SENE+-A=+
—ARAAARAAMBELT(TER
BHREEENEXVE) 2 RG A
B 15 o 8 3 R M 5 AR I 2B 5 B R I A 0
EXVHE2REIND BARKARRKE
BRBAAE -

8 BT 0 1

BEETRARZHHOEE e RE
PARNE

1. Purpose of the Scheme As recognition of the contribution of the participants by granting
options to them as incentives or rewards.

A2EERTBEEARGREZER  WALSEY B EREZ

%5

7A=Y

2. Participants of the Scheme Any executive, employee, director (including non-executive director
and independent non-executive director), consultant, adviser and/or
agent of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

ARBSETAMBRANITHRAR  BE  EF (BREIFNTE
ERBUFRTES) ERER - BERRAREA -

ZatElmsaE
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Information on Share Option Scheme BRETSINER @)

(Continued)

3. Total number of shares available for issue
under the Scheme and percentage of
issued share capital as at 21st April 2009
RIBZA B A HITRODBENN -TE
NFOA - +—BEBEETREAESL

4. Maximum entitlement of each participant

under the Scheme

B BT SRS RETEEREORR
23

5. The period within which the shares must

be taken up under an option

AITIERB I E R B R HIR

6.  The minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised

ARTRERT B B AR G HR

7. The amount payable on application or
acceptance of the option and the period
within which payments or calls must or
may be made or loans for such purpose
must be paid
BR 7R SN i A B A M B B 5 2 B A R R
SBAN RO RN ERRFERIEE
Y HARR

100,200,000 shares unless shareholders’ approval has been obtained
pursuant to the terms of the Scheme (approximately 6.81% of issued
share capital).

R IE B KRR EZ T MR FREVS AR R L - 75 Bl 4 100,200,0008% (49152
BITIRAEV681%)

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon the exercise
share options already granted or to be granted to each participant
(including both exercised and outstanding share options) in any 12-
month period up to and including the date of grant shall not exceed
1% of the issued share capital as at the date of grant. Any grant of
further options above the limit shall be subject to certain requirements
as stipulated in the rules of the Scheme.

BRFEZ2EEEEAT _EAAAERNELRE (BEKRTER)
FTUITERABEIT RS ETZROEEE (BREEITEREKRITE
ZBERE)  NMFHEANKEEREBITREN1% - B T EMER
PR FR R AR A 2 AT B RN AR E TR EFTARIR -

Commencing on the date of grant of an option and expiring at 5:00
p.m. on the earlier of the business day preceding the fifth anniversary
thereof and the business day preceding the tenth anniversary of the
day on which the Scheme was adopted.
BERERLAREEZRE AP TBEFNHA — AL XA ER
MZTE B HAFNAI— AL R (URFERE) TFHERIE
& o

Completion of half year's full-time services with the Company or a
subsidiary.

MARBE—HEH B AR TR FEBR -

Nil
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Information on Share Option Scheme BERESTENES @)
(Continued)
8.  The basis of determining the exercise The exercise price is determined by the Board of Directors and shall at
price least be the highest of:
BEITEEMNEE TEEREFSET  REARUTHERSE :

96

a.  the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer of the
relevant options;
REBREBREZ B ARRRONERZAE R RERHK
Mg :

b.  the average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer of the
relevant options;
REERREHEEABRES B 2 A1 I EE % B AR BRI OB
P HRERNTFHYTE

c.  the net asset value per share as determined in accordance with
the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and with
reference to the latest published audited accounts in the annual
report or the latest published unaudited accounts in the interim
report (whichever is more recent) of the Group on the date of
offer of the relevant options; and
R EEEREERD  ERABMBRSEAFELLE
AEESIPHENFRANCEZRE SR BTN
BENRBERRAUNBIHERE) MEE 2 BREEF
(=08

d.  the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

AARDEIE

The remaining life of the Scheme The Scheme was adopted on 4th November 2002 and will expire at
5:00 p.m. on the business day immediately preceding the tenth
anniversary thereof.

&t Bl B TR HARR ERZEE_F+-ANBERA EEETBAFIN —EE%H
TFRRIELL -
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Foreign Exchange Fluctuations

The Group earns revenue and incurs costs and expenses mainly in
Renminbi and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from the
exposure of Renminbi against United States dollars and Hong Kong
dollars. However, the Group experienced no significant foreign
exchange movement and the Directors do not anticipate any significant
foreign exchange loss as a result of changes in exchange rate between
United States dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi in the
foreseeable future.

Management Contract

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was

entered into or existed during the year.
Employees

As at 31st December 2008, the Group, excluding its associate and
jointly controlled entity, employed a total of 7,884 (as at 31st
December 2007: 7,721) staff, the majority of which were deployed in
mainland China. Employees’ costs (including Directors’ emoluments)
amounted to HK$449 million (2007: HK$381 million) for the year
ended 31st December 2008.

The fundamental policy of the Group’s remuneration and incentive
scheme is to link total compensation of Executive Directors, senior
management and employees with the achievement of the Group’s
annual and long-term corporate goals and objectives. Remuneration
package is performance-based and takes into account business
performance, market practice and competitive market conditions in
order to attract, motivate and retain talent. The remuneration package
of Executive Directors and senior management comprises salaries,

bonuses, discretionary bonus and other benefits-in-kind.

Non-executive Directors are compensated with the aim to fairly
represent their efforts and time dedicated to the Board and various
committee meetings. The recommended remuneration package of the
independent Non-executive Directors comprises annual director’s fee

and fee for representation on Board committees.
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Employees (continued)

The remuneration of all the Directors during the financial year,
excluding Directors’ interests in share options of the Company which
are detailed in the paragraph titled “Long positions in share options”
above, is set out in Note 30 to the financial statements.

Particulars of the Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments
disclosed pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Ordinance and
Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules are set out in Note 30 to the financial
statements.

Purchase, Redemption and Sale of the
Company’s Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31st December 2008.

Corporate Governance

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted by

the Company is set out on pages 100 to 109 of the annual report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, the Directors confirm that the
Company has maintained during the year under review the amount of
public float as required under the Listing Rules.
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Events after the Balance Sheet Date

(a

On 16th February 2009 and 28th February 2009, the Group
respectively entered into an agreement for reimbursement of
land development and a land transfer contract with Beijing Bai
Hong Real Estate Development Company Limited and Beijing
State Land Resources Bureau (“Beijing Land Bureau”), for the
transfer of the land use right in respect of a piece of land
situated in Xin Tian Jia Yuan South Zone, Chaoyang District,
Beijing with a site area of approximately 57,313 square
metres. The total consideration of the transaction is
approximately HK$965,370,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB859,180,000).

On 18th February 2009, the Group completed the disposal of
the 50% equity interest in Interwell Developments Limited
(“Interwell”) for a consideration of approximately HK$842
million (USD108 million). Interwell owns 100% equity interest in
Shanghai Mintai Real Estate Co., Ltd., which owns Hopson
International Tower situated in Meiyuan Street, Fang No. 9, Qiu
No. 5, Pudong New District, Shanghai.

Auditor

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs.

PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs.

PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s auditor for the ensuing year

is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the board of Directors

CHU MANG YEE
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21st April 2009
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The Company strives to attain high standards of corporate governance.
The Board believes that effective corporate governance will continue
to improve transparency, risk controls and ultimately enhance

shareholders’ value.

The Company has complied with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) during year 2008, except that the
non-executive directors of the Company are not appointed for specific
terms with the exception of Mr. Steven Shafran (resigned on 19th May
2008) who is appointed for a term of three years, and the Chairman of
the Board did not attend the annual general meeting for year 2008

due to other business commitment.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”) as the code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions. All directors have confirmed, following specific
enquiry by the Company, that they fully complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout year 2008.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises six executive and three independent
non-executive directors, whose biographical details are set out in the
Directors’ Profile section on pages 64 to 66 which demonstrate a
balance of core competence having regard to the business of the
Group. Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, all directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and their re-election is subject to a vote of
shareholders at the annual general meeting. The Board believes that
the independent non-executive directors, with diversified backgrounds
and industry skills, shall offer experience, independent judgment and
advice on issues relating to strategy, performance, conflict of interest
and the overall management of the Company such that the interests

of all shareholders are considered and safeguarded.
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The Board is responsible to the shareholders for leadership and control
of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Group and its business by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs. It oversees the Group’s strategic development, and determines
the objectives, strategies and policies of the Group. The Board also
monitors and controls operating and financial performance in pursuit
of the Group’s strategic objectives. The Board members have access to
timely information in relation to the Group’s business and make further
enquires when necessary. The Board has also agreed that directors may
seek independent professional advice on issues related to the Group’s

business at the Group’s expenses.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other. There is no such
relationship as between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of

legal actions against its directors.

All independent non-executive directors have offered sufficient time
and efforts to serve the business affairs of the Company and possess
appropriate academic and professional qualifications and related
management experience and have contributed to the Board with their

professional opinion.

Of the three independent non-executive directors at least one has
appropriate financial management expertise in compliance with the
Listing Rules. Each independent non-executive director gives the
Company an annual confirmation of his independence, and the Board
considers these directors to be independent under the guidelines set

out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Four Board committees, namely the Remuneration Committee, the
Audit Committee, the Option Shares Committee and the Connected
Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee have been
established to oversee particular aspects of the Group’s affairs. The
Board has delegated the execution and daily operations of the Group’s
business to the management. However, clear directions are given to
the management as to the matters that must be approved by the

Board before decisions are made on behalf of the Group.
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BOARD MEETINGS

The full Board met 9 times during year 2008 under review at which the
directors considered and approved significant matters including,
among other things, interim and financial results of the Group,
statutory financial reports, change in Board members and acquisition
of land and investments. Mr. Xue Hu and Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver
recorded full attendance in respect of such Board meetings while Mr.
Au Wai Kin and Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David attended seven Board
meetings, Mr. Chen Chang Ying attended six Board meetings, Mr.
Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip attended five Board meetings, Mr. Chu Mang Yee
attended four Board meetings, Mr. Xiang Bin attended three Board
meetings, Mr. Zhao Hai, Ms. Zhao Mingfeng, Ms. Xiao Yan Xia and Mr.
Steven Shafran attended two Board meetings.

Notes:

1. Mr. Wu Jiesi resigned on 17th January 2008. No full Board meeting was
held prior to his resignation.

2. Ms. Xiao Yan Xia and Mr. Steven Shafran both resigned on 19th May
2008 and five full Board meetings were held prior to their resignation.

3. Ms. Zhao Mingfeng was appointed as an executive director on 19th May
2008. Four full Board meetings were held between 20th May 2008 and
31st December 2008.

4. Mr. Zhao Hai resigned on 31st December 2008 and nine full Board
meetings were held prior to his resignation.

Fifteen additional Board meetings were held during year 2008 for the
purposes of approving some operational matters such as approval of
the provision of guarantees by the Company in respect of bank loans
granted to the Company’s subsidiaries and change of bank account
signatories. Such meetings were attended by certain executive
directors, namely Mr. Chu Mang Yee (12)*, Mr. Xiang Bin (6)*, Mr.
Zhao Hai (6)*, Mr. Chen Chang Ying (14)*, Mr. Au Wai Kin (13)*, Mr
Xue Hu (13)*, Ms. Zhao Mingfeng (10)* and Ms. Xiao Yan Xia (4)*.

* denotes the number of meetings attended by the director.
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Between Board meetings, the senior management of the Company
provides the directors with information on a timely basis regarding the
activities and developments in the businesses of the Group and meets
with the independent non-executive directors to seek their views on

the business and operational matters of the Group.

The company secretary keeps detailed minutes of each meeting which

are available for inspection by all directors.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

With the exception of Mr. Steven Shafran (a former non-executive
director) who was appointed for a term of three years and resigned
from the Board on 19th May 2008, the three independent non-
executive directors presently in office are not appointed for a specific
term. This constitutes a deviation from Code provision A.4.1 with
respect to the appointment of non-executive directors for a specific
term subject to re-election. However, all directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election by shareholders at the annual
general meeting at least once every three years in accordance with the
Bye-laws of the Company. In the opinion of the Board, this meets the
objective of the Code.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman of the Company is Mr. Chu Mang Yee. The Chief
Executive Officer of the Company is Mr. Chen Chang Ying who
succeeded Mr. Wu Jiesi as Chief Executive Officer upon Mr. Wu lJiesi's
resignation from the Board on 17th January 2008. The role of the
Chairman is segregated from that of the Chief Executive Officer.

The Chairman is responsible for managing and providing leadership to
the Board in terms of formulating overall strategies, business directions
and policies of the Company. The Chairman is also responsible for
overseeing effective functions of the Board, application of good
corporate governance practices and procedures, and encourages the
directors to make a full and active contribution to the affairs of the
Board. With the support of the executive directors and the company
secretary, the Chairman seeks to ensure that all directors are properly
briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and receive complete and

reliable information in a timely manner.
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The Chief Executive Officer is directly responsible for the day-to-day
management of the business of the Company, co-ordinating overall
business operations and maintaining the operational performance of
the Company. With the assistance of the Chief Financial Officer, he
ensures that the funding requirements of the business are met and
closely monitors the operating and financial results against plans and
budgets, taking remedial action when necessary and advising the

Board of any significant developments and issues.
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Remuneration Committee, which comprises all three independent
non-executive directors, meets at least once a year. The Remuneration
Committee is responsible for assisting the Board in achieving its
objective of attracting and retaining directors and senior management
of the highest caliber and experience needed to develop the Group's
business successfully. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible
for the development of a fair and transparent procedure in determining
the remuneration policies for the directors and senior management of
the Company and for determining their remuneration packages. The
Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip and
has specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its
authority and responsibilities and are posted on the Company’s
website. The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee
include:

o formulation of remuneration policy for approval by the Board,;

o establishing guidelines for the recruitment of the Chief Executive

Officer and senior management;

o recommendation to the Board the policy and structure for the
remuneration of Directors (including non-executive directors and

the Chief Executive Officer) and senior management;

° determination of the remuneration of executive directors and
senior management, including benefits in kind and

compensation payments;

o review and approval of the compensation arrangements in
connection with any loss or termination of their office or
appointment, or dismissal or removal for misconduct to executive

directors and senior management;
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o determination of the criteria for assessing employee

performance, and

o consideration of the annual performance bonus for executive
directors, senior management and general staff and making

recommendation to the Board.

One meeting was held by the Remuneration Committee during 2008
to make recommendation to the Board of the remuneration of the
non-executive directors. The meeting was attended by all members of
the Remuneration Committee. In addition, the Remuneration
Committee also approved, by way of written resolutions, the
remuneration of an executive director and a revision of the

remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer.

No director is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.
Remuneration of the independent non-executive directors in respect of
the year ended 31st December 2008 was approved by the shareholders

of the Company at the 2008 annual general meeting.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Group does not have a Nomination Committee. New directors,
being individuals who are suitably qualified and expected to make a
positive contribution to the performance of the Board having regard to
the balance of skills and experience appropriate to the Company’s
business, are identified by existing directors and submitted to the
Board for approval. A director appointed by the Board is subject to re-
election by shareholders at the first annual general meeting after this

appointment.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the fees payable to the Company’s auditor for audit
and audit related services amounted to HK$5,000,000 (2007:
HK$4,980,000) and no fee (2007: nil) was paid for non-audit services.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises the three independent non-executive
directors. It was chaired by Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip. The Board is of
the opinion that the members of the Audit Committee have sufficient
accounting and financial management expertise or experience to
discharge their duties. However, the Audit Committee is authorised to
obtain outside legal or other independent professional advice if it
considers necessary. The Audit Committee has written terms of
reference which are posted on the Company’s website. The principal

functions of the Audit Committee include:

. to make recommendations on the appointment, reappointment
and removal of external auditor and to consider the terms of

such appointments;

o to develop and implement policies on the engagement of
external auditor for non-audit services;

o to monitor the integrity of the financial statements, annual and
interim reports and the auditor’s report to ensure that the
information presents a true and balanced assessment of the

Group's financial position;
o to ensure the management has fulfilled its duty to maintain an
effective internal control system;

o to review internal audit programme and to ensure that it is
allocated with adequate resources and is effective, and

o to review the external auditor’s management letter and any

questions raised by the auditor to the management and the
management'’s response.
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In year 2008, the Audit Committee reviewed the results of an
assessment of the Group’'s internal control systems, business
management and preventions against fraud and other irregularities by
the external auditors. With respect to the results of the Company for
the year ended 31st December 2008, the Audit Committee reviewed
with the senior management and the auditor of the Company, their
respective audit findings, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and internal control, risk management and
financial reporting matters. This review by the Audit Committee
included an appraisal of the integrity of the financial statements of the
Company and the annual report and accounts of the Company. The
Audit Committee also reviewed the external auditor’s remuneration.
There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment or resignation of external
auditor.

The Audit Committee reports its work, findings and recommendations
to the Board after each meeting. During the year 2008, there were
two Audit Committee meetings which were attended by all its

members.

BOARD COMMITTEES

In addition to the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee,
two other Board Committees have been established to assist the Board

in the execution of its duties.

(1) Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions
Committee

The Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions
Committee was established on 4th October 2005 and is
presently comprised of the three independent non-executive
directors, and chaired by Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip. The primary
function of the Connected Transactions/Related Party
Transactions Committee is to review all connected transactions
and related party transactions to ensure that they are conducted
on normal commercial terms and in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group and to recommend to the Board
corrective measures in such transactions if needed.
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(2) Option Shares Committee

The Option Shares Committee was established on 4th November
2005 and is comprised of two executive directors. Its primary
function is to deal with the allotment and issue of shares of the
Company upon the exercise of options granted or to be granted
under the Company’s share option scheme adopted on 4th
November 2002.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for presenting a clear and balanced
assessment of the Group’s performance, position and prospects. It is
also responsible for preparing accounts that give a true and fair view
of the Group’s financial position on a going-concern basis and other
price-sensitive announcements and financial disclosures. Management
provides the Board with the relevant information it needs to discharge

these responsibilities.

In preparing the accounts for the year ended 31st December 2008, the
directors have selected appropriate accounting policies and applied
them consistently, and have made judgements and estimates that are

prudent and reasonable.

The Group has announced its annual and interim results in a timely
manner within the limits of four months and three months respectively
after the end of the relevant financial periods, as laid down in the

Listing Rules.

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining sound and effective
internal controls to safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’
interests. The directors confirm that the Group, through its Internal
Control Department, performs regular checks on office procedures,
practices and systems to safeguard assets from inappropriate use,
maintains proper accounts and ensures compliance with regulations.
The regular reviews also cover all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
of the Group. The Internal Control Department reports directly to the
Group Supervisory Committee which in turn reports independently to
the Board. The Internal Control Department is independent of all
management functions of the Group and has direct and independent
access to the Board. Summaries of major audit findings and control

weaknesses, if any, are reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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In year 2008, no frauds and irregularities, internal control deficiencies
or infringement of laws, rules and regulations have come to the
attention of the Audit Committee to cause it to believe that the system
of internal controls is inadequate. The Board is satisfied with the

adequacy of the system of internal control of the Company.

Circulars or guidance notes were issued to directors where appropriate
to ensure that they are aware of their continuing obligations as

directors and corporate governance matters.

CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company continues to promote and enhance investor relations
and communications with its investors. Communication have been
maintained with the media, analysts and fund managers through
meetings. Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue
with institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the

Company’s developments.

The Company provides detailed press releases and reports to its
shareholders on the Group's business and financial positions with
timely annual report and interim report, to ensure that they are
effectively informed of the Group’s status and developments. General
presentations are made immediately after the announcement of
financial results. The website of the Group is also updated regularly to
keep investors and the general public informed of the latest

development of the Group.

The Company’s annual general meetings allow the directors to meet
and communicate with shareholders, providing a forum for the
shareholders’ views to be communicated to the Board. Both directors
and senior management make an effort to attend. External auditors
are also available at the annual general meetings to address
shareholders’ queries. Separate resolutions are proposed for each issue
considered at the annual general meetings. The annual general
meeting circulars are distributed to all shareholders at least 21 days
prior to the annual general meetings, setting out details of each
proposed resolution, voting procedures (including procedures for
demanding and conducting a poll) and other relevant information. The
procedures for demanding and conducting a poll are explained by the
chairman presiding at the annual general meetings at the beginning of
the meetings. The respective proxies received for and against each

resolution are reported to the meetings.
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
B BB R

PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

BOIRKEGTMERHR

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hopson
Development Holdings Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 112
to 233, which comprise the balance sheets of the Company and the
Group as at 31st December 2008, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated cash flow statement and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31st December 2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 21st April 2009
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BALANCE SHEETS
EERER

As at 31st December 2008
R-ZFENF+-_A=+—H
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Consolidated Company
oy NG|
2008 2007 2008
—EENE TLF —EENE z
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B & TET FET TET TAET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Land costs =+ 3 X AN 6 749,663 639,205 — —
Prepayments for acquisition YeBg 3 B 500
of land 19 2,436,630 — — —
Properties and equipment I EE 7 2,405,623 2,063,811 — —
Investment properties BEME 8 2,856,094 2,736,835 — —
Properties under development  #{ERHIR & 2
for long-term investment BROYE 9 125,856 135,157 — —
Intangible assets EVEE 12 120,455 111,819 — —
Investments in subsidiaries RHBARZEKE 13 — — 11,328,978 9,506,595
Investments in associates REENRZHRE 14 42,201 39,206 — —
Investment in a jointly R—HEXREHEE
controlled entity 2% E 15 801,240 676,460 = =
Loans to subsidiaries WBARIZER 13 — — 170,499 1,006,420
Available-for-sale L ERBEE
financial asset 18 476,250 463,158 — —
Deferred tax assets EETBEE 25 173,378 107,878 = —
10,187,390 6,973,529 11,499,477 10,513,015
Current assets REBEE
Land costs TR 6 24,163,460 16,151,494 — —
Prepayments for acquisition Bt B AR
of land 19 6,142,999 12,027,112 — —
Properties under development A & 7 2R ) £
for sale 10 8,910,522 5,183,349 — —
Completed properties forsale  AIEEHEZ B &R TE 1 4,806,954 2,180,924 — —
Financial assets at fair value RATEEBEBZRIER
through profit or loss ME KB E 17 11,655 20,280 — —
Accounts receivable & i BR 3K 20 72,577 138,743 - —
Other receivables H & Uk 3R 20 758,405 682,815 - —
Prepayments, deposits and BEXE Rk
other current assets HEMrBEE 19 770,163 2,273,376 199 —
Due from an associate Bl —HBLRAEFHE M 26,538 22,344 — —
Due from related companies & W B3 A Al 50 0E 41 6,979 17,390 — —
Loans to subsidiaries MBRAZEX 13 — — 1,334,367 1,390,892
Pledged/charged bank deposits 2 # /MR HTHER 21 271,450 277,031 — —
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEEeEEY 21 2,142,696 1,985,055 785 28,494
48,084,398 40,959,913 1,335,351 1,419,386
Total assets HWEE 58,271,788 47,933,442 12,834,828 11,932,401
EQUITY i £
Capital and reserves ANFREREA
attributable to the EERERGEE
Company's equity holders
Share capital P& X 26 147,237 147,237 147,237 147,237
Reserves i 27 20,032,657 17,717,146 7,949,909 7,310,700
20,179,894 17,864,383 8,097,146 7,457,937
Minority interests DB R 2,384,179 2,213,927 - —
Total equity BRAE 22,564,073 20,078,310 8,097,146 7,457,937



BALANCE SHEETS
EERER

As at 31st December 2008
RZFEENF+-_A=4+—H

Consolidated Company
oy NG
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE —TTLHF —EENE —TTLHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER TET FTER FET
LIABILITIES af
Non-current liabilities krBaE
Land cost payable JE & £ i Bk A 22 106,173 175,959 - —
Borrowings = 24 12,330,211 9,718,998 4,685,439 4,427,188
Due to a minority shareholder ~ Ef —R V&R R
LB 4 49,983 — — —
Deferred tax liabilities EEMERE 25 3,890,102 3,867,687 = =
16,376,469 13,762,644 4,685,439 4,427,188
Current liabilities REEE
Accounts payable ANE N 23 2,933,721 953,128 — —
Land cost payable JE 5+ 3 B 2R 22 323,696 605,289 — —
Borrowings BTE 24 4,262,798 2,898,895 — —
Deferred revenue i T WA 4,458,379 4,981,769 — —
Accruals and other payables  fE =t B R
Hh e 30E 2,249,864 1,763,446 38,313 39,372
Due to an associate [Eff—fEB & AR
L M 6,258 5,624 — —
Due to related companies [T B ARl 2 3IE 41 174,920 137,836 = =
Due to a jointly controlled entity J&{f — [l 3£ [F] 122 ) & 82
ZHE 4 759,380 231,253 — —
Current tax liabilities AHHBEE 25 4,162,230 2,515,248 13,930 7,904
19,331,246 14,092,488 52,243 47,276
Total liabilities EfREE 35,707,715 27,855,132 4,737,682 4,474,464
Total equity and liabilites  EXRABEHAE 58,271,788 47,933,442 12,834,828 11,932,401
Net current assets REEETE 28,753,152 26,867,425 1,283,108 1,372,110
Total assets less current BEERABER
liabilities 38,940,542 33,840,954 12,782,585 11,885,125

CHU MANG YEE

R &K
Director

EF

The notes on pages 119 to 233 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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CHEN CHANG YING
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
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For the year ended 31st December 2008
BE—FENF+_A=Z+—HIEFE

2008 2007
—EENF —ZEELF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FET
Revenues W 25 5 10,774,624 11,130,643
Cost of sales Fis =D 29 (5,915,976) (6,669,998)
Gross profit £ F 4,858,648 4,460,645
Other gains, net Hib Wz - F58 28 299,471 1,493,717
Selling and marketing costs Y E &5 HEE R AN 29 (389,348) (281,082)
General and administrative expenses  — % & 17X & 29 (690,877) (510,672)
Operating profit AR T 4,077,894 5,162,608
Finance income B 75 0 A 31 12,376 50,394
Finance costs B 75 B 2R 31 (226,765) (136,916)
Share of profit less loss of associates %3 1l B & A 714 F1 8 & 18 14 (33) (599)
Share of (loss)/profit of and SEHEEGER (EE)
other gains relating to s ) R E Ath U S
jointly controlled entities 15 (1,710) 101,964
Profit before taxation B B A i ) 3,861,762 5,177,451
Taxation 1B 32 (1,912,812) (1,629,245)
Profit for the year FE A 1,948,950 3,548,206
Attributable to: FE(L
Equity holders of the Company RANFRERZE A 33 1,963,724 3,517,312
Minority interests D BRS HRE 2R (14,774) 30,894
1,948,950 3,548,206
Earnings per share for profit BRENRRATREFREA
attributable to the equity holders EiEaFTE 2
of the Company during the year R AT
(in HK$ per share) (B T)
— basic — EK 34 1.33 2.54
— diluted — # 34 1.33 2.49
Dividends % B 35 294,621 616,922

FI9BEF233B ZH T AU B RE
e —3ZpG o

The notes on pages 119 to 233 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOUDATH)CASHFLOW/gﬁﬂEMENT
mEESmRER

For the year ended 31st December 2008
BE—TZENF+_A=+—HIEFE

2008 2007
SLIC I

HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET

Cash flows from operating activities REEBH2RERE

Cash generated from operations RS ELE 7IH S 36(a) 875,222 815,688
Interest received B U F B8 12,376 50,394
Hong Kong profits tax (paid)/refunded (& 1) /;EEE,% FM1EF (2,047) 9,612
Mainland China corporate income B R KEREMRSEH

tax paid (580,815) (660,696)
Mainland China land appreciation B AR B K B £ i 3 E

tax paid (114,866) (86,786)
Net cash from operating activities REEHEL RS TR 189,870 128,212
Cash flows from investing activities REZFHZHEHRE
Additions of properties and equipment  B& A #) 2 K & 15 (277,983) (562,091)
Additions of properties BABERHAKREZ

under development for TR E

long-term investment (87,034) (27,859)
Decrease/(increase) in deposit paid EffEEmL (8 m) 340,632 (504,615)
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B B /B 1 R 40 (801,096) (903,497)
Acquisition of an associate U B8 — S B & A |) — (39,821)
Capital injection to a jointly m—EEREHEEEE

controlled entity (71,548) —
Increase in other receivables H ) F& W 3K IE $E 0 (59,957) (654,185)
Advanced payment for acquisition U B B S HE 2 2 TR BRIE

of equity interests (12,337) (1,148,526)
Advanced payment for acquisition of WET I IEREIIRE 2

land for long-term investment SEERE @] (550,925) (250,226)
Decrease in amounts due from FE W R E R ﬂ IR

related companies 36,773 61,804
Decrease/(increase) in pledged/charged = ## /#H:0 4R 1T 172 X

bank deposits B (3 ) 25,974 (107,809)
Net cash used in investing activities WEEHMA RS F5 (1,457,501) (4,136,825)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

E=AN ANy =i —1

“r = fﬁi/}lbii’%

For the year ended 31st December 2008
BE—FENF+_A=Z+—HIEFE

2008 2007
—2ENEF —ZTTtHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FHAT
Cash flows from financing activities BEEH2RELERE
New short-term bank loans B HRITE R 950,821 500,702
Repayments of short-term bank loans (& 1% 2 Hi 4R 17 & X (806,174) (332,764)
New long-term bank loans I EHETER 6,661,238 4,939,311
Repayment of long-term bank loans BERHARITER (3,967,291) (2,520,145)
Repayment to an associate EE—FHBE QA HRIE (2,185) (21,726)
Advances from a jointly controlled entity — f&] £ [7] 12 | B & 24 3% = 219,690
Advances from a minority shareholder ~— — %4 > 1 j% & # 5K 49,983 —
Interest paid EEREAPES (1,017,469) (674,503)
Proceeds from issue of shares TP P15 A = 35,295
Share issue expenses R 1D BEITHR X = (20)
Issue of convertible bonds BT B E S = 1,790,801
Capital contributions from MEBARLHRREER
minority interest of subsidiaries H & 14,056 —
Dividends paid to Company’s Vi il /NI -
equity holders BEAZKRE (611,180) (494,433)
Net cash from financing activities MmEEHELE RS FE 1,271,799 3,442,208
Net increase/(decrease) in cash REeRREEEBYR
and cash equivalents #wim GRd) FE 4,168 (566,405)
Cash and cash equivalents at FNHREREEEED
beginning of the year 1,985,055 2,412,479
Exchange gain on cash and RekBReZEEYL
cash equivalents PE 5 U 25 153,473 138,981
Cash and cash equivalents FRALRBECEED
at end of the year 2,142,696 1,985,055

FI9BEF23B3B ZH AU B ERE
Heh—3ZG o

The notes on pages 119 to 233 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GARNEDS

For the year ended 31st December 2008
RE-FEN\E+-A=+—AIFE

Attributable to equity
holders of the Company
RPRRERE AER
Share Minority
capital Reserves interests Total
DERR
LN A B A5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
Balance at 1st January 2007 RZZEE+5—H—H
& 128,510 7,709,155 390,250 8,227,915
Fair value gain on available-for-sale HHETBEEL
financial asset NFE W= — 151,965 — 151,965
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of tax ~ ItEE KT B A & (1%
BRE%) — 2,180,096 — 2,180,09
Realised upon disposal of properties M & {EHEMEREE
held for sales (Note 27) (Fi&E27) — (513,811) — (513,811)
Deferred tax EERIE — 183,026 — 183,026
Currency translation differences EHEY =5 — 696,153 66,336 762,989
Net income recognised directly ERTREEROFURA
in equity — 2,697,429 66,836 2,764,265
Profit for the year FERT — 3,517,312 30,894 3,548,206
Total recognised income for the year ~ EZ2 —ZZ+F
ended 31st December 2007 +t-A=+—HIFE
ERRBALE — 6,214,741 97,730 6,312,471
Proceeds from issue of share, BIIRMZFBERE
net of share issue expenses (MBRETRSE)
— Share consideration — RHAKE 18,223 3,981,777 — 4,000,000
— Employee share options scheme — EEBREE 504 34,771 — 35,275
Share-based payment R BER 2 BN
(Share options granted) (BERLERE) — 43,401 — 43,401
Issue of convertible bonds BT RES — 227,734 — 227,734
Acquisition of subsidiaries WG b B 2 7 — — 177,988 177,988
Contribution from minority DEBRRLE
shareholders — — 1,547,959 1,547,959
Dividends paid ETRE = (494,433) = (494,433)
18,727 3,793,250 1,725,947 5,537,924
Balance at 31st December 2007 R-ZEZT+F
TZA=+t—RZ&#R 147,237 17,717,146 2,213,927 20,078,310
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GARNEDS

For the year ended 31st December 2008
HE-FENF+-A=+—AIFE

Attributable to equity
holders of the Company
RPRRERE AERL
Share Minority
capital Reserves interests Total
DERR
LN A B B 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
Balance at 1st January 2008 RZZZN\F—HA—H
2R 147,237 17,717,146 2,213,927 20,078,310
Fair value loss on available-for-sale AMHLEHBEEY
financial asset NEEER — (20,513) — (20,513)
Realised upon disposal of HEREHENEBER
properties held for sales (Note 27) (Mis£27) — (546,921) — (546,921)
Deferred tax EREHIE — 225,992 — 225,992
Currency translation differences EHEY =5 — 1,301,405 170,970 1,472,375
Net income recognised directly ERTREBERNFHRA
in equity — 959,963 170,970 1,130,933
Profit/(loss) for the year FERH/(BB) — 1,963,724 (14,774) 1,948,950
Total recognised income for the year ~ EHZZZTTN\F
ended 31st December 2008 +t-A=+—HIEEE
EHRARALR — 2,923,687 156,196 3,079,883
Share-based payment MR AER 2 EH
(Share options granted) (ERL ZBRRE) — 3,004 — 3,004
Contribution from minority DERELE
shareholders — — 14,056 14,056
Dividends paid BERRE = (611,180) — (611,180)
— (608,176) 14,056 (594,120)
Balance at 31st December 2008 RZEENF
+t-A=+—Hz&% 147,237 20,032,657 2,384,179 22,564,073

FI9BEF23B3EZH AU B EHRE
e —3pG o

The notes on pages 119 to 233 are an integral part of these financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General information

Hopson Development Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) is mainly engaged in the
development of residential properties in Mainland China. The
Group is also involved in some ancillary property related
businesses, including property investment, property management
and hotel operations.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

The consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 21st April 2009.

Summary of significant accounting
policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to the two years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The Group meets its working capital requirements mainly
through sales of properties and borrowings from banks.
Management has prepared cash flow projections for the
period up to 30th April 2010 which have been adopted
and approved by the Directors. Key assumptions used in
the preparation of the cash flow projections include: (1)
new bank borrowings will be successfully obtained by the
Group; (2) certain existing bank borrowings due for
repayment will be successfully renewed on substantially
the same existing terms; (3) the level of sales volume and
turnover in 2009 is not expected to be lower than that of
2008, and (4) the Group will be able to renegotiate the
payment schedule for certain land premiums and project
acquisitions. In addition, management has taken into
consideration the redemption of the Company’s Zero
Coupon Convertible Bonds due in February 2010 in the
preparation of the cash flow projections. The Directors
believe the above key assumptions are reasonable based
on the following:

(1)  Good relationship with banks has been maintained.
Leveraged on the Group’s quality projects and brand
name, banks are supportive of the Group’s business
development;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

sre TR M

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(2)  The Group’s history has shown that bank loans have
been settled in accordance with the repayment
schedule without any default and therefore new

bank loans are likely to be obtained successfully to

finance projects;

(3) Restored market confidence has brought in
satisfactory contracted sales to the Group in the first

quarter of 2009 and the Group is optimistic in

achieving its 2009 sales target, and

(4)  On account of the outstanding delivery of some land
plots by various local governments in strict
accordance with agreement terms, and certain
outstanding government approval procedures
coupled with the recent policies introduced by the
Beijing and Guangzhou government authorities for
extending payment of land premiumes, it is likely that
the Group will not be required to settle certain

outstanding land premiums during the forecast

period.

Notwithstanding the above, should there be any material
unexpected impact on the Group’s anticipated cash flow
position, the Group has a number of alternative plans to
meet its business development requirements, which
include (1) disposing of certain commercial property
projects; (2) obtaining further bank loans by pledging
certain property projects as collateral; (3) slowing down the
construction of investment properties in order to provide
additional resources for the development of properties for
sale; (4) carrying out cost control measures, and (5)
accelerating property sales with flexible pricing. The Group

will pursue such options as are appropriate with prudent

assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR I

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

With the continuing introduction of favourable policies by
the Central Government, and having regard to certain data
of the first quarter in 2009, for example: (1) contracted
sales reached approximately RMB3.02 billion; (2)
repayment of bank loans amounted to approximately
RMB1.11 billion; (3) new bank loans in the aggregate
amount of approximately RMB1.71 billion have been
obtained; (4) taking into account that the Group has
received non-binding intent for credit lines from banks, the
total banking facilities as at 31st March 2009 stood at
approximately RMB21.9 billion of which unutilized banking
facilities amounted to approximately RMB10.5 billion. The
issuance of such non-binding offers for credit lines is not
uncommon in the PRC, and (5) a healthy cash level of
approximately RMB3.08 billion was held at 31st March
2009, the Directors are confident of the Group’s business
plans and its capabilities to maintain sufficient financial
resources to meet its operation needs.

The Directors will actively and regularly review and monitor
the Group's risk exposure to ensure that appropriate
measures will be implemented and actions will be carried
out on a timely and effective manner. The Group’s
objectives are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern and to continue to provide the shareholders with
optimal returns. The Directors consider that the Group will
have sufficient financial resources in the foreseeable future
to finance its operations and continue as a going concern
and have thus prepared the financial statements on the
going concern basis.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except as disclosed in
the accounting policies below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BB HRR M T

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial

statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to

conform with the industry practice.

In 2008, the Group adopted the following amendment
and interpretation of HKFRS, which are effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1st January 2008

and relevant to the Group’s operations.

Amendments and interpretation effective in 2008
HK(IFRIC)-Int 11, “
transactions”

HKFRS 2 — Group and treasury share
, provides guidance on whether share-based
transactions involving treasury shares or involving group
entities (for example, options over a parent’s shares) should
be accounted for as equity-settled or cash settled share-based
payment transactions in the stand-alone accounts of the
parent and group companies. This interpretation does not

have any material impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR I

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 (Amendment) “Reclassification of
Financial Assets” (effective from 1st July 2008
prospectively) permits an entity to reclassify non-derivative
financial assets (other than those designated at fair value
through profit or loss by the entity upon initial recognition)
out of the fair value through profit or loss category in
particular circumstances. The amendment also allows an
entity to reclassify a financial asset from the available-for-
sale category to loans and receivables if it would have met
the definition of loans and receivables and the entity now
has the intent and ability to hold that asset for the
foreseeable future. This amendment does not have any
impact on the Group’s financial statements as the Group
has not reclassified any financial assets.

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
has issued certain new/revised standards, amendments and
interpretations which are relevant to the Group but are not
effective for accounting periods beginning on 1st January
2008.
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HKAS 1 (Revised)

A ERNE 1R (LELT)
HKAS 23 (Revised)

BB L EANFE 235 (KEE])
HKAS 27 (Revised)

BB ERFE 275 (L{ER])
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

BEREMBREERFE 2R (BFTX)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

BERMBREENFIN (KEFT)

HKFRS 8
BEAMBHEEAESH
HK(IFRIC)-Int 15

EE(ARMBBREREZES)
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Presentation of Financial Statements
B HREZ 27
Borrowing Costs
fEEK A
Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements

makBIMBERER

Share-based Payment Vesting Conditions

and Cancellations
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Business Combinations
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Operating Segments
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Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
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1st January 2009
—EENEFE—A—H
1st January 2009
—ZEZNFE—-A—H
1st July 2009

—ZEENF+LHA—H
1st January 2009

—ZEZNFE—-A—H
1st July 2009
—ETAFLA—F
1st January 2009
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1st January 2009
—ZEZNFE-A—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR I A

2.

Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2. FESHTHEEME »)

21 REEE(E)

HKAS 1 Amendment Presentation of Financial Statements 1st January 2009
BEEGALERE 1R (BATR) BBHR 22T —ZETAF—-A—H
HKAS 16 Amendment Property, Plant and Equipment 1st January 2009
BEEGTLERE 165 (BFTAK) ME - BB RERE —ZETAF—-A—H
HKAS 19 Amendment Employee Benefits 1st January 2009
BEEGTLERE 195 (BFTAK) BB REFI —ETAF—-A—H
HKAS 20 Amendment Accounting for Government Grants and 1st January 2009
Disclosure of Government Assistance
BB G ERE205% (BFTAK) BRERz S RERBNENZKE —ZTTAF—HA—H
HKAS 23 Amendment Borrowing Costs 1st January 2009
BB G ERE235% (BFTX) fEEKA —ZETNE—-A—H
HKAS 27 Amendment Consolidated and Separate Financial 1st January 2009
Statements
BB ERE275 (BFTAK) maRBYLMBERR —ZETAF—-A—H
HKAS 28 Amendment Investments in Associates 1st January 2009
BB ERE 285 (BT AK) RBERRZKRE —ZETAF—-A—H
HKAS 31 Amendment Interests in Joint Ventures 1st January 2009
BB EREINFE (BFTAX) REErELER —ZETAF—-A—H
HKAS 36 Amendment Impairment of Assets 1st January 2009
BB G ERE365 (EFTAK) BERME —ZETAF-A—H
HKAS 38 Amendment Intangible Assets 1st January 2009
BB ERIE385% (BT AK) BREE —ZETAF—-A—H
HKAS 39 Amendment Financial Instruments: Recognition and 1st January 2009
Measurement
BER G ERE39% (BEIA) SRIA: BRAKGE —ETAF—FA—H
HKAS 40 Amendment Investment Property 1st January 2009
BB G EREA05% (BT AK) REME —ZETNE—-A—H

The Group has not early adopted the above standards,
amendments and interpretations in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31st December
2008. Management is in the process of making an
assessment of the impact of these standards, amendments
and interpretations but is not yet in a position to state
whether they would have a significant impact on the
Group’s results and financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries made
up to 31st December.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has
the power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding of
more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that
are currently exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group controls another
entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to
account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the
Group. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date
of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of
any minority interest. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in the income
statement (see Note 2.8).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BB HRR M T

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(@) Subsidiaries (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between Group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated but
considered an impairment indicator of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the

Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost together with advances
by the Company, which are either planned nor likely
to be settled in the foreseeable future, less provision
for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted by the Company on the basis of dividends

received and receivable.

(b) Transactions with minority interests

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions
with minority interests as transactions with parties
external to the Group. Disposals to minority interests
results in gains and losses for the Group that are
recorded in the income statement. Purchases from
minority interests result in goodwill, being the
difference between any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net

assets of the subsidiary.

(c) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for by using the equity method of
accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The
Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
(net of any accumulated impairment loss) identified

on acquisition (see Note 2.8).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR I

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(o)

Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in the income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the associates. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in
associated companies are stated at cost less provision
for impairment losses. The results of associated
companies are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(d)

Joint ventures

A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture where the
Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity which is subject to joint control and none of
the participating parties has unilateral control over
the economic activity. Investment in jointly controlled
entity is accounted for under the equity method of
accounting, whereby the investment is initially
recorded at cost and is adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
results, distributions received, other necessary
alterations in the Group’s proportionate interest in
jointly controlled entity arising from changes in
equity of jointly controlled entity that have not been
included in the income statement of the jointly
controlled entity, the excess of cost of investment
over the Group’s share of the aggregate fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired at the date of
acquisition is tested annually for impairment, as well
as when there is indication of impairment, and
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
The Group’s share of post-acquisition results after
taxation of jointly controlled entities is included in
the income statement.

A joint venture which does not involve the
establishment of a separate entity but involves the
joint control and ownership by the Group and other
parties of assets contributed to, or acquired for the
purpose of, the joint venture is accounted for as a
jointly controlled asset. The Group’s share of jointly
controlled assets and any liabilities incurred jointly with
other joint venture partners are recognised and
classified according to the nature of the relevant items.
Income from the sale or use of the Group’s share of
the output of jointly controlled assets is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the Group,
whilst the Group’s share of expenses in respect of
jointly controlled assets is recognised as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR I

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.3 Segment reporting

2.4

A geographical segment is engaged in providing products
or services within a particular economic environment that
are subject to risks and returns that are different from
those of segments operating in other economic
environments. A business segment is a group of assets and
operations engaged in providing products or services that
are subject to risks and returns that are different from
those of other business segments.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

(c)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured in Chinese
Renminbi, which is the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company and
its subsidiaries operate (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is the presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i)  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

sre IR M

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Group companies (Continued)

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated
at the dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign
operations and of borrowings are taken to
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is
sold, exchange differences that were recorded in
equity are recognised in the income statement as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing date.

2.5 Properties and equipment

Properties and equipment other than construction in
progress are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are expensed in the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR I
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2. Summary of significant accounting 2.
policies (continued)

25 WERKRE(E)

2.5 Properties and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of properties and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Hotel property (superstructure) 28 to 50 years

Buildings Shorter of useful life

or lease term

Furniture and office equipment 5 years

Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,

and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is

greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Construction in progress is investments in buildings on
which construction work has not been completed and
which, upon completion, management intends to hold for
long-term. These properties are carried at cost which
includes construction expenditures, borrowing costs
directly attributable to construction of such properties and
other direct costs less any impairment losses. On
completion, the properties are transferred to the
appropriate categories of properties and equipment at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. No depreciation is
provided for construction in progress until they are

completed and put into commercial use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the
income statement.
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BB HRR M T

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.6

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by

the Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating
leases and buildings held under finance leases. Land held
under operating leases are classified and accounted for as
investment property when the rest of the definition of
investment property is met. The operating lease is
accounted for as if it were a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,

including related transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at
fair value. Fair value is based on active market prices,
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature,
location or condition of the specific asset. If this
information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active
markets or discounted cash flow projections. These
valuations are performed in accordance with the guidance
issued by the International Valuation Standards Committee.
These valuations are performed annually by external
valuers. Changes in fair values are recognised in the

income statement as part of other gains.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other
things, rental income from current leases and assumptions
about rental income from future leases in the light of
current market conditions. The fair value also reflects, on a
similar basis, any cash outflows that could be expected in
respect of the property. Some of those outflows are
recognised as a liability, including finance lease liabilities in
respect of land classified as investment property; others,
including contingent rent payments, are not recognised in
the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.6

Investment properties (Continued)

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as properties and equipment, and its fair value
at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for
accounting purposes. Property that is being constructed or
developed for future use as investment property is
classified as properties under development for long-term
investment and stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses until construction or development is
complete, at which time it is reclassified and subsequently

accounted for as investment property.

If an item of properties and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed, any
difference resulting between the carrying amount and the
fair value of this item at the date of transfer is recognised
in equity as a revaluation of properties and equipment
under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain reverses a
previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the

income statement.

Investment property held for sale without redevelopment is

classified as non-current asset held for sale, under HKFRS 5.
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BB HRR M T

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.7

2.8

Properties under development and completed
properties for sale

Properties under development for sale are included in
current assets at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Properties under development for long-term investment
included in non-current assets are stated at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Completed properties for
sale are included in current assets at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

The costs of properties under development and completed
properties for sale consist of construction expenditures,
amounts capitalised in respect of amortisation of upfront
payments of land use rights, borrowing costs directly
attributable to construction of such properties and other
direct costs. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business as
determined by management with reference to the
prevailing market conditions, less further costs expected to
be incurred to completion and selling and marketing costs.

No depreciation is provided on properties under
development and completed properties for sale.

Intangible assets

(@) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of
the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary/
associate/jointly controlled entity at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries
is included in intangible assets. Goodwill on
acquisitions of associates and jointly controlled
entities is included in investments in associates and
investment in a jointly controlled entity respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR I

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.8

2.9

Intangible assets (Continued)

(@) Goodwill (Continued)
Separately recognised goodwill is tested annually for
impairment, as well as when there is indication of
impairment, and carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are
not reversed.

Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity
sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill
arose.

(b) Negative goodwill
Negative goodwill represents the excess of the
Group’s share of the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired over the cost of acquisition and is
recognised in the income statement.

Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation, which are at least tested annually for
impairment and are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets that are
subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.10 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determine the classification

of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(@) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives
are also categorised as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are

classified as current assets.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except for maturities greater than 12
months after the balance sheet date. These are
classified as non-current assets. The Group’s loans
and receivables comprise accounts and other
receivables and cash and cash equivalents in the

balance sheet (Notes 2.11 and 2.12).

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless management
intends to dispose of the investment within 12

months of the balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR I

2. Summary of significant accounting 2. TESTHHRME #)
policies (continued)

210 HBEE (&)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all
financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or
loss are initially recognised at fair value and transaction
costs are expensed in the consolidated income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
“financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”
category are presented in the consolidated income
statement within “other gains, net”, in the period in which
they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of “other gains,
net” when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the consolidated

income statement as “other gains, net”.
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B HRR M T

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of “other gains, net”. Dividends
on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in
the consolidated income statement as part of “other gains,
net” when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current
bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active
(and for unlisted securities), the Group established fair
value by using valuation techniques. These include the use
of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other
instruments that are substantially the same, discounted
cash flow analysis, and option pricing models, making
maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as

possible on entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets in impaired. In the case of equity
securities classified as available-for-sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is considered as an indicator that the securities are
impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from
equity and recognised in the consolidated income
statement. Impairment losses recognised in the
consolidated income statement on equity instruments are

not reversed through the consolidated income statement.

Impairment testing of accounts and other receivables is
described in Note 2.11.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR I

2. Summary of significant accounting 2. TESTHHRME #)
policies (continued)

2.11 Accounts and other receivables

2NMEWERA R H b BURRIR

Accounts and other receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. A provision for impairment of accounts and
other receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of receivables.
The amount of the provision is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate.
The amount of the provision is recognised in the income

statement.

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

2.13 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net

of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any Group company purchases the Company’s
equity share capital, the consideration paid, including any
directly attributable incremental costs (net of income
taxes), is deducted from equity attributable to the

Company’s equity holders until the shares are cancelled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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B HRR M T

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.14 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Transaction costs are
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or financial
liability, including fees and commissions paid to agents,
advisers, brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies
and securities exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holders, where the number of
shares that would be issued on conversion and the value
of the consideration that would be received do not vary,
are accounted for as compound financial instruments
which contain both a liability component and an equity
component.

At initial recognition, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is determined using a market interest
rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond. The remainder
of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option as
equity component. Transaction costs that relate to the
issue of a compound financial instrument are allocated to
the liability and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost, calculated using the effective interest
method, until extinguished on conversion or maturity. The
equity component is recognised in equity, net of any tax
effects.

When the bond is converted, the relevant equity
component and the carrying amount of the liability
component at the time of conversion are transferred to
share capital and share premium for the shares issued.
When the bond is redeemed, the relevant equity
component is transferred to retained earnings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR I

2. Summary of significant accounting 2. TESTHHRME #)
policies (continued)

2.15 Borrowing cost 2.15 BE R

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any
qualifying assets are capitalised during the period of time
that is required to complete and prepare the assets for its

intended use.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the income

statement in the period in which they are incurred.

2.16 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised directly in equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entity
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid
to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, if the
deferred income tax arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it is not
accounted for. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is

realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

sre TSR M

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available

against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities, except where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse

in the foreseeable future.

2.17 Employee benefits

(@) Pension obligations

Group companies operate defined contribution plans
only. The Group pays contributions to publicly or
privately administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory or contractual basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due and
are reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting
fully in the contributions. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments is
available.

142 Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

AY

TES

ATBURBEE ()

216 BNHARIEEFT ST (&)

BEEFRSREETIBLE ALK
ARERFaMBAATSHHZE
R mAER o

1

BIEFMSHERERENS
Al BEQRRARESE
ZREFTEL 2 TR E Mm%
B BEREAKEAZEH TR
RO WHRIBEERTR
RORRA & B AER SN o

e

o}

X

+
Zins

o

puj

217 EERA

() EBHRLERE
rEEBTARERS
AEMRETE - XE B
M A% AEEEK
R EIEHR B S S
A E MR fELHR
& KAEBEBEAEEE—
A E ZFHK
2R ﬂ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%
BERMALZ WA 3t
AAEBEBETHEERS
YEBEZSETIRBER
i 4508 W 2 fif FR1E 0
oo AR I &R E K
R R R A 3z T8 A R
NEBERREE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as expenses. The total amount
to be expensed over the vesting period is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options granted,
excluding the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales
growth targets). Non-market vesting conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to vest. At each balance
sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of the

number of options that are expected to vest.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium when the options

are exercised.

2.18 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present

legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it

is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be

required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been

reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future

operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the

likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is

determined by considering the class of obligations as a

whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of

an outflow with respect to any one item included in the

same class of obligations may be small.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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B HRR M T

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable for the sale of properties and

services. Revenue is recognised as follows:

(@) Sale of properties

Revenue from sale of properties is recognised when
the significant risks and rewards of the properties are
transferred to the buyers, which is when the
construction of the relevant properties have been
completed, notification of delivery of properties have
been issued to the buyers and collectability of related
receivables pursuant to the sale agreements is
reasonably assured. Deposits and instalments
received on properties sold prior to transfer of the
significant risks and rewards of the properties are

included as deferred revenue under current liabilities.

(b) Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis

over the period of the relevant leases.

(c) Property management fees, property design fees

and marketing consultancy fees

Property management fees, property design fees and

marketing consultancy fees are recognised when the

services are rendered.

(d) Hotel operations

Revenue from hotel operations is recognised upon

provision of services.

(e) Interestincome

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion

basis using the effective interest method.

AY

TES

S REME )

2.19 L A B 52

W A B HE & W 3 K BR 75 UK ER
HERZREBEZRAFE KA
WRMT

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

HEME
HEWMEME Z%AE
ROMEZERRAR K
HEZ iﬁ%%(%%ﬁ
EREBME B
EMERELRINYE
ZBA KA A B ETE R
15 35 & 1% =% A8 B 1B WK
B2 A E ) R
e RYMEZERNER
LOHER A E
MEMBBMzZE RS
HRBELFARDERE
BT ZERYEA -

HEBA
He B AREREES
RABEARERER -

MHEEERE  MERTE
REHBEHE
MEERE  WERS
EREHFHBERENRM
AR5 B HERR o

B
B JE B U a7 R R
TR FERR o

FME WA
B AR E R A R
VR TR B [ L B R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR I

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(f) Government grants
A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching with it and that the
grant will be received.

Grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in the income statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs they are
intended to compensate. Grants relating to the
purchase of properties and equipment are included
in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are
credited to the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

Amounts received for which the earning process has
not been completed are accounted for as deferred
revenue.

2.20 Operating leases (as the lessee)

2.21

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are expensed in the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease.

Insurance contracts

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date the
liabilities under its insurance contracts using current
estimates of future cash flows. Changes in carrying
amount of these insurance liabilities are recognised in the
income statement.

The Group regards its financial guarantee contracts in
respect of mortgage facilities provided to certain property
purchasers and guarantees provided to its joint ventures
and non-wholly owned subsidiaries as insurance contracts.

2.22 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

B HRR M T

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.23 Land costs

The Group makes upfront payments to obtain land use
rights on which properties are developed for sale, long-
term investment or hotel operations. The upfront payments
for the land use rights are recorded as land costs on the
balance sheet and amortised on a straight-line basis over
the operating lease periods, or where there is impairment,
the impairment is charged to the income statement.
During the period of time that is required to develop the
properties for its intended use, the land amortisation is
capitalised as part of the costs of the properties under
development. In all other periods the land amortisation is
charged to the income statement according to the
classification of the properties, except for investment
properties where the unamortised land costs are
transferred to the cost of the investment properties upon
completion of development and subsequently accounted
for as finance lease (Note 2.6). When completed properties
for sale is sold, the unamortised land cost is recognised as
cost of sales.

3. Financial risk management

3.1
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Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk. The Group’s
overall risk management policy focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effect on the Group’s financial
performance. The Group regularly monitors its exposure
and currently considers not necessary to hedge any of
these financial risks. The global financial crisis in 2008
adversely affected the international economy and led to
credit tightening in the market. The fluctuations in the PRC
economy affected the volumes of property transactions
and selling prices. The Group relies on property sales and
bank borrowings to meet its funding requirements for its
business operations and has implemented the policies as
described in Note 2.1 to manage the liquidity risk that the
Group may be exposed to, should there be unpredicted
changes on the Group’s cash flow position.
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3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR I

Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risks as defined by HKFRS 7 arise
on account of monetary assets and liabilities being
denominated in a currency that is not the functional
currency; differences resulting from the translation of
financial statements into the Group’s presentation
currency are not taken into consideration.

Majority of the subsidiaries of the Group operates in
Mainland China with most of the transactions
denominated in Renminbi. The Group is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from the exposure of
Renminbi against US dollars and Hong Kong dollars.
[t has not hedged its foreign exchange rate risk.

In addition, the conversion of Renminbi into foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of
the foreign exchange control promulgated by the
Mainland China government.

At 31st December 2008, if Renminbi had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against US dollars with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been HK$129 million (2007: HK$131
million) lower/higher, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange losses/gains on translation of USD-
denominated senior notes and bank deposits.

At 31st December 2008, if Renminbi had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against HK dollars with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been HK$0.4 million (2007: HK$2
million) higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation of HK dollars
denominated bank deposits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR I A

3. Financial risk management (continved) 3. WKEKRERE »)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BEERREE (&)
(b) Credit risk (b) =ERE

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
deposits with banks and credit exposures to
customers. The Group has credit policies in place and
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

The Group manages its deposits with banks and
financial institutions by monitoring credit ratings. The
utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored. At
31st December 2008, deposits with banks amounted
to HK$2,413 million (2007: HK$2,260 million) were
made to international/national financial institutions
with sound credit ratings.

In respect of credit exposures to customers, the
Group normally receives deposits or progress
payments from sales of residential properties to
individual customers prior to the completion of
transactions. In the event of default by customers,
Group companies undertake legal proceedings to
recover the property. The Group’s other receivables
are related to first class land development projects
with fixed guaranteed returns from local government
when the land sites are arranged for open tender.
Amounts due from joint ventures are generally
supported by the underlying assets.

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain
purchasers of property units and provided guarantees
to secure obligations of such purchasers for
repayments. If a purchaser defaults on the payment
of its mortgage during the term of the guarantee,
the bank holding the mortgage may demand the
Group to repay the outstanding amount under the
loan and any accrued interest thereon. Under such
circumstances, the Group is able to retain the
customer’s deposit and sell the property to recover
any amounts paid by the Group to the bank. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced (see
also Note 37).
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3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR I

Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset (other
than available-for-sale financial asset) in the balance
sheet after deducting any impairment allowance. The
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from accounts
receivable and other receivables is set out in Note 20.
The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from bank

deposits is set out in Note 21.

Liquidity risk

In managing the liquidity risk, the Group regularly
and closely monitors its current and expected
liquidity requirements to maintain its rolling cash
flow at a level which is considered adequate by the
Group to finance the Group’s operations according
to its cash flow projections and to maintain sufficient
cash to meet its business development requirements.
As described in Note 2.1, management has prepared
cash flow projections for the period up to 30th April
2010 and the Group has a number of alternative
plans to offset the potential impact on the Group’s
business development, should there be circumstances
that the anticipated cash flow may be affected by
any unexpected changes in global economic
conditions. The Directors consider that the Group will
be able to maintain sufficient financial resources to

meet its operation needs.
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3.

Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
() Liquidity risk (Continued)
The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows.
Group rE
At 31st December 2008 R-_ZEENF
+=ZA=+—"H
Borrowings BE 5,376,257
Accounts and other FERHER SR R
payables H 4t JE 5B 5,183,585
Land cost payable JEE 5t £ 3 B AR 323,696
Due to a minority e —4%
shareholder DERR 2 HIE =
Due to an associate & 5 — ]
AN | 6,258
Due to related companies & 15t B iE A A
ZFIE 174,920
Due to a jointly & 1 — i 2E (R 4
controlled entity ERZNE 759,380
At 31st December 2007 RZZEZTLF
+ZR=+—H
Borrowings ’E 3,685,867
Accounts and other & 15 IR 3R R
payables H b e 5008 2,716,574
Land cost payable & 5 £ 3 B A 605,289
Due to an associate e —
kN 8] 5,624
Due to related companies FETBEE A A
2 HIE 137,836
Due to a jointly J& 1 — & £ R 12 1
controlled entity EBZHE 231,253
Company b /N
At 31st December 2008 RZZEZTN\F
+ZR=+—H
Borrowings BT 220,391
Accounts and other & {7 3R 5 ]
payables H Ao e R 38,313
At 31st December 2007 RZZEZTLF
+ZR=+—H
Borrowings ’E 221,813
Accounts and other & {7 Bk 5 ]
payables H Ao IR 39,372

3.

MEEEEE )
3.1 MERERREZE (&)

(c)

7,981,386

106,173

4,176,832

175,959

2,391,200

221,813

REBELRR (£2)

TRERAEERZ K
BfE EREBIHA
Al REBEERZES
HWEIE R 2 T &R B R B
T RNAEEZ
CHEAAHMARIEIRIE

A s B2
EZnE °

5,698,810 415,159

= 49,983
6,994,919 204,161
3,153,281 =
5,309,853 =

The table above excludes guarantees given to banks
for mortgage facilities granted to certain buyers of
the Group'’s properties (see Note 37 and 3.1(b)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Are ISR

3. IR REL

f‘uﬁﬁr

3.1 BIEREZR (&)

(d)

Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises from interest-
bearing bank deposits and borrowings. Bank deposits
and borrowings issued at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest-rate risk. Borrowings
issued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value

interest-rate risk. The Group has not hedged its cash

(d BRERRAFEFNERER
RNEE 2 F =& R TS
BERRTIERRBEE
o RITHERKRAZEH
*'J%?EBSZZFT/*\ﬁE
A ZHERMNER
MOFfﬁLAlEﬂ$§§B$Z

flow and fair value interest-rate risk.

ZIEEASAKRE KR
REFENERER - NE
BMYERERESRRA

FEM R E G -

At 31st December 2008, if interest rates had R-ZZEENFEF+ A=
increased/decreased by 1% and all other variables +—B WMEEHS
were held constant, the finance costs, net of amount 1% - MATAE Hth g
capitalised in the properties under development and HRFEAE - BB K
finance income, would increase/decrease the Group’s KB ERFWEFRE
profit by approximately HK$21 million (2007: HK$24 B R 2 3RIE) R H K

million).

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeqguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for equity owners and A
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal

capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to equity

owners, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

AREEAEEZ )G F
EFRH/TRAO21IBEEE
T(ZFZTLF: 2488

BIT) °

32 EsEmERE

AEBEEBEARZBETRE
ANEBERMEBERERFBEREE
R ARRERE ARG
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BOURBREEERNERI
P AR & AR AR o
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B HRR M T

Financial risk management (continued)

3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. The gearing ratio is calculated as net debt divided by
total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings
(including current and non-current borrowings, as shown
in the consolidated balance sheet) less pledged/charged
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents. Total capital
represents total equity as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet.

The gearing ratios at 31st December 2008 and 2007 were

3.

M EREL

3.2

unt &

EcEBERE(#)

AEERERABRBLLREER
BEEXR - BERBBELEXRDINUE
BRBBRABERNGTE - BE
FRDNAEE(BRERE
ERBRARZRERIERD
FLE);‘WE%E%ﬁ/ﬁéafﬁﬁﬁ
AEBAERBECFEYFE
MEXRREBBE(NERE
ERBRAR) -

R-BENFR-_ZTLEFF+

techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and
makes assumptions that are based on market conditions
existing at each balance sheet date.

The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of
accounts receivable, other receivables, accounts payable,
balances with related parties and land cost payables are
assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair value of
financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the Group
for similar financial instruments or based on the current bid
price in the market.

as follows: ZA=T—HZzEAAELE
LN
Total borrowing BmEE 16,593,009 12,617,893
Less: Pledged/charged bank deposits 33 : B 3K 2 R 1T
and cash and cash equivalents EREIBe kR
(Note 21) ZEY (MaE21) (2,414,146) (2,262,086)
Net debt BEFEEE 14,178,863 10,355,807
Total equity HEm B 22,564,073 20,078,310
Gearing ratio BEAREBELHL R 63% 52%
3.3 Fair value estimation 33 AVFEMRE
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded REEEBRMES LR SN E
in an active market is determined by using valuation IR -ERATFEDERMGEM

RE - ARBERENGEEER
FEZTEHERR  XREREA
AR AR o

FEW RS - H b B UERK - B
R - HEAEALZEBRK

FE S £ #b B AR 2 EE R & fl &1
FEERABE  DRIEEAQF
BRE -REEMS MBA
Bz RFEIZASERE
ZEUESMIAZRITHIESH
RERBENIZETE2EAE
ERKRAENASREMKBAFED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR I

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are

based on historical experience and other factors, including

expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable

under the circumstances.

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning

the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by

definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The

estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of

causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities within the next financial year are

discussed below.

(a)

Estimated impairment of properties and
equipment, properties under development for
long-term investment (and related land costs) and
intangible assets

Properties and equipment and properties under
development for long-term investment (and related
land costs) are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Intangible
assets are reviewed for impairment at each balance
sheet date or whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts of
properties and equipment, properties under
development for long-term investment (and related
land costs) and intangible assets have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations,
taking into account latest market information and
past experience. These calculation and valuations
require the use of judgements and estimates.

EERTEER A

WMERAB D RFEETZMG X
ABERREEMEARIELSER
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FEIEHY o

4.1
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4. Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(b)

154 Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

Estimated provision of properties under
development for sale, completed properties for
sale and related land costs

For the purpose of determining provision, land costs,
properties under development and completed
properties held for sale are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows. The recoverability of the carrying amounts of
these asset is assessed based on their fair value less
costs to sell. The fair value is determined taking into
account costs to completion based on past
experience and net sales value based on prevailing
market conditions. Provision is made when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. The assessment
requires the use of judgement and estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(c)

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market for similar lease and other contracts. In
the absence of such information, the Group
determines the amount within a range of reasonable
fair value estimates. In making its judgement, the
Group considers information from a variety of

sources including:

(i) current prices in an active market for properties
of different nature, condition or location (or
subject to different lease or other contracts),
adjusted to reflect those differences, by

reference to independent valuations; and

(i) recent prices of similar properties in less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any
changes in economic conditions since the date
of the transactions that occurred at those

prices.
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4. Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(d)

156 Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

Current taxation and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to taxation in Mainland China
and Hong Kong. Judgement is required in
determining the amount of the provision for taxation
and the timing of payment of the related taxation.
There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the periods in which such

determination are made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as
management considers it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the recognition
of deferred taxation assets and taxation in the

periods in which such estimate is changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR I

4. Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Current taxation and deferred taxation (Continued)
The Group is subject to land appreciation taxes in
Mainland China. However, the implementation and
settlement of these taxes varies among various tax
jurisdictions in cities of Mainland China, and the
Group has not finalised almost all its land
appreciation taxes calculation and payments with the
any local tax authorities in Mainland China.
Accordingly, significant judgement is required in
determining the amount of the land appreciation
and its related taxes. The Group recognised these
land appreciation taxes based on management’s best
estimates according to the understanding of the tax
rules. The final tax outcome could be different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, and these
differences will impact the taxation and tax provisions
in the periods in which such taxes have been finalised
with local tax authorities.

Depreciation and amortisation

The Group’s net book value of properties and
equipment as at 31st December 2008 was
approximately HK$2,405,623,000. The Group
depreciates the hotel property, building, furniture
and office equipment and motor vehicles on a
straight line basis over the estimated useful life of 28
to 50 years, 50 years, 5 years and 3 to 5 years,
respectively, and after taking into account of their
estimated residual value, using the straight-line
method, at the rate of 2% to 33% per annum,
commencing from the date the asset is placed into
productive use. The estimated useful lives and dates
that the Group places the properties and equipment
into productive use reflects the directors’ estimate of
the periods that the Group intends to derive future
economic benefits from the use of the Group’s
assets.
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4. Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(f)

(9)

158 Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

Acquisition of subsidiaries

The initial accounting on the acquisition of
subsidiaries involves identifying and determining the
fair values to be assigned to the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquired
entity. The fair values of investment properties and
development properties held for sale are determined
by reference to market prices or present value of
expected net cash flows from the assets. Any
changes in the assumptions used and estimates
made in determining the fair values, and
management’s ability to measure reliably the
contingent liabilities of the acquired entity will impact
the carrying amount of these assets and liabilities.

Revenue recognition

The Group has recognised revenue from the sale of
properties held for sale as disclosed in note 2.19. The
assessment of when an entity has transferred the
significant risks and rewards of ownership to buyers
requires the examination of the circumstances of the
transaction. In most cases, the transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership coincides with the date when
the equitable interest in the property vests with the
buyer upon release of the respective property to the

buyer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR I

4. Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(9)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

As disclosed in note 37, the Group provided
guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted
by certain banks relating to the mortgage loans
arranged for certain purchasers of the Group's
properties. These guarantees will expire when the
relevant property ownership certificates are lodged
with the various banks by the purchasers. In order to
obtain mortgages, the purchasers would have settled
certain percentage of the total contract amount in
accordance with the related PRC regulations upon
delivery of the properties. The Directors are of the
opinion that such settlements provide sufficient
evidence of the purchasers’ commitment to honour
their contractual obligations of the bank loans. In
addition, based on past experiences, there were no
significant defaults of mortgage facilities by the
purchasers resulting in execution of the bank
guarantees. Accordingly, the directors believe that
significant risks and rewards associated with
ownership of the properties have been transferred to

the purchasers.

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the entity’s
accounting policies

Distinction between investment properties and owner-

occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an

investment property. In making its judgement, the Group

considers whether the property generates cash flows

largely independently of the other assets held by an entity.

Owner-occupied properties generate cash flows that are

attributable not only to property but also to other assets

used in the production or supply process.

4. &

4.1

TEHEERYE o

S EERBRR (&)

(99 WARR(E)
BN 37 TR E 0 A
EERARAEEMES
FTERLZHENEBER
REER - EERKA
BYXFMBEEZIITE

RITHR ZZ5EREBS
BElE - BEHREARH

MEABER  BIE

BEBER BEREME
REZH  BEXFTAE

RSN —FLH -
BEERR ZENXAR
EXRBITRITERNE
MBERHBET RS E
B-BE REBEL
BERAUBEALRS
EREREMN - ABE
THEREMN - Bt &
ERR MEFREEN
BARRE MR EDRD K E
BEEX -

42 RERRA ST BEEE

H oz B R

THRBEMEERB AME

AEBEEVMERERE
Wﬁﬁ&ﬁ%%°%¢ﬁﬂ%
CAEEEEEZRYMERD
EEK&%M%AE%%%M
BEZETRE BRMERM
EEZRERETRBRYME
wHE - TehEELHERE
FRERCEMBEELSR -

—ZENFFH 159
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AR BTSRRI A

4. Critical accounting estimates and 4., BEETHEERHE 4
judgements (continued)

U

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the entity’s EESTHHERRE (&)

accounting policies (Continued)

Distinction between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties (Continued)

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that
is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. If these portions
can be sold separately (or leased out separately under a
finance lease), the Group accounts for the portions
separately. If the portions cannot be sold separately, the
property is accounted for investment property only if an
insignificant portion is held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Judgement is applied in determining whether ancillary
services are so significant that a property does not qualify
as investment property. The Group considers each property

separately in making its judgement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
/\\/ N ﬁ%% &%MT EII

Segment information 5. D EfER
Primary reporting format — geographical segments TERBENX —HEIE
The Group operates in five main geographical areas for the AREBRABEEFEMELE AT E
following businesses: 7%
Guangdong — hotel operation, property development, BERE — BEZE Y%
province property investment and BR MEKRE
property management R E R
Beijing — hotel operation, property development, b= — BEEE- Mm%
property investment and property BRE WMERE
management & E XL
Shanghai — property development and property B — MEEERDE
investment " &
Tianjin — hotel operation, property development and KE — BIEEE - ME
property investment TREMERE
Others — property design and consultancy services H b — MEFRGTRERM
Rk 75
The segment results for the year ended 31st December 2008 are HE_ZEZENF+_A=+—HIE
as follows: FEZOBEEBWT :

Guangdong

province Beijing  Shanghai Tianjin Others Unallocated Group
ERE bl Lig AE At AXOE  ARE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEr TEx TEx FER TE=R T TER

Total gross segment S HEEK B

revenues 5,296,334 3,746,211 1,351,075 405,446 167,369 — 10,966,435
Inter-segment revenues 71 #5548 I 78 (1,000) — —  (23442) (167,369) —  (191,811)
Revenues 25 5295334 3,746,211 1,351,075 382,004 — — 10,774,624
Operating profit(loss) & &%/ (F#8) 1,959,024 1,567,650 589,178  (263,995) — 226,037 4,077,89%
Share of profit less loss 73 1 Bt % A &) 3% 7l

of associates wEE 990 (1,023) — - - - (33)
Share of loss of a jointly 71 £ R ¥ %] B B&

controlled entity ZEE — (1,710) — — — — (1,710)
Finance income B A 12,376
Finance costs B A = —  (18,816) —  (207,949) —  (226,765)
Profit before taxation % %4 Ail & 7l 3,861,762
Taxation FiE (1,912,812)
Profit for the year FERA 1,948,950
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARe BRI A

5. Segment information (continued) 5. DEBE R &)
Primary reporting format — geographical segments FERRESX —HEDLE(E)
(Continued)
The segment results for the year ended 31st December 2007 are Hz_ZZt+tF+_A=+—H81

as follows:

FREZOBREWT ¢

Guangdong
province Beijing  Shanghai Tianjin Others Unallocated
ERE hlA L X2 Hit AR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
AT BT FAET AT THET AT
Total gross segment S EE K AU
revenues 5,999,839 3,607,248 900,636 627,703 9,529 — 11,144,955
Inter-segment revenues %15 % %8 U %5 (2,329) (1,616) = (838) (9,529) — (14312
Revenues &5 5997510 3605632 900,636 626,865 — — 11,130,643
Operating profit(loss) &% %/ (B#8) 3,573,179 1,095594 420,967 24,172 (283) 48979 5,162,608
Share of profit less loss 7 {5 B & A 7] 2
of associates 338 R 5 18 17 (716) = = = — (599)
Share of profitof and {5 A% HI 2
other gains relating i R E b Uk zs
to jointly controlled
entities 18,316 83,648 — — — — 101,964
Finance income BT ON 50,394
Finance costs B 7 B R (5) = — —  (136,911) —  (136,916)
Profit before taxation B %% A )& A 5,177,451
Taxation K (1,629,245)
Profit for the year EERT 3,548,206
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Segment information (continued)

Primary reporting format — geographical segments

(Continued)

The segment assets and liabilities at 31st December 2008 and R-ZEZE

depreciation, amortisation and capital expenditure for the year

then ended are as follows:

5. DEER #)

FTERRENX —ESE (&)

NE+ZA=+—BHH

BERABE UERBEZBLEE
ZWE BERERENOT

Guangdong

province Beijing  Shanghai Tianjin Others Unallocated Group
ERE 5l LE - 4 Hit ROE A&HE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TER TR TR TR TR TR
Assets BE 23,156,766 17,936,655 11,124,167 4,953,806 83,575 173,378 57,428,347

Investments in REENR 2R A
associates 1,158 41,043 - — - - 42,201

Investment in a jointly 3 — i 4t @ £ 41
controlled entity EEIRE — 801,240 — — — — 801,240
Total assets BERE 23,157,924 18,778,938 11,124,167 4,953,806 83,575 173,378 58,271,788
Total liabilities BEEH 9,651,381 6,666,989 5,100,490 1,209,077 5,027,446 8,052,332 35,707,715
Depreciation neE 13,947 18,700 2,114 50,254 367 — 85,382
Amortisation B 83,954 77,961 25,860 5,497 9,997 — 203,269
Capital expenditure ERFAX 292,437 25,277 3,388 140,004 223 — 461,329
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ARe BRI A

5. Segment information (continued) 5. DEEFR (&)
Primary reporting format — geographical segments FERRERX —HESE (&)

(Continued)

R_ZEZELF+_A=+t—H7
EENMBE URBEZBLFE
ZIE BERERFEIMT :

The segment assets and liabilities at 31st December 2007 and
depreciation, amortisation and capital expenditure for the year
then ended are as follows:

Guangdong

province Beijing  Shanghai Tianjin Others Unallocated Group

ERE R Lig AE At AX0E  AEE

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
THT TET T THI THT THT
Assets BE 21,375,239 13,850,226 8,080,173 3,721,335 82,925 107,878 47,217,776
Investments in REE AR 2K E
associates 120 39,086 — — — — 39,206
Investment in a jointly 1 — 8 4t /@ 2 4
controlled entity EBRIRE — 676,460 — — — — 676,460
Total assets BERE 21,375,359 14,565,772 8,080,173 3,721,335 82,925 107,878 47,933,442
Total liabilities BEAT 8,840,512 5,259,441 2,250,079 435900 4,686,265 6,382,935 27,855,132
Depreciation neE 9,782 13,488 726 19,512 333 — 43,841
Amortisation B 14,022 8,650 20,074 2,875 8,647 — 54,268
Capital expenditure BRHY 368,966 5,585 34,424 524,701 388 — 934,064
Segment assets consist primarily of all of the Group’s operating DHEEETEBRASEEZ2HNEESR
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assets and exclude tax assets.

Segment liabilities consist primarily of all of the Group’s
operating liabilities and exclude tax liabilities.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to properties and
equipment (Note 7), investment properties (Note 8) and
properties under development for long-term investment (Note 9),
and their related land costs (Note 6), including additions resulting
from acquisitions through business combinations (Note 40).

ENMMBHBEEE °

THABEIRERAREZEHEER
BEMBHREAR -

EXAAXBREDERREB(HET) &
EME(MFEs) RFERAREZER
R (ME) 2R EREARE LK
(K &E6)  BREBBERHK A H (M
40)EFTIRIB M AE £ 2B -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R E I EES

Segment information (continued) 5. DEEFR (#)
Secondary reporting format — business segments REBRBRERX —¥(¥28E
The Group is organised into four main business segments as AEBBUTHEEXEEXZHEA
follows: o
Property development — property development in residential MERE — TERBEXERZ
and commercial projects YEER
Property investment ~ — holding of offices, shops and MERE — REBEERELREAS
carparks for investment potential WABEHAE -
and rental income EHREES
Property management — management of residential and MEEE — EEBEEEAEEDE
commercial properties
Hotel operations — hotel operation in Guangzhou, BEEE — BN -LtRERREZ
Beijing and Tianjin B E & 8
2008 2007
—Z2ENE —EELF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Revenues Uz
Property development S 10,247,744 10,722,391
Property investment Y ERE 65,535 57,548
Property management MEERE 306,306 235,191
Hotel operations B E & B 155,039 115,513
10,774,624 11,130,643
Total assets wEE
Property development LE Y 49,207,221 41,902,425
Property investment MEKRE 5,874,825 3,253,354
Property management Y EE 73,024 110,677
Hotel operations B B 2,099,899 1,843,442
Unallocated A 173,378 107,878
57,428,347 47,217,776
Investments in associates REEERF ZIRE 42,201 39,206
Investment in a jointly controlled entity 7 — R LB 224 82 2 1% & 801,240 676,460
58,271,788 47,933,442
Capital expenditure BEARRX
Property development LY 228,378 596,779
Property investment Y E & E 125,153 56,446
Property management Y EE R 7,178 1,941
Hotel operations B B 100,620 278,898
461,329 934,064
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are B R R MY AT

6. Land costs 6.

The Group’s interests in land costs represent prepaid operating
lease payments and their net book amount is analysed as

follows:

+ 3 KA

AEBREIHAARZ BEERNR
EHERER WEZEEFEIM
LI

Group
&
2008 2007

—EENFE —EELF

HK$°000
TR

HK$'000
TAET

Beginning of the year F 1) 16,790,699 7,636,318
Additions Zr 1% 7,152,816 388,028
Acquisition of subsidiaries (i) W BE B B A B () 1,135,068 9,315,827
Disposals & (1,504,847) (1,918,905)
Transfer to investment properties EREREME (25,151) (7,149)
Transfer from other non-current asset EEROHEMIERHEE — 803,748
Amortisation B3y (193,272) (45,621)
Exchange difference Ve H =& 1,557,810 618,453
End of the year F 4R 24,913,123 16,790,699
Analysed as: pal) il
Non-current ER B
— in relation to properties under —RBERBKEZERES
development for long-term LS
investment 418,957 381,162
— in relation to properties —ERF
and equipment 330,706 258,043
749,663 639,205
Current B
— in relation to properties under — A EHECEER Y
development for sale 21,633,650 15,097,754
— in relation to completed — A E 2 BRI
properties for sale 2,529,810 1,053,740
24,163,460 16,151,494
24,913,123 16,790,699

Note:

BT
—ETLFZeRBERER

@)

(i) Amount in 2007 included land costs of GZQREL revalued upon
completion of acquisition of further interest in GZQREL (see
Notes 15, 27 and 28) amounting to approximately HK$6,921
million classified as current assets.
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6. Land costs (continued) 6.

The amount of the amortisation expenses recognised in the
income statement is as follows:

sre B R R MY o

T b RN ()

REBSRPHERZEHFAOT

Group
=

2008 2007
—EENE —EE+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH& T
Cost of sales $H € Bk 2N 5,028 2,092
General and administrative expenses —RETHRER 3,082 2,148
8,110 4,240

The amount of the amortisation expenses related to properties
under development of approximately HK$185,162,000 (2007:
HK$41,381,000) has been capitalised as development costs
included in properties under development, completed properties
for sale and properties and equipment.

RAEAEBEAE  BATHR

In Mainland China, held on:

EHERPTYWEZEHERAIHE
#7185,162,000 8 T (Z T T £ F :
41,381,000 70) BEE AL IEERK
A ABEFME AJHEEZE
ERMEREREME -

Group

£
2008 2007
—EFTLF
HK$'000
FET

S L%
HK$'000
F#

A
Land use rights of over 50 years S04 A £z + b fs A 4 16,539,403 11,509,508
Land use rights of N F10FEE505 2 T i
between 10 and 50 years 5 PB4 8,370,364 5,278,007
In Hong Kong held on: REE  BUATHREIFE :
Leases of over 50 years 506 LA £ 2 F %Y 3,356 3,184
24,913,123 16,790,699

As at 31st December 2008, net book amount of approximately
HK$5,783,817,000 (2007: HK$1,846,895,000) of the Group’s
land were pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities
(Note 24).

As at 31st December 2008, approximately 239,000 (2007:
239,000) square metre of land with a carrying amount of
HK$240 million (2007: HK$223 million) was restricted due to a
pending litigation during the year.

BERAREEERAF

R-ZTENF+-_A=+—H8 &
% 5 8% @ /¥ {8 495,783,817,000 7% 7T
— T T+ 1 1,846,895,000/8 L)
2B EBEAEB ZRITEE
2 (MFaE24) ©

R—ZZFEENF+=_RA=+—8H"
49239,000 F 5 K(ZZ &= + & :
239,000 F 77K ) 2 i (BRE B &
240,000,000 & L ( = T T £+ F -
223,000,000 7T ) ) T3 B F A 2 fF3R
i
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7. Properties and equipment 7. MERFZME

Group
%
Furniture
Construction Hotel and office Motor

in progress  properties  Buildings  equipment vehicles
BRR
ERIR EENE B BAERHE "E aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR

Year ended 31st December  HZE-TZTNF
2008 +=ZA=+-H
[R5
Opening net book amount  HA¥1BR % (& 736,340 899,118 201,947 207,290 19,116 2,063,811
Additions (including M (RREAL
capitalisation of land use 3t fF PR )
rights amortisation) 240,701 — — 27,201 10,081 277,983
Acquisition of subsidiaries Yt EE B A Al — — — 2,948 — 2,948
Depreciation e — (34,576) (3.933)  (41,691) (5182  (85,382)
Disposals HE - - (15,172) (3,054) (1,687)  (19,913)
Transfer BE (76,214) 45,376 30,838 — — —
Exchange difference ERES 63,220 69,857 16,050 15,446 1,603 166,176
Closing net book amount BT E 964,047 979,775 229,730 208,140 23,931 2,405,623
At 315t December 2008 R=ZZNE+=A
=+—H
Cost AR 964,047 1,052,654 241,159 295,723 48,295 2,601,878
Accumulated depreciation 2t E — (72,879) (11,429) (87,583) (24,364)  (196,255)
Net book amount FEFE 964,047 979,775 229,730 208,140 23,931 2,405,623
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7. Properties and equipment (continued)

sre B R MY o

7. MEREKE#)

Group
£E
Furniture
Construction Hotel and office Motor
in progress  properties  Buildings equipment vehicles
KRR
EEIR BEUE BF BOZERHE b By
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET TET TET TET TET
Year ended 31st December  #HZE-ZTZLF
2007 +ZRA=+-H
EFERE
Opening net book amount ~ EA 41 BR (B 873,778 209,690 138,166 37,518 8,308 1,267,460
Additions (including M (REERL
capitalisation of land THERESE)
use rights amortisation) 529,153 — — 15,745 17,193 562,091
Acquisition of subsidiaries Yt B B A Al = 154,315 32,124 4,504 = 190,943
Depreciation FE = (20,280) (5,889) (10,944) (6,728) (43,841)
Disposals HeE — — — (2,924) (359) (3,283)
Transfer 3 (707,876) 521,937 28,826 157,113 — —
Exchange difference EHES 41,285 33,456 8,720 6,278 702 90,441
Closing net book amount HREEFE 736,340 899,118 201,947 207,290 19,116 2,063,811
At 31st December 2007 R-ZTLF
+=ZA=+-H
Cost P A 736,340 933,435 208,765 248,790 39,704 2,167,034
Accumulated depreciation  RE I E = (34,317) (6,818) (41,500) (20,588) (103,223)
Net book amount EHFE 736,340 899,118 201,947 207,290 19,116 2,063,811

Hotel properties with a net book amount of approximately
HK$318,662,000 (2007: HK$161,291,000) as at 31st December
2008 were pledged as collateral for the Group's banking facilities

(Note 24).

Construction in progress mainly represents hotel properties,
which will be held for the long-term. All construction in progress
is located in Mainland China on land held under land use rights

expiring from 2042 through 2046.

Depreciation expenses have been included in general and

administrative expenses in the income statement.

R-ZEENE+_A=+—8 &
M ¥ {8 47318,662,0008 T( - T &
+ 4 : 161,291,000 7T ) 2 B IEY
X¥EEBELAEBBRITEE 2K
m (HFzE24) °

FRIRBEZEREREBEZABEY
¥oFMBEEIBAN BB KRR
NWENRABER-_ZEN 5%
WMAFHEER THERAERE
2 e

FERXCEBRERGERZ KR
THRERA -

BERAREEER2TE Z—ZENFFH 169



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R e EES

8.
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Investment properties

8. REW=

Group
£

2008 2007

—E2EBN\F —TTAF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT T T

Beginning of the year F 1) 2,736,835 2,503,845
Transfer from properties under EREAEERYER T

development and land costs BX 7N 135,840 143,525

Disposals == (258,602) (431,644)

Surplus on revaluation BHAR 34,076 386,732

Exchange difference E X = 58 207,945 134,377

End of the year F R 2,856,094 2,736,835

All investment properties are located in Mainland China on land
held under land use rights expiring from 2037 through 2045.
They were stated at fair values with reference to valuations
performed on an open market value basis by DTZ Debenham Tie
Leung Limited, independent qualified valuers, as at 31st
December 2008.

As at 31st December 2008, approximately HK$1,163,875,000
(2007: HK$1,111,178,000) of the Group’s investment properties
were pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities (Note
24).

The Group leases out certain investment properties under
operating leases, for an initial period of one to twenty years,
with an option to renew on renegotiated terms. None of the
leases includes contingent rentals.

FBEREYMED MNP B RE R
REER _F=tFE_FTHNHF
HEEMN I HERESAZL
e MBERENMECL2ELERS
VYEEMBRERRTR_ZEZENF+
“A=t-BARAAMESEEREE
ET2EE  RRFEIK-

RZBEZENF+_A=+—8 &
% [E #91,163,8750008 T (T &
+ & 1,111,178,000%8 7T ) 2 &K &
MEBEIBERAEBRITEE ZE
A (fIE24) °

AEBERBLLHEELEAETERE
WE - NRERR—E2E-1+% 1
BRERBENEANGIEN - &
HEMESEAAES -
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9. Properties under development for long- 9. BFIERHKREZCHEW

term investment Y3
Group
-3
2008 2007
—E2EBN\F —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#E T FE T
Beginning of the year F 1) 135,157 227,765
Additions (including capitalisation g (BEEARLEHE X
of interest and land amortisation) + b 8 ) 91,681 34,463
Transfer to investment properties R IG E ) (110,689) (136,376)
Exchange difference E X = 58 9,707 9,305
End of the year F R 125,856 135,157
All properties under development for long-term investment are FMBERERAKEZCERTMEDY
located in Mainland China on land held under land use rights MARPRBEKRE  WABREBERZZ
expiring from 2037 through 2045. —tHtFE-_TNAFHEERN L

M RERB 2L -

10. Properties under development for sale 10. A ECERP Y=

Group
&=
2008 2007
—Z2EBN\F —ETLHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Beginning of the year F 1) 5,183,349 4,146,742
Additions (including capitalisation g (BEERLEHE KX
of interest and land amortisation) + o 8 ) 7,401,392 2,103,450
Acquisition of subsidiaries g4 hp=NG] 486,208 1,216,166
Transfer to completed properties HEBEETHEE 2B EK
for sale ) 2 (4,684,440) (2,897,791)
Transfer from other non-current asset EEREHEMIIERYEE — 375,548
Exchange difference & 5 =58 524,013 239,234
End of the year F IR 8,910,522 5,183,349
All properties under development for sale are located in FrERHEEZERAMEDLR
Mainland China and are located on land held under land use REKE TNRBER-_ZT=+
rights expiring from 2037 through 2077. FE_THLFHAERN LHFE

REsAEZ L -
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10. Properties under development for sale

11.

(Continued)

As at 31st December 2008, approximately HK$1,368,974,000
(2007: HK$1,014,035,000) of the Group’s properties under
development for sale were pledged as collateral for the Group’s
banking facilities (Note 24).

Completed properties for sale

All completed properties for sale are located in Mainland China
and are located on land held under land use rights expiring from
2037 through 2077.

As at 31st December 2008, approximately HK$1,511,804,000
(2007: HK$229,259,000) of the Group's completed properties
for sale were pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking
facilities (Note 24).

12. Intangible assets
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Year ended 31st December

10. T HEEZERFYWE

11.

12.

(%)

R-_ZZENF+-_A=+—H &
%= @ %91,368,974,0008 T (=T &
+ % :1,014,035,000 % 7T ) < A ft
HEZERPYEEERERAEE
RITEEZEM R (ME24) -

AHEEZEEZRME

EHARBEZEZRDESUR
FEAERMIRRER_-_FT=1tF
E_TEEFHEERZ LHER
BRA 2L -

R-ZZENF+-ZA=+-H8" &
% [ #91,511,804,0008 T (- T =
+ 4 : 229,259,000 T ) Z A
BEZEERKYECEREREER
TEEzZHE®R (MiE24) -

BINEE

Group
%£H
Goodwill

ik

2008
=EENEF
HK$’000
TR

2007
—FELF
HK$'000
F& T

BHE+-_A=+—HILFE

Opening net book amount YRR E 111,819 106,349

Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi —FHME A A — 2,039

Impairment charge VERIEE=9:5 = (2,039)

Exchange difference EH =5 8,636 5,470
Closing net book amount B BRE R B 120,455 111,819
Year ended 31st December BHET-_A=1T—RHBILFE

Cost [N 131,735 122,291

Accumulated impairment charge Z:REER (11,280) (10,472)
Net book amount BR T F(E 120,455 111,819
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12. Intangible assets (continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash-generating units
("CGUs") identified according to geographical segment. A
segment level summary of the goodwill allocation is presented

below:

sre B ERR MR

2. BEEE »)

72z R R

BEIEEREMR D BERZA

SERcsELAEN(ReELESE
fir]) EESEZDEMEZ5IMM
™

2008 2007
—Z2EBN\F —ETLHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THER TETT
Guangdong province BRE 93,412 86,715
Beijing Sl 27,043 25,104
120,455 111,819
The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value- HeELBMN KB4 ETIRE
in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections FHEBHESE - ZHEHFEFEBRRE

based on financial budgets approved by management covering a
five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are

extrapolated using zero growth rate.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations:

Gross margin EFI =

Discount rate

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past
performance and its expectations for the market development.
The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant segments.

BERAREEERAF

BHEBEHZ M BERES LR
ETFTHECR S MBERET - &8
FRFEFHULEZHRERENRTHE
B -

EREEAEEZZTERR
Guangdong
province Beijing
BERE =
50.1% 56.8%
11.3% 11.3%

EEEEREBEBEREAREYTS
BRBRABEITFEEENEK - IR
RZF BRI KRG RBE - B RBR
HES R ZFERR
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13. Subsidiaries

(@) Investments in subsidiaries

13. f[§ B 2 A
() RMBARAZRE

Company
N

2008 2007
—®BNE -TTt4H
HK$'000 HK$'000
T& T F& T
Unlisted shares, at cost FEETRG @ BRAE 84,931 74,900
Due from subsidiaries FE UL B A Rl R IE 11,244,047 9,431,695
11,328,978 9,506,595

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and without pre-determined repayment terms.

Details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31st December
2008 are set out in Note 42.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at
any time during the year ended 31st December 2008.

(b) Loans to subsidiaries

& Y B B ) SRR R R R
BRI EBEEERERE -

R_FFENF+_A=1t—HZ
TEMBRRFBERNM L2

RBE-FT)\FL-A=+—
AL EAEARR - SHER
A AR BT RA -

(b) MBLARZER

Company
A
2008 2007
—EELF
HK$'000
FHET

—sENE
HK$'000
FB

Non-current ERB
Loans to subsidiaries WE AR ZER 170,499 1,006,420
Current &
Loans to subsidiaries WEBRARZER 1,334,367 1,390,892
1,504,866 2,397,312

Loans to subsidiaries are unsecured and carry interests at
8% 10 8.9% per annum.

14. Investments in associates

MBRARZERTIEER  F
MER8%E89% °

14. REEERNT 2 RE

2008

—EENE

HK$°000

FET
Beginning of the year F 1) 39,206 —
Addition H 1 — 39,821
Share of profit less loss of associates FEAG B & R B s ADRUE 18 (33) (599)
Exchange difference M =5 3,028 (16)
End of the year F KR 42,201 39,206
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14. Investments in associates (continued)

The Group's interest in associates, which are unlisted, is as

follows:

Particulars of
issued
shares held

SRR )

B 10 & 15

2007 —B22LF
Guangdong Registered
Huasheng capital of
Cultural RMB5,000,000
Development EMEAARE
Company 5,000,0007T
Limited
BERELEHE X
ERARLQA
Beijing BHL Registered
Logistics Limited capital of
IERmEYR US$20,000,000
EXARANR FEMERA
20,000,000
ETT
2008 —EENF
Guangdong Registered
Huasheng capital of
Cultural RMB5,000,000
Development EMEAARE
Company 5,000,000 7T
Limited
BEREFELEHE X
BRABRRDA
Beijing BHL Registered
Logistics Limited capital of
Bl e b US$20,000,000
BEXARANR EfARA
20,000,000
ET

Place of
incorporation Assets
o BX 3L ith B BE
HK$'000
FH&T
Mainland China 5,072
K R
Mainland China 42,864
B K B
Mainland China 6,814
R K R
Mainland China 45,872

B K B

Investments in associates at 31st December 2008 include
goodwill of HK$7,995,000 (2007: HK$7,423,000).

BERAREEERAF

Liabilities

HK$'000
FHET

sre B ERR MR

14. REBEDNTZ2RE &)

AEBERFELITHERAZERDN
T

Profit/ Interest
Revenues (loss) held
A
=R WA (B1]R) kxR
HK$'000 HK$'000 %
FH& T FH& T
4,952 842 240 40.0%
11,201 — (717) 25.0%
5,655 1,801 990 40.0%
12,825 — (1,023) 25.0%
RZZEZENF+ZA=+—H R
Bt & N F) 218 & B 1 g 27,995,000
BIL(Z T Z £ F 7,423,000 8
JT) e
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N R R e EES

15. Investment in a jointly controlled entity . R—BEHRZHERZ

RE
Group
£8
Share of
net assets Goodwill Advance Total
PIEFEE 5k B Mt
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAT FAT FAT
At 1st January 2007 RZZETLF
—H—H 977,477 55,768 — 1,033,245
Additions NE 18,138 — 557,328 575,466
Dividend received B AR B (30,304) — — (30,304)
Consolidated on X A — B
becoming a subsidiary UNGILEEEEE (990,553) (57,199) —  (1,047,752)
Share of post-acquisition 4155 U i 14 2 45
results 17,800 — — 17,800
Excess of acquirer’s W AER= R
interest over cost of 1z i B AR
acquisition 84,164 — — 84,164
Exchange difference e 5 =% 27,743 1,431 14,667 43,841
At 31st December 2007 R_BTLF
+—HA=+—8H 104,465 — 571,995 676,460
At 1st January 2008 R=ZZTENF
—H—H 104,465 — 571,995 676,460
Capital injection EE 71,548 — — 71,548
Share of post-acquisition 915 U B% 14 ¥ &
results (1,710) — — (1,710)
Exchange difference fEH =% 10,765 — 44,177 54,942
At 31st December 2008 R =TT )\ F
+=-—A=+—H 185,068 — 616,172 801,240
Advance to a jointly controlled entity is unsecured, interest-free m— A EREGE . BR A EK
and without pre-determined repayment terms. The advance is B 2ERVEBTERREME &
considered equity in nature. R EEWE R -
As at 1st January 2007, investment in a jointly controlled entity RZZEZELF—A—B R—HEH
represented the Group’s investment in a contractual joint RZEGHER REDEAEERE
venture, Guangzhou Zhujiang Qiaodao Real Estate Limited MHKIEMEHLEBRQR(E
("GZQREL"). GZQREL is established in Mainland China with an MHzEE(BEHAE—HELNES
operating period of 20 years up to January 2018 to develop ) BHRPBEREKT - &
properties located in Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, EHE_T—N\F— A1t BH20
Mainland China. FHEEETARABEMRAPRERKR

EEREBEMZME -
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15. Investment in a jointly controlled entity

(Continued)

Prior to the acquisition as described below, the Group was
required to contribute 99.5% of the capital of GZQREL and was
entitled to 44.4% of the voting power in GZQREL. The Group
was entitled to share 69.5% of the profit of GZQREL but had to
assume 99.5% of any losses of GZQREL, and was entitled to a
distribution of 69.5% of GZQREL's assets upon expiry of the
operating period.

On 7th September 2007, the Group completed the acquisition of
Guangzhou Nonggongshang Construction and Development
Company Limited (“GNCDCL") for a total consideration of
HK$52,020,620 (equivalent to approximately RMB50,460,000).
GNCDCL is a 67% shareholder of Guangzhou Sanlian Huagiao
Estate Company Limited (“Sanlian”), whereas Sanlian is a 30%
shareholder of GZQREL. Upon completion of acquisition of
GNCDCL, the Group owns an effective profit sharing interest of
99.5% in GZQREL and is entitled to 88.9% of the voting power
in GZQREL. GZQREL became a subsidiary of the Group since
then.

As at 31st December 2007 and 2008, investment in a jointly
controlled entity represents the Group’s investment in Beijing
Dongfangwenhua International Properties Company Limited (“BJ
Dongfangwenhua”), a company with a property development
project (“Project Cultural”) in Beijing, Mainland China.

The Group completed the acquisition of the 60.98% equity
interest in BJ Dongfangwenhua on 31st August 2007, for a total
consideration and capital contribution of HK$820,190,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB795,584,000). Upon
completion of this acquisition, the Group is responsible for
contributing 95.8% of the capital of BJ Dongfangwenhua and is
entitled to 57.14% of the voting power in BJ Dongfangwenhua.
Ordinary resolutions of BJ Dongfangwenhua require 75% of the
voting of the Board of Directors. Besides, the Group is entitled to
100% of the profit arising from the office building and 45% of
the profit arising from the hotel in Project Cultural. Excess of the
Group’s share of the net identifiable assets over the cost of
acquisition of approximately HK$84,164,000 has been
recognised in the income statement in 2007.

Are ISR

B.R-—BHEEZEFER 2

& ()
RTIXFLKER  AEERTED
EEH 2995% 8 N E Bt & A #E
BEWMIA%KERE - NEEB A
HE 5 1h 15 # 269.5% 4% F| - M 78 &
ZEEE 1B 2995% © A R AR
& HY JE W R 9 R 18 #069.5% &

o

| ﬁ

%FW’H

R—_ZZT+tHFNALA A5EE
BOURBE M 2 T B R
AREI(TRI®MARALD  BRKEAR
52,020,620 B L (HER O AR
50,460,0007C) - R T H A Al B#A
BEM=MEGEEARAR(=
1)67% m 2 RN - =R B
EE#30%Em 2 BRE o TR ILIE
WHE®  AEBEEHRBE 299.5%
BROEMN DS R A RS G
88I9% K ER - BZARBHKA
AEBZHBAR -

ﬁAiggtE&_YYJ\E—I— A
=t—H -R-EHRZEHER
?&ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬂiﬁgﬁéjt,?\ﬁﬁiil
REXERQAR ([ERRAIXE])
ZERE ERRAXER/RRETH
tR—EmEHERERB ([ XA
B ZRaA -

RZZTZLFNA=+—H A&
] 52 B UK BB Ab R 3R 5 3 EE 2 60.98%
AER REREATERLE
/820,190,000 8 T (HERH AR
& 795,584,000 7T ) ° Itk T8 Y2 B E A
% AREBEEIAHELREAX
EIOSNERNBERMMEBEREESIL
REFXEST 4% EEE - LRE
AXEZERBRBZREEEETS%
SRR o AN AEBIBESG
ERRANERE R FTE Z2100%
A R R B X L IE BB S 245%
wH e R_ZTTLF BDHERLE
BB EEFEBRAKBEK
7N #)84,164,000 % 7T 2 &0 10 IR 1B &=
KPR ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B MR M T

5. R—BEREEEHERS 2

BE @)

15. Investment in a jointly controlled entity
(Continued)

UT2BERAKER_ZZTNEF T+
“A=t—HFhZEEREA
B ARAEERBE_ZFTTN\EF
T_A=T—BLEFEMAHBEHRXR
EHIERZHERRER

The following amounts represent the Group’s share of the assets
and liabilities as at 31st December 2008, and the Group's share
of sales and results of the jointly controlled entities for the year
ended 31st December 2008:

2008 2007
—EENE —EE+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TH& T

Assets: BE

Non-current assets IEmBEE 1,588 1,454

Current assets mENEE 2,444,354 946,282

2,445,942 947,736

Liabilities: a8E:

Non-current liabilities ERBEE (1,676,689) (761,689)

Current liabilities mENAE (584,185) (81,582)

(2,260,874) (843,271)

Net assets EEFE 185,068 104,465
Revenues I =5 7 161,535
Cost of sales and expenses SHEK A R (1,717) (110,885)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BELRT (E518) i Al (1,710) 50,650
Taxation B — (32,850)
(Loss)/profit for the year REE (FEE) x5 F (1,710) 17,800
Excess of acquirer’s interest at fair WHEF =N T EBL

value over costs MAE S 58 — 84,164
Share of (loss)/profit of and other DEHRAEHERZ

gains relating to jointly controlled (E18) & F & H b i =

entities (1,710) 101,964
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16. Investments in jointly controlled assets

17.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group entered into a jointly controlled
assets arrangement with Guangzhou Zhuguang Real Estate
Development Company Limited, an independent third party,
under which each of the Group companies and Guangzhou
Zhuguang Real Estate Development Company Limited
contributed land and other assets for the development of
properties located in Guangzhou, Guangdong Province,
mainland China. During the year ended 31st December 2008,
the Group’s participating interest in these jointly controlled assets
was 95.5% (2007: 95.5%). The Group’s share of the net profit
of the jointly controlled assets for the year amounted to
HK$394,637,000 (2007: HK$280,423,000) and the net assets of
the jointly controlled assets as at 31st December 2008 amounted
to HK$1,579,300,000 (2007: HK$1,082,620,000).

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

are BRI AT

6. AAREFEEZRE

AEEBETHEARE —BB I
E=ZFTEMNKALEHERZEER
NAEI S —THEREHEEZHE
B - AEBBET AR REMEKK
EHERZEERAASHABLMLR
FPREAEEREEMZMERE L
MREMEE RBE_ZZNF
+ZA=+—BLEFER  X5H
EEZEHRESEEBS%(Z
TE L F:955%) 2 L EEK -
N B FE R (R R E & = AR
£394,637,0008 T (ZEF + F :
280,423,000 L) MAEE R = F
ZENF+_A=+—HEGEERZ
#l & = #3261 51,579,300,000 75
T (=T FT £ F :1,082,620,000 %
JT) e

17. % ¥ &

=
%
i
m

&
2007
—Z2B)N\F —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Listed securities: EWES
— Equity securities — Hong Kong — BRAEFE — BB 11,315 19,964
Non-listed securities: FEETES
— Equity securities — Mainland China ~ — R&AR#E % — R E KR 340 316
11,655 20,280

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are presented
within operating activities as part of changes in working capital
in the cash flow statement (Note 36).

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recorded in other gains, net, in the consolidated
income statement (Note 28).

The fair value of all listed equity securities is based on their

current bid prices in an active market.

A
=]

SRAREEERAF

BRATEEBIERINENHEEE
RBERERKEETHANINIELE
B mEHEE) (HiiE36) o

BAVEERBRIENMBEE
ZAFEEBNIAGABRRERZ
H g s A (M 5E28) ©

rAELMBRAZFESZ A FETLRE
ERNEBMBZRITEANEGNE -
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18. Available-for-sale financial asset 18. A HEHEMKFEE
Group
H
2008 2007
—EEBNF —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Beginning of year F 1) 463,158 291,834
Fair value (loss)/gain recognised RIERFERZ AFEE
in equity (Note 27) (E#8|) Mz (M E27) (20,513) 151,965
Exchange difference E W =% 33,605 19,359
End of year F 4R 476,250 463,158
There were no disposals of available-for-sale financial asset in RZBEENFRX _ZTELFILEL
2008 or 2007. ERAMHLEVBEE -
Available-for-sale financial asset includes the following: AL ENKEERREUATEE :
Group
&=
2008 2007
—SBNFE —TTtH
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Unlisted investments in Mainland China B KFEIE E IR E 476,250 463,158
The available-for-sale financial asset is denominated in Chinese AHEEEMBEEDUARE
Renminbi. The fair value of the unlisted equity securities in BeFBRREFLETREAEZES 2D
Mainland China is determined using the price/earnings multiple FEDERATREEALG RAEE
method taking into account the risks and nature of the BeRBREEMETE

underlying business.
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19. Prepayments for acquisition of land and
prepayments, deposits and other current

—

re PR

19. W B & b ¥8 3 RRIE R 78
TRE - REREMR

assets BHEE
Group Company
&= AH
2008 2007 2008 2007
—E2EN\E —TTLHF ZFBENE —ZTLHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FET FET FAT
Non-current FEM B
Prepayments for Y BE + b
acquisition of land (i) 8 £~ ZIE () 2,436,630 — — —
Current i
Prepayments for Y BE + b
acquisition of land (i) T8 £~ A () 6,142,999 12,027,112 — —
Deposits for acquisition WHER A2
of equity interests (ii) 1 2 (ii) 53,208 1,159,390 — —
Guarantee deposit ERIEE 23,812 52,632 — =
Prepaid construction AR EERX
expenditures 25,217 25,336 — —
Land deposits TR S 204,107 517,895 — —
Prepaid sales taxes B SEEM 220,428 231,068 — —
Utility and other deposits /A FA 5% 1 &
Hitke 138,787 110,187 — —
Others Eh 104,604 176,868 199 —
770,163 2,273,376 199 —

As at 31st December 2008, deposits and other current assets are

neither past due nor impaired.

Notes:

(i)  Prepayments for acquisition of land represents advances made
for the acquisition of land use rights in Beijing, Shanghai,
Guangzhou, Huizhou, Tianjin, Dalian and Shanxi, Mainland
China. Formal land use right certificates have not yet been
obtained as at 31st December 2008.

Prepayments for acquisition of land include an amount of
approximately HK$2,500 million (2007: HK$7,500 million) for
the land situated in the Chaoyang district of Beijing in
connection with the Group’s acquisition of 80% equity interest
in Believe Best Investments Limited which, through its wholly
owned subsidiary, possesses the right to develop the Jing Run
Project on the land (see also Note 41(e)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

sre SRR MR

19. Prepayments for acquisition of land and
prepayments, deposits and other current
assets (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i) This represents advances made to independent third parties
for the acquisition of majority interests in certain Mainland
China entities whose principal activities are property holding
and development. The acquisitions are not yet completed as at
31st December 2008.

20. Accounts receivable and other
receivables

(a) Accounts receivable

Consideration in respect of properties sold is generally
payable by the buyers at the time of completion of the sale
and purchase agreements. Rentals in respect of leased
properties and property management fees are generally
payable in advance by the tenants on a monthly basis.

The ageing analysis of accounts receivable is as follows:

9. W B8 £ b FE 4 RIE R TR
HTRIE - RERHEAMR

HEE»)

B ()

() HPERKBETFhEARER
B(ETEEEAYERER
%) 2 % BB R P

TEZFEHIBR - R
ENE+=A=+—B Kk#
MR R -

ZQ%WEﬁ&E@EW%
I

(a)

F& U B 3R

EHEMEZRE-—RERE
EMETKERAEN XM -
HEMEZHERMEERE
—REABREFEZAEN -

FEUBR SR 2 BRI D AT AT -

Group
-

2008 2007
—Z2ENE —EETLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
0 to 3 months 0&318A 41,031 95,244
3 to 6 months 3x61EA 2,438 3,106
6 to 9 months 6Z91E H = —
9 to 12 months 9F 1218 A — 1,737
Over 12 months HBiE121E8 A 29,108 38,656
72,577 138,743

Carrying values of accounts receivables denominated in
RMB approximate their fair values.

As at 31st December 2008, approximately 33% (2007:
16%) of the accounts receivable was due from one (2007:
one) customer. Other than this, there is no concentration
of credit risk with respect to accounts receivable as the
Group has a large number of customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. Accounts receivable and other
receivables (continued)

(a)

(b)

Accounts receivable (Continued)

As at 31st December 2008, accounts receivable of
HK$41,031,000 (2007: HK$95,244,000) were fully
performing.

As at 31st December 2008, accounts receivable of
HK$31,546,000 (2007: HK$43,499,000) were past due
but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent
customers for whom there is no recent history of default.

The ageing analysis of these accounts receivable is as

/\\/

B MR MY AT

20. R BR R & H fitb FE IR FX
18 (4%)
(a) FEWERER (47)

R-ZFENE+-_A=1+—
B - FE 4 BR 541,031,000 7 T
— T T+ ;95,244,000 &

o) EEAEWKE -
R-BENFT-_A=+—

B - F& U BR 5831,546,000 7 7T
(ZZ T+ F : 43,499,000 %
T)EBEBERRE - HEX
R R R TNERE >

follows: BYRFEM  ZFEWER
ZEREDITOT
Group

-3
2008 2007
—Z2ENE —EETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
0 to 3 months 0Z3E A = —
3 to 6 months 3E6{E A 2,438 3,106
6 to 9 months 6= 91E A = —
9 to 12 months 9F 121E A — 1,737
Over 12 months HBiE1218 A 29,108 38,656
31,546 43,499

The maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying value
of accounts receivable mentioned above.

Other receivables

Other receivables are related to the Group’s participation in
first class land development projects in Mainland China
with fixed guaranteed returns as a percentage of the funds
made by the Group.

The carrying values of other receivables denominated in
RMB approximate their fair values.

A
=]

=X}

(b)

SEERDT

A& B P 2 RS B R R
AEXA W RN RE
ED

H fth & 1 5K 0R

ERBAAKREERBHEESZH
R H b U IR R A K
SHEPREKEESREEE QR
ZEI—BFAEAEEEMH -

AN R 51 B 2 H i & W 5K TR
ZEHEREAFERS
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21. Pledged/charged bank depositsand cash  21. 23 # " # B R 1T EF X

and cash equivalents RRERBAEEEY
Group Company
£8 NG
2008 2007 2008 2007
“EENE —ETLFE ZBENE ZITTLHF
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FTER FHET FTER FAET
Cashatbankandonhand $R{TRFEH S 2,414,100 2,234,594 785 1,269
Short-term bank deposits 48 B4R 1T 17 3K 46 27,492 — 27,225
2,414,146 2,262,086 785 28,494
Less: pledged/charged W BHEE S
bank deposits W RITE (271,450) (277,031) = =
Cash and cash equivalents R4 RIREZEY 2,142,696 1,985,055 785 28,494
As at 31st December 2008, the Group’s cash at bank of RZEBEZENF+ZA=+—8 &
approximately HK$87,567,000 (2007: HK$167,979,000) was £ E R 17IR £ 487,567,000/ T ( —
charged by certain banks in respect of the processing of Z T+ 4 167,979,000/ 7T ) B #
mortgage facilities granted by the banks to buyers of the Group’s ATHRTER  UERITEEEH
properties. MASENEERE TIRBEERE -
As at 31st December 2008, the Group’s cash at bank of RZZEENF+ZA=+—8"
approximately HK$108,757,000 (2007: HK$98,473,000) was #9108,757,000 8 T (Z T T L & :
restricted due to pending litigations. 98,473,000/ 7T ) Z RITHRE I AF

SR EA T X B Rl o

The carrying amounts of pledged/charged bank deposits and BEEAHERTERRRE KB
cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following CEBYZEEBELATIER
currencies: 8 :

Group Company
S A
2008 2007 2008 2007

—EEN\E —TTLHF —BBN\F —TTLHF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT TAET TR TAET

Chinese Renminbi N 2,367,541 2,174,223 — —
US dollar E 38,412 37,586 200 27,293
Hong Kong dollar 7B JT 8,193 50,277 585 1,201

2,414,146 2,262,086 785 28,494
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AR B ISR M et

21. Pledged/charged bank deposits and cash ~ 21. B 3K LR T E =

and cash equivalents (continued) RREeERBEEEY »)
The cash and cash equivalents include presale proceeds of HeRREeEEBYEEEERER
HK$475,973,000 (2007: HK$124,463,000), which are used for T6475,973,000 8 L (Z T & £ F :
purchases of construction materials and payments of 124,463,000/ 70 ) * 2 S X BN E
construction fee of the relevant property projects when approval B HTEAE +HEREIE R ER
from local State-Owned Land and Resource Bureau is obtained. AREEEMEINEHEYWEIER
RREER o
22. Land cost payable 22. FE A+ £ B AR
Group
£8
2008 2007
—EENE —EETLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#& T THT
Land premium payable FENM L HES 80,367 221,660
Land compensation payable e L b B 349,502 559,588
429,869 781,248
Less: Amount due within one year W ETARBAEA
included in current liabilities R—FREEZLHE (323,696) (605,289)
106,173 175,959
The carrying values of land cost payable denominated in RMB UARBEITE 2 B LA ARE
approximate their fair values. BEREAFEEE -
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are MR R MY AT

23. Accounts payable 23. B R

ENERZEREDIT(BEEMNT
MERAABRIZME 2R M

The ageing analysis of accounts payable (including amounts due

to related companies of trading nature) is as follows:

T s

Group

-3
2008 2007
—EEN\FE —EETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
0 to 3 months 0E31E A 2,933,721 953,128

As at 31st December 2008, approximately HK$1,434,475,000 RZEZENFEF+Z_A=+—80" &

- BE 3k AR #91,434,475,000 7% T ( —
T T+ 4F . 70,686,000 7T ) B 5
MEREREENARARIETHER
AILEBRRZHBARZER -

(2007: HK$70,686,000) of accounts payable was due to
subsidiaries of minority shareholders of certain subsidiaries of the

Company in respect of property construction fees.

MARBIEZENERKEEER
HRAFEMBE

The carrying values of accounts payable denominated in RMB

approximate their fair values.

24. B &

24. Borrowings

Group Company
-5 A

2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE —ZTTLF ZBENFE —TITLHF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FH&ET FaET FAET

Non-current FE 7 B
Bank borrowings RITEE 7,644,772 5,291,810 — —
Senior notes BrEER 2,663,312 2,674,717 2,663,312 2,674,717
Convertible bonds MR ES 2,022,127 1,752,471 2,022,127 1,752,471
12,330,211 9,718,998 4,685,439 4,427,188

Current e

Bank borrowings |ITEE 4,262,798 2,898,895 — —
Total borrowings wmEs 16,593,009 12,617,893 4,685,439 4,427,188
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24. Borrowings (continued)

In November 2005, the Company issued 8.125% senior notes
with an aggregate nominal value of US$350,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$2,730,000,000), for a total consideration
of approximately HK$2,733,182,000. The senior notes mature in
seven years (November 2012) and are repayable at their nominal
value of US$350,000,000. The Company will be entitled at its
option to redeem all or a portion of the senior notes on or after
9th November 2009 at the redemption prices specified in the
offering circular, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the
redemption date.

The senior notes recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

sre B ERR MR

24. B E (&)

RZTETRF+—A RARFET
%A T {8 % 350,000,000 3% Jt (4 48 &
#2,730,000,000 & 7T ) Z.8.125 [E &
KRB - BREXNR2733,182,000
BT - BAEZEBRELFRIMA(Z
T-—ZF+—H) WEEEBRE
% 7 T {8350,000,000% 7T © AR A
BEEEER _ZTTAFT+—AAL
Bl AR EMmKFTETAZEE

BEB(NEZERBHEMN KRG ZF
B)ERZ2PHINDELRE -

REEBBRTERZELZET
g

2008 2007
—EENE —EELF

HK$'000 HK$°000

FTRERT TR

Carrying amount at 1st January R—HA—HZEEE 2,674,717 2,651,550
Amortisation of premium i {8 8 (497) (479)
Amortisation of issue costs LT AR 2N 5N 10,494 9,354
Exchange difference V& 5 =58 (21,402) 14,292
Carrying amount at 31st December Rt+-_A=+—HBZEEE 2,663,312 2,674,717

As at 31st December 2008, the senior notes are jointly and
severally guaranteed by certain subsidiaries and are secured by
the capital stock of the subsidiaries. The net assets of these
subsidiaries were approximately HK$934,654,000 (2007:
HK$523,272,000) as at 31st December 2008.

XA

R-ZBEENFE+_A=+—80 &
ZEHRETHBAAER KM@
AIREER  WIUAMB QAR ZBRA
EEB N =ZTEZENF+=ZA=+
—B ZEWNBRARZEEFEYDN
£934,654,000F L (Z T F £ F :
523,272,000/ 7T ) °

|H=||I
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Borrowings (continued)

On 2nd February 2007, the Company completed the issue of
RMB1,830,400,000 aggregate principal amount of USD settled
Zero Coupon Convertible Bonds. The bonds mature in three
years (February 2010) from the issue date at 104.59% of the
nominal value or can be converted into ordinary shares of the
Company on or after 14th March 2007 at a conversion price of
HK$30.08 per share at a fixed exchange rate of RMB0.9958 to
HK$1.

The fair value of the liability component was calculated using a
market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond at
the time of issue, and is recorded as non-current borrowings on
the amortised cost basis, until extinguished on conversion or
maturity of the bonds. The residual amount, representing the
value of the equity conversion option, is included in shareholders’
equity (Note 27).

The convertible bonds recognised in the balance sheet are as

24.

:l:t'f“t 7 e S
B E (&)
R—ZZBEELE AR XA
AlEKBETUELEEZTEA

BRESF A2BEEHEARK
1,830,400,0007T ° 2 EEH B %17
BHEGT=F(ZZE—ZF=A1)
%L EME Z210459% 5 8 - st A
RZZEZLF=A+HEARKZEER
5 1% 30.08 % 7T 2 ¥ AR (B 8 ¥ Bk AN
AAIEER EECEEERARE
0.9958 7T % 18 T °

BEMPDZRAFENRBELUNETR
BAEHF R BEITRR 2 ™5 R
B URBHEKAEEARI A
RBEE BEEZXFEFEEBRS
AL HRBE(AEEERE L
B1E) st ABCR#ERS (MIEE27) °

REERBRTHERNABRKRES

follows: M
Net proceeds from of convertible bonds issued R-EBEEL+F A _HEITZ
on 2nd February 2007 EJ MR E S 2 1S RIBF 5 1,790,801
Equity component (Note 27) #E a #B D (MH5E27) (227,734)
Liability component on initial recognition R-ZZEZ+F - B - BYRBERE
on 2nd February 2007 ZBEXHm 1,563,067
Interest expense (Note 31) BRI (MFFE31) 104,390
Exchange difference fEHE5 85,014
Liability component at 31st December 2007 R-ZEZEELHF+-_A=+—H
Z B EEH 1,752,471
Interest expense (Note 31) AMEFRLZ (KsE31) 129,317
Exchange difference PE H =5 140,339
Liability component at 31st December 2008 R-_EBEENEFE+-_A=+—H
Z B E#HM 2,022,127




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR E MR MYt

24. Borrowings (Continued) 24. 188 (w)
The maturity analysis of the borrowings is as follows: EEZHBHATMT

Bank borrowings Senior notes Convertible bonds Total
RITEE BrEE TRRES @5t
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

SBEN\E “TTHF ZBEN\F _TTLH ZBENFf _TTLF ZBR\F _—TTLF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

FEx THET TEx B THET AT TARL THET
Within one year —FR 4,262,798 2,398,895 — — — — 4,262,798 2,898,895
Betweenoneand  —FEFMER
two years 5,016,827 3,589,885 — — 2,022,127 — 7,038,954 3,589,885
Betweentwoand ~ WEERFR
five years 2,299,106 1,546,136 2,663,312 2,674,717 — 1,752,471 4,962,418 5,973,324
Wholly repayable TEREH
within five years EBE 11,578,731 8,034,916 2,663,312 2,674,717 2,022,127 1,752,471 16,264,170 12,462,104
Over five years HBiBhE 328,839 155,789 — — — — 328,839 155,789

11,907,570 8,190,705 2,663,312 2,674,717 2,022,127 1,752,471 16,593,009 12,617,893

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the BEREHEATIEBREM RHE
following currencies with the respective effective interest rates: EEZEBRNENT :

2008 2007
—E2EN\E —ETTLF
Effective Effective
HK$’000 interest rate HK$'000 interest rate
FET i P FET B F =
Chinese Renminbi AR
— Bank borrowings —iRITEE 11,907,570 7.5% 8,190,705 6.9%
— Convertible bonds — AR ES 2,022,127 7.0% 1,752,471 7.0%
US dollar ETT
— Senior notes — EBEEE 2,663,312 8.6% 2,674,717 8.6%

16,593,009 12,617,893
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24. Borrowings (Continued) 24. (B & (%&)

EEZEREERAFENT

The carrying amounts and the fair values of the borrowings are
as follows:

Carrying amounts Fair values
FRE AFE

2008 2007 2008 2007
—ERENE —_TTLF ZBBNE —_ZETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET TER FET
Bank borrowings RITEE 11,907,570 8,190,705 11,953,022 8,170,308
Senior notes BEZEE 2,663,312 2,674,717 1,132,469 2,723,615
Convertible bonds AR & 5 2,022,127 1,752,471 1,103,773 1,750,063
16,593,009 12,617,893 14,189,264 12,643,986

The fair values of bank borrowings are based on cash flows
discounted using rates based on the Group’s average borrowings
rate of 6.3% to 8.3% (2007: 6.6% to 7.6%), depending on the
currency denomination of the borrowings. The fair values of

RITEENRFEDBREREETF
HEBFNERIEE83IE(ZTZT
F . 66EETOE)EF ZHE(R
TEHEEEKRBE)GFTECHERS

senior notes and convertible bonds are based on the current bid MEF - BAERERAIBRBRESRZ
prices in the market. AFEDREMS 2BREAEE
E o

As at 31st December 2008, the Group’s banking facilities were
secured by:

(i) the Group’s land costs of approximately HK$5,783,817,000
(2007: HK$1,846,895,000);

(i) the Group's hotel properties of approximately
HK$318,662,000 (2007: HK$161,291,000);

(i) the Group’s investment properties with an aggregate
carrying amount of approximately HK$1,163,875,000
(2007: HK$1,111,178,000);

(iv) the Group’'s properties under development for
sale of approximately HK$1,368,974,000 (2007:

HK$1,014,035,000); and

(v)  the Group’s completed properties for sale of approximately
HK$1,511,804,000 (2007: HK$229,259,000).

190 Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

R-BENF+T-_H=+—H &
SEZRITEETDATIER ME
* :

(i) #95,783,817,000/8 L ( = T F
+ 4 . 1,846,895,000% T ) 2
7N £ B 4 b AR AN

#9318,662,000/ 8 L (—EZ +
£ 1 161,291,000/ 7T ) 2 AN &
B85

(ii)

48 BE T 1 49 1,163,875,000 7% 7T
—ZE A F 1 1,111,178,000
BIL) 2 AEBIREYE

(iii)

#71,368,974000 B L (=T &
+ & : 1,014,035,000% 7T ) Z
AREEBEAHEEZER+T Y
ES 53

(iv)

491,511,804,000 % T ( — & &
+ % 1 229,259,000 7T ) Z AN
SEUHREEZEEXRDE -

(v)
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25. Deferred income tax and current tax 25. IRt FT 15 % K AN B B 18
liabilities =R

(a) EIEFTSH

(a) Deferred income tax

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset

BERERBEEERABRAER
HRBEERBBEAAEEN
ERBHDEEMESHR SR —
HISHET - Al BRI -
HHESBHEIWMT :

when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income taxes relate to the same tax authority. The

offset amounts are as follows:

Group
-
2008 2007
—EEN\E —EELF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T TH& T
Deferred tax assets: EEFTEE E -
— Deferred tax assets —#R+ =@ ABKE
to be recovered after more ZEERIBEE
than twelve months 151,095 101,218
— Deferred tax assets —#Rt+=ZEARKE
to be recovered within ZIEERIBE E
twelve months 22,283 6,660
173,378 107,878
Deferred tax liabilities: EEFHEEEF
— Deferred tax liabilities — Rt @A BER
to be realised after more than ZREERIBEE
twelve months (3,570,416) (3,461,260)
— Deferred tax liabilities — ¥R+t EARER
to be realised within ZEERIEEE
twelve months (319,686) (406,427)
(3,890,102) (3,867,687)
(3,716,724) (3,759,809)
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25. Deferred income tax and current tax 25. EEFT S8 Kk ARNHI 18
liabilities (continued) =R4¢ )
(a) Deferred income tax (Continued) (a) ELEMBH (&)
The net movements on deferred taxation are as follows: FEREFRIEFEESHMT
Group
-3
2008 2007
—SBNE —TTtH
HK$'000 HK$'000
T# T T T
Assets/(liabilities) BE/(AHF)
Beginning of the year F 4 (3,759,809) (560,939)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 40) U B8 Fff /& & =) (Bf 5£40) (91,249) (3,530,767)
Recognised in the income statement A 18 7% R ER 183,798 259,653
Credited directly to equity (Note 27) B £ 1& infE =5 (K 3E27) 225,992 183,026
Exchange difference E W =% (275,456) (110,782)
End of the year FR (3,716,724) (3,759,809)

The movements in deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities, without taking into consideration the offsetting
of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

EERBEEERRELEHBRAR
228 (& E E R REE
BAEREHE) MT :

EEHRBEE

Revaluation surplus

B AR

2008 2007

—EENE —ETLF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FTER FAT
Beginning of the year F 4] (3,867,687) (603,296)
Recognised in the income statement i8R FER 128,756 197,983
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 40) U B8 [} /& 2 =) (B 5£40) (91,249) (3,530,767)
Credited directly to equity (Note 27) B #1 mniEzs (M X27) 225,992 183,026
Exchange difference PE 5 =28 (285,914) (114,633)
End of the year F IR (3.890,102) (3,867,687)
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25. Deferred income tax and current tax 25. EEFT S8 Kk ANHI 18
liabilities (continued) 88w
(a) Deferred income tax (Continued) (a) IEELEFAEH (&)
Deferred tax assets EEMEEE
Tax losses
BREER

2008 2007

—EENE ZTTLF

HK$°000 HK$'000

TER FAT

Beginning of the year F ) 107,878 42,357

Recognised in the income statement A 18z R R 55,042 61,670

Exchange difference EH =% 10,458 3,851

End of the year F 4R 173,378 107,878
Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carried IRFE B IE & B Ty A FE AR B A
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related A &3 7] 335 38 oK 2R FE AR B & A1
tax benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. WM BLET 48 2 BiIE B 18 1E i
As at 31st December 2008, the Group did not recognise R-RZBEENF+ A=+
deferred tax assets of approximately HK$115,559,000 —HB AEBYEFRIBEIRE
(2007: HK$66,301,000) in respect of tax losses amounting #9574,302,000 T (Z T ZT +
to approximately HK$574,302,000 (2007: £ 1 348,138,000 JT ) FE R IE
HK$348,318,000) which are expiring from 2009 through FE i T8 & B 49115,559,000 % 7T
2013. (ZZEZ L5 ! 66,301,000 %

) HEBBEBBEBR-F
ZNFE_ZT-=FREW -

Deferred tax liabilities of HK$545,015,000 have not been AEEBERERSE THEBERAMN
recognised for the withholding tax that would be payable ROE B & F M E S a) T8 40
on the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries. Such MABMRBEEREAERA
amounts are expected to be reinvested. 545,015,000% 7T ° 2 EKIATE

HEBIEBRE -
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25. Deferred income tax and current tax
liabilities (continued)

(b) Current tax liabilities

25. IR FE FT 15 % & AN B B 18
88w
(b) AEFEERE

Group Company
- A Al
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE _TITLF ZBENFE _TITLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T & T FAT T# T FH& T
Hong Kong profittax — fEft,/ (A] Y [@)
payable/(recoverable) EBRERE 13,507 (3,657) — —
Mainland China corporateff& {5 # B A [
income tax payable EEMEH 1,349,607 931,105 13,930 7,904
Mainland China land ~ f& < i B oA B
appreciation tax T b I E R
payable 2,799,116 1,587,800 — —
4,162,230 2,515,248 13,930 7,904
26. Share capital 26. 7 A
Number of Ordinary
shares shares
k&5 EE ZBER
‘000 HK$'000
T & FA T
At 1st January 2007 R_ZEZLF—H—H 1,285,100 128,510
Issue of shares BITRG
— Share consideration — BHKRE 182,232 18,223
— Employee share options scheme — EEBIRETE 5,036 504
At 31st December 2007 and R-_EBEZEL+F+ A
31st December 2008 =+—BK
—EENFE+A
=+—~H 1,472,368 147,237

The total authorised number of ordinary shares is 2,000,000,000
shares (2007: 2,000,000,000 shares), with a par value of HK$0.1
per share (2007: HK$0.1 per share). All issued shares are fully
paid.

In August 2007, the Company issued 182,232,346 shares at
HK$21.95 per share, totalling HK$4,000 million as part of the
consideration for the acquisition of 80% interest in Believe Best
Investments Limited.
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26. Share capital (continued)

Share options

The Company has an employee share options scheme, under
which it may grant options to employees (including executive
directors of the Company) to subscribe for shares in the
Company, subject to a limit that the total number of shares
which may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the share options schemes
of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the shares in issue
from time to time. The exercise price will be determined by the
Company’s board of directors and shall at least be the highest of
(i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant
of the options, (ii) the average closing price of the Company’s
shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the date
of grant of the options, and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares of HK$0.1 each. This employee share options
scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years up to 2012.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and

sre B R MY o

26. B (&)

B

ARRE—HEEBBBRENE - &
- ARABAREE(BEARQA
HITER)ROEBREARBELAR
A - A RB B RES
EERBERTENERET
NITERBETHRMDAR - T8
BARBNEERHITRMA30% °
TEERBEAARIESEEE &
BEIRTIN=ZFE2&SE  ()F
RARMHNBRERE AR Z RS
B (DN EERBRERH B HA
hEARZAARB RN 2 FHRS
B+ R(i)ARE &M EE (0.1
BTL)  ARBEBREAINER
—E-HFZAFHEBREXR -

RITEBAIRERE & E R MEF

their related weighted average exercise prices are as follows: BT EBE M T
2008 2007
—E2ENEF —ETTLHF

Average Average

exercise exercise

price in HK$ price in HK$
per share Options per share Options

SRFH BRFH
TEE i IR RE TEE =g
HK$ 000 HK$ ‘000
BT T T
At 1st January w—HA—H 21.24 8,964 7.0 5,036
Granted 2% — — 20.75 7,964
— — 25.2 1,000
Exercised 21718 — — 6.2 (3,000)
— — 8.2 (2,036)
Lapsed B R 21.24 (8,964) — —
At 31st December Wt+=-—A=+—H — 21.24 8,964
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26. Share capital (continued) 26.

Share options (Continued)

There was no share option granted and exercised during the
year. 8,964,000 share options were lapsed upon the resignation
of two directors during the year.

As at 31st December 2008, no outstanding share options were
exercisable (2007: 7,964,000).

Share options outstanding have the following expiry dates and

exercise prices:

NG

BREE)

REAFR  AEERERE RTE
E {o] BE PR KE © 8,964,000 17 B IR AE A
EEE i 3

R-ZEENE+_A=+—8 " #
EOITEMATEZERE(ZS
T 4F 1 7,964,000 ) °

WARTEBREZZHARITEE
m

Exercise
price in HK$
per share 2008 2007
BRTEE
(#&T) —Z2EBN\F —EELF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET
18th January 2012 —_E——F#—H+/\H 20.75 — 7,964
24th October 2012 —E2——_F+A=-+HEH 25.2 — 1,000
— 8,964

Options exercised during the year ended 31st December 2007
resulted in 5,036,000 shares being issued at HK$6.2 and HK$8.2
respectively. The related weighted average share price at the time
of exercise were HK$19.4, HK$23.2 and HK$25.6 respectively
per share. The related transaction costs amounting to HK$20,000
have been netted off with the proceeds received.
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Reserves 27. f# 1@
Group
&8
Asset Convertible  Currency
Share  Statutory revaluation bonds translation  Retained
premium  reserves (i) reserve reserve  difference  earnings Total
BEEfR gk EYBER
REEE EEREI) wmE EERE 28 REEA Eh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR T T TER T T
Balance at 1st January 2007 “TTr5-A-H
iR 2,648,048 161,117 = = 280,574 4,619,416 7,709,155
Issue of convertible bonds BB RES — — — 227,734 — — 227,734
Currency translation differences & ¥ [E i = 58 — — — — 696,153 — 696,153
Profit for the year ilﬁ}ﬁ‘éﬂ = — — — — 3517312 3517312
Dividend relating to 2006 E }3" ZEEREZRE = = = = —  (348669)  (348,669)
Dividend relating to 2007 “TTLEZRE = = = = —  (145,764)  (145,764)
Employee share options scheme {E ,E Bk 2l
— Value of services provided — EER%KER 43,401 = = = = = 43,401
Issue of shares EakH
— Share consideration —BRARE
(Note 26) (Ht&£26) 3,981,777 - - - - — 3981777
— Employee share options — EEBRETE
scheme 34,791 — — — — — 34,791
Share issue expenses BRHETRE (20) = = = = = (20)
Fair value gain on AHHERBEE
available-for-sale ZATERE
financial asset (Note 18) (MzE18) — — 151,965 — — — 151,965
Acquisition of a subsidiary, Yk —EHE AR
net of tax (ii) (B FE) (i) — — 2,180,096 — — — 2,180,096
Realised upon disposal of HERELE
properties held for sale (i 2 B B B (i) — —  (513811) — — —  (513811)
Deferred tax (Note 25) BRI (Fiz25) - — 183026 - - — 183,026
Balance at 31st December 2007 —TELE
+-A=+-H
R 6,707,997 161,117 2,001,276 227,734 976,727 7,642,295 17,717,146
Representing: K&
2007 final dividend “ITLERBRE 471,158
Others H 7,171,137
7,642,295
Analysed by: AT
Company and subsidiaries ZK’AEJ&M@E’REJ 7,561,134
Jointly controlled entity mEHEE 83,648
Associates 5#‘ ’.% NG (2,487)
7,642,295
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27. Reserves (continued) 27. %1 (%)

Group
£8
Asset Convertible  Currency
Share  Statutory revaluation bonds translation  Retained

premium  reserves (i) reserve reserve differences  earnings Total
BEEEf TR E®

ko EEREG) i BERE EXEE RERT At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TETL TAT TET TETL TAT TET TRT

Balance at 1st January 2008 R-ZTNF
—R—RAz&H 6,707,997 161,117 2,001,276 227,734 976,727 7,642,295 17,717,146

Currency translation differences & [ ¥ £ % — — — — 1,301,405 — 1,301,405
Profit for the year FERM — — — - — 1963724 1,963,724
Dividend relating to 2007 BR-ZZLF2ZKE = = = — —  (471,158)  (471,158)
Dividend relating to 2008 BR-ZENEFZRE = = = = —  (140,022)  (140,022)
Employee share options scheme (& 8 B ik i =1 2
— Value of services provided ~ — [EE RF B(E 3,004 — — — — — 3,004
Share options lapsed BAM BRE (46,405) — — - — 46,405 =
Fair value loss on TREENBEEL
available-for-sale ATEYE
financial asset (Note 18) (MzE18) = — (20,513) — — — (20,513)
Realised upon disposal of HERBELENER
properties held for sale (ii) 3 (ii) — — (546,921) — — — (546,921)
Deferred tax (Note 25) EIERIE (Kt 25) - — 225,992 - — — 225992
Balance at 31st December 2008 X =TT\ F
+=B=1+-FH
2ER 6,664,596 161,117 1,659,834 227,734 2,278,132 9,041,244 20,032,657
Representing: RE:
2008 final dividend proposed ~ #E =T ENE R
858 154,599
Others Hih 8,886,645
9,041,244
Analysed by: DI
Company and subsidiaries AR RHB AR 8,961,826
Jointly controlled entity HRRGER 81,938
Associates PN (2,520)
9,041,244
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27. Reserves (continued)

27. % w)

Company
AH
Convertible Currency
Share bonds translation Retained
premium reserve difference earnings Total
CIE:) &%
BRpEE BEHFERE EXZE RKRERF @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
Balance at 1st January 2007 RZEZTLF
—B—HB &% 2,648,048 — (45,570) 388,626 2,991,104
Profit for the year FEH A — — — 580,813 580,813
Currency translation difference & ¥ [E i =58 — — (54,467) — (54,467)
Issue of convertible bonds o B ES — 227,734 — — 227,734
Issue of shares BEIRMA
— Share consideration — ROKE
(Note 26) (Fft5£26) 3,981,777 — — — 3,981,777
— Employee share options — EEEREE
scheme 34,791 — — — 34,791
Share issue expenses MR E1TR X (20) — — — (20)
Employee share options scheme 1&g & 8 % # =t 2|
— Value of service provided — RERBEE 43,401 — — — 43,401
Payment of dividends RN ) — = —  (494,433)  (494,433)
Balance at 31st December 2007 R -T =+ F
+=ZA=+—8
2R 6,707,997 227,734 (100,037) 475,006 7,310,700
Representing: RE :
2007 final dividend —ETLF
RERL B 471,158
Others Hitb 3,848
475,006
Balance at 1st January 2008 RZZEZENF
—A—Bz#&#H 6,707,997 227,734  (100,037) 475,006 7,310,700
Profit for the year F 5 5 7 — — — 368,141 368,141
Currency translation difference & H[E H =48 — — 879,244 — 879,244
Employee share options scheme (& & f& i% i 51 &1
— Value of services provided — EERBEE 3,004 — — — 3,004
Share options lapsed B K B (46,405) — — 46,405 —
Payment of dividends FEN s — — — (611,180)  (611,180)
Balance at 31st December 2008 7 — T = )\ 4F
+=-A=+—8
> 6,664,596 227,734 779,207 278,372 7,949,909
Representing: R -
2008 final dividend proposed BE-ZTZTN\F
RS 154,599
Others Hih 123,773
278,372
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27. Reserves (continued)

Note:

(i)

(ii)

As stipulated by regulations in Mainland China, the Company’s
subsidiaries established and operated in Mainland China are
required to appropriate a portion of their after-tax profit (after
offsetting prior year losses) to the statutory reserves and
enterprise expansion fund, at rates determined by their
respective boards of directors. The statutory reserves can be
utilised to offset prior year losses or be utilised for the issuance
of bonus shares, whilst the enterprise expansion fund can be
utilised for the development of business operations.

Upon completion of the acquisition of GNCDCL as described
in Note 15, GZQREL became a subsidiary of the Group and the
fair value gain in respect of the 69.5% interest in GZQREL
previously held by the Group of approximately
HK$2,180,096,000 net of tax has been accounted for as an
asset revaluation reserve directly in equity on acquisition. Upon
subsequent delivery of the properties developed by GZQREL,
which represents partial disposal of the business of GZQREL,
the related portion of the asset revaluation reserve is released
to the income statement.

28. Other gains, net

7. ®#E )

M i

0)

(i)

7D

EE”EP I RBEERETHA AR
S B R PER L I 8 & 2 Y
BARARERBR KRN (KE
HABTFERBIBR) AL — &
MELERBREERRES
HKEDHZBEZTSETE ° &
EREUREFREBAEFER
B AEBETAR  mhxE
REZATTAEERER -

4
9”>

Rk E T AT (WA
15SFTal) 1% - BERABEAEEZ
MEBAR  MAEBERNFHS
2 BEB69.5% i 2 N FE W =
492,180,096,000 7% 7t ( & 1B &t
H)EERINBEEMGERE -
EEEBERXNHHBRARZEED
MER(BELHEBE 2 2BMH %
%) BEEHHEZEBAID
15 A Uk 25 BR

28. Hftt Wz - FER

Excess of acquirer’s interest over Wi AN =R
cost of acquisition (i) U B8 P AN 2 FRIE ) 193,489 1,052,965
Fair value gains on investment properties % & ¥ % 2 2~ B W 25 34,076 386,732
Government grants (ii) BT B Gi) 79,898 43,750
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial EATFEBERAERIEKZ
assets at fair value through profit or loss  Bf % & & 2 A (&
(E18) W= (7,992) 10,270
299,471 1,493,717
Notes: Bt aE
() Amount in 2007 included the excess of the Group’s interest at () ZZEZLtFHNEERELRS
fair value over cost of acquisition of GNCDCL and the EEFZAEIBAAZAF
additional 30% interest in GZQREL of approximately BiftEgas H WEKKZ I
HK$847,726,000 (see Note 15). f K 15 &P % IP30%HE & 0 4
847,726,000 T (£ R MIFE15) °

(ii)
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This represents grants received from government bureaus in
Mainland China.

(ii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B MR M T

29. Expenses by nature 29. EMBEE D 2HX
Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and marketing costs HYBEEERA - HELTIEH
and general and administrative expenses are analysed as follows: BRA  UAR—METEER 5

T
2008 2007
—Z2ENE —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Advertising costs EEHEX 268,757 191,386
Amortisation of land costs (Note 6) TR AN EE (P EE6) 8,110 4,240
Auditor's remuneration 1% EAD B & 5,000 4,980
Cost of completed properties sold & B R E 2 A 5,533,692 6,424,467
Depreciation of properties and MERFZETE
equipment 85,382 43,841
Direct operating expenses arising NTHANKEMEEEZ
from investment properties that HELERAX
— generated rental income — ELEHESWKA 2,277 2,369
— did not generate rental income — TEELEHSKRA 3,949 3,098
Employees’ benefits costs (including BERAMKA (BRES
Directors’ emoluments) (Note 30) <) (FfsE30) 448,888 381,361
Loss on disposal of properties and HEMEMREEIE
equipment 19,913 3,283
Net exchange gain (included in general  [& 3, W %5 %58 (st A — M &
and administrative expenses) THRER) (272,264) (162,760)
Operating lease rental in respect of MEZKEHERS
premises 31,426 22,690
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR I

30. EERAAN (BREES
B <)

30. Employees’ benefits costs (including
Directors’ emoluments)

Salaries and allowances e ROERL 330,426 229,880
Sales commission and bonus HERE RIEAD 59,996 73,327
Share-based payments (Share options AR 1D B ELHE 2 (B
granted) (BB ZERAE) 3,004 43,401
Pension costs RIKE KA
— Defined contribution plans — REHRETE 55,362 34,753
— Provision for long-service payment — RHRG S #E 100 —
448,888 381,361

(a) Pensions — defined contribution plans

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to
join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF
Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme managed by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF scheme, each of the
Group (the employer) and its employees make monthly
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund
legislation. The monthly contributions of each of the
employer and employees are subject to a cap of HK$1,000
and thereafter contributions are voluntary.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in mainland China,
the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans
for its employees in mainland China. The Group’s
employees make monthly contributions to the plans at
approximately 8% of the relevant income (comprising
salaries, allowances and bonus), while the Group
contributes 12% to 22% of such income and has no
further obligations for the actual payment of pensions
beyond the contributions. The state-sponsored retirement
plans are responsible for the entire pension obligations
payable to the retired employees.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B MR M T

30. Employees’ benefits costs (including 0. EERAA AR (BIFEES
Directors’ emoluments) (continued) <€) &)
(a) Pensions — defined contribution plans (Continued) (@) BhEe — RAEH—KRE
(%)
During the year ended 31st December 2008, the aggregate HE_ZZNF+=_A=1+—
amount of the employer contributions made by the Group HIEFEHE  AEEELZ
amounted to approximately HK$55,362,000 (2007: & == 4t 3% 42 58 i 455,362,000
HK$34,753,000). BT (ZZEZ A : 34,753,000
BT e
(b) Directors’ emoluments (b) EEM<
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31st BHE—_EZENE+=-_A=+—
December 2008 is set out below: BIEFE SEF2HaE7
W

Employer's
contribution to
Salaries and Share-based pension

Name of Director allowance payments scheme Total

WRBE RIMEAE
£514 BE  BEREE BRI HE2GK a3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000

Ti7 3 Ti7 T

Executive directors HTES

Mr. Au Wai Kin BEREE - 20 — 12 252
Mr. Chen Chang Ying BERALE — 6,706 - 52 6,758
Mr. Chu Mang Yee KEREE — — — — —
Mr. Wu Jiesi (i) REBEEND - 1,271 - 1 1,272
Mr. Xiang Bin B OmEE - 2,000 - 12 2,012
Ms. Xiao Yan Xia (i EREL () — 178 — 13 191
Mr. Xue Hu B Rk - 1,294 - 48 1,382
Mr. Zhao Hai (i) B OE% i) - 5,000 3,004 - 8,004
Ms.Zhao Mingfeng () ~ #H & & 1 (iv) - 2,392 — 12 2,404

- 19,081 3,004 150 22,235

Non-executive director  FE{TEE
Mr, Shafran Steven (ii) % B 5% A (i) — - — = =

Independent BUFHTES

non-executive directors
Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David ~ ZEE 4% 4 240 — _ _ 240
Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oilver & 7 & % & 240 = = - 240
Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Phillp Bt i % & 240 = — — 240

720 = = = 720
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R e EES

30. Employees’ benefits costs (including 30. EETR %UBZZIK (BiEES
Directors’ emoluments) (continued) &) 4
(b) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (b) EEZWME (#&)
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31st BE_EEt+E+-_A=1+—
December 2007 is set out below: BIEFE SE=2HeE7)
W

Employer's
Salaries and Share-based  contribution to
Name of Director Fees allowance payments  pension scheme Total

WBAA EXHEKE

EEfh #E  HEREM  ERZEN  FEEX @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TER TR TR

Executive directors HTEES

Mr. Au Wai Kin BERLE — 240 — 12 252
Mr. Chen Chang Ying RREBLE - 1,504 - 36 1,540
Mr. Chu Mang Yee REKEE — = = = —
Mr. Tam Lai Ling BEELE - 4,619 - 11 4,630
Mr. Wu Jiesi () REDELE®D = 9,866 43,000 12 52,878
Mr. Xiang Bin B OWEE - 2,000 - 12 2,012
Ms. Xiao Yan Xia (i) BARE T L) — 1,158 — 56 1214
Mr. Xue Hu B OREE = 876 = 1Y) 918
Mr. Zhao Hai (i) i It (1) — 979 401 — 1,380

— 21,242 43,401 181 64,824

Non-executive director ~ JFE{TE S
Mr, Shafran Steven (ii) % B 5% A (i) — = - - -

Independent BUFHTES
non-executive directors
Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David 2B % & 160 — - - 160
Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Qilver & &% 5 & 160 - - - 160
Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Philp Bt 125 & 160 - - - 160
480 — — — 480
Note: B EE -
() Mr. Wu Jiesi resigned on 17th January 2008. () BREEBEEENR_ZTZTNF
—B++tHEHE -
(i) Ms. Xiao Yan Xia and Mr. Shafran Steven resigned on (i) FHELTHBEREEE
19th May 2008. R=ZZZENFREA+ANE
BT ©
(iiiy  Mr. Zhao Hai resigned on 31st December 2008. iy WHEEERZ-ZZEZTNEFE+
Z A=+ —HEHf
(iv)  Ms. Zhao Mingfeng was appointed on 19th May 2008. (v HBAZZTHRZZTZTNF
FA+HLBEZRE-
During the year, Mr. Chu Mang Yee waived emoluments of RAFEAN - KA KT ENE
HK$240,000 (2007: HK$240,000). 240,000 T2 (ZFTZT £

£ : 240,000 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR E MR MYt

30. EERAMUA (BEES

30. Employees’ benefits costs (including

Directors’ emoluments) (continued) <€) &)
(c) Five highest paid individuals (0 BERBREHFAL

AEREAEERRLERSHAL
BEOE(ZETLF: =48)
B REZHMeE RN XA
22N RBR - B RES
FTEHR-—B(ZZEZLF: =
Z)ERMALzBEMT

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year include four (2007: three) directors
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
above. The emoluments paid and payable to the remaining
one (2007: two) individuals are as follows:

2008 2007

—Z2EN\F —ETLF

HK$'000 HK$’000

FET FET

Salaries and allowances e ROERG 2,272 4,756
Employer's contribution to BEHRARESFTE 2 fHK

pension scheme 12 24

2,284 4,780

The emoluments fell within the following band: BT A TAR -

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 & 7T &

2,500,0007% JT

2008
—BENF

HK$°000
TR

2007
T LF
HK$'000
F& T

BERAREEERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Are BRI A

31. Finance income and costs 31. BF WA R B AR
2008 2007
—Z2EBN\F T F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FAT
Interest expense: FMEAX :
— on bank loans wholly repayable — BARAFREBHEED
within five years RITE N 779,266 449,743
— on bank loans not wholly repayable — ABRRAFANEHEE
within five years RER1TE R 17,653 1,399
— on senior notes wholly repayable — HARAFATBHEED
within five years BELEEE 230,547 232,007
— on convertible bonds wholly — ARAFREBHEEN
repayable within five years ] i E 5 129,317 104,390
Total borrowing costs incurred Fr o R 2 1B 18 B Bk AR 1,156,783 787,539
Less: Amount capitalised as part of the &l : B RIFEEPWEZ
cost of properties under development A B A 2 RIA (930,018) (650,623)
226,765 136,916
Interest income from bank RITH B A (12,376) (50,394)
Net finance costs F B K AR 214,389 86,522
The average interest rate of borrowing costs capitalised for the REZE-_ZEZNF+_A=+—H
year ended 31st December 2008 was approximately 7.4% (2007: IFFE  BEEANEERKAHF
7.2%) per annum. HENMEL RBTA%( ZBEE A F -
72%) °
32. Taxation 32. MIE
(@) Hong Kong profits tax (a) BEERNEH
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of EEMNEBRIIBRBE_ZEZE)N
16.5% (2007: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profit F+-_A=+—H 2zt ER
for the year ended 31st December 2008. BmMIE165% (Z T+ -

17.5% ) By 7 R $ 4 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR I

32. Taxation (continued)

(b) Other income tax

(0

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until
March 2016. Subsidiaries in the British Virgin Islands are
incorporated under the International Business Companies
Acts of the British Virgin Islands and, accordingly, are

exempted from the British Virgin Islands income taxes.

Subsidiaries established and operated in Mainland China
are subject to Mainland China corporate income tax at the
rate of 25% (2007: 33%) for the year ended 31st
December 2008.

Mainland China land appreciation tax

Mainland China land appreciation tax is levied at
progressive rate ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of
properties less deductible expenditures including costs of
land and development and construction expenditures.

32. BiIE

(b)

(9]

M

' E

HFris st

RATERLBANBRERR
BEE-ZE—R"E=ZR-ERE
BRAEBESRINKE AR IIR
BRBERXBESEEBEAR
AR - Ml - BE SRR
BRELBESREHR -

BE-_ZTZT ) /\F+=-A=+—
BIEFE © A28 R B ARE
B L % A H) Y B R B4R 25%
(ZZT L F :33%) 2FH X
BRPBEABEDERBSH -

HE K BE i IR E R

AR B K B - i 3% B A Bt T b 3
B BEEREMEMRSKEN
BRAHRIER (BiE L HERE
X RBEEKRAN)  BRBRER
R 30% £ 60% HU o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

sre SRR MR

32. Taxation (continued)

32. BiIE (&)

2008 2007
—EENEF —EELF

HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT TAET

Taxation consists of: HIEBIE
Current tax 7N BA 77 18
Hong Kong profits tax BFENER 18,852 (805)
Mainland China corporate FRAREMEMBR
income tax 915,016 1,128,092
Mainland China land AR K BE i S E A
appreciation tax 1,162,742 761,611
2,096,610 1,888,898
Deferred tax i RE F 18
Mainland China corporate PEAFEMEMGH
income tax (119,871) (77,110)
Mainland China land R K P £ i 1 (E AR
appreciation tax (63,927) (59,270)
Effect of tax rate change MEREH 7 FE — (123,273)
(183,798) (259,653)
1,912,812 1,629,245

Share of the jointly controlled entities’ taxation for the year
ended 31st December 2008 of nil (2007: HK$32,850,000) is
included in the income statement as share of (loss)/profit of and

other gains relating to jointly controlled entities.

On 16th March 2007, the National People’s Congress approved
the Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China
(the “new CIT Law”). The new CIT Law reduces the corporate

income tax rate for domestic enterprises from 33% to 25% with

effect from 1st January 2008. As a result of the new CIT Law, the

carrying value of deferred tax liabilities has been reduced by
HK$123,273,000 for the year ended 31st December 2007.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. Taxation (continued)

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average

tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated companies as

follows:

sre B ERR MR

32. B (&)

AEBZRBAG N ERZRE G A
A D0 HE 15 R 0w N B R At B 2 18
WERAMER  FHEWOT :

2008 2007
ZEEN\F —EELF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Profit before taxation & %4 BT % 3,861,762 5,177,451
Less: Share of profit less loss B DG E R E R T
of associates & 18 33 599
Less: Share of loss/(profit) of and W DR ERERIEEZ
other gains relating to jointly E1E, CaFl) REAM
controlled entities W25 1,710 (101,964)
3,863,505 5,076,086
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates % 7 & B 2 % F @ B B A
applicable to profits in the MEGFEZBIE
respective countries 964,881 1,680,718
Income not subject to tax ZNEE A ON (15,216) (420,237)
Expenses not deductible for tax DRI 2 65,194 1,629
Land appreciation tax deductible for a] 318 {E & 5F E 15
calculation of income tax purposes A& . + b ¥ {E B (274,704) (231,774)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised & Ff i@ 7+ 7k 7 22 %4 18 /&5 18
tax losses (8,477) (17,223)
Deferred tax asset not recognised AAEREZELEFEEE 82,319 37,064
Effect of tax rate change BHExEH oo w8 = (123,273)
813,997 926,904
Land appreciation tax + A E 1,098,815 702,341
1,912,812 1,629,245

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 25% (2007: 33%).

aEA

MEFIIRERF25% (ZTELF -

33%) °

REBARLDA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB HRR M T

e

33. Profit attributable to equity holders of BARARERFTE AEL
the Company il
The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt KRB KEERESA AREMGGH
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of 368,141,000 F L ( —Z T & £ F :
HK$368,141,000 (2007: HK$580,813,000). 580,813,000 /& 7t ) I AN 1~ & B #%
KRR o
34. Earnings per share 34. BIRE R
Basic =N
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit & W E AR ZF TR B AN R B HE S
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted BAEEGMNBRAFANDZBITER
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. %z In#EEHESEE -
Profit attributable to equity holders of KRB RERFE AEGSRF
the Company (HK$'000) (F&T) 1,963,724 3,517,312
Weighted average number of EBTEBRZ INEFHEH
ordinary shares in issue (‘000) (Fi%) 1,472,368 1,384,432
Basic earnings per share (HK$ per share) HRERZAEF| (FIBT) 1.33 2.54
Diluted e
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the SAESREERANE B2 T

weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The
Company has two categories of dilutive potential ordinary
shares: convertible bonds and share options. The convertible
bonds are assumed to have been converted into ordinary shares,
and the net profit is adjusted to eliminate the interest expense
less the tax effect. For the share options, calculation is done to
determine the number of shares that could have been acquired
at fair value (determined as the average daily market share price
of the Company’s shares) based on the monetary value of the
subscription rights attached to outstanding share options. The
number of shares calculated as above is compared with the
number of shares that would have been issued assuming the
exercise of the share options. The convertible bonds and share
options are anti-dilutive for the year ended 31st December 2008.

210 Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

ARz METHEELFE - U
E“%ﬁﬂ%%@ﬁz 3 AR R
HER - ARREMBEEEEN

TR TRRESRBRE -

RATMBRESMS - BRERME A
BfEZE LB E AR - AR &M
A B 32 HR B TS R B N A
E-pEkEmSs  BREFEDR

FrEM M RITEBRE 2 RERE 2
CEEBERFTETERAFE(UR
RRAR 22 ETFAMBERETE)
BAZBRGEE - ALt ETE
ZBRHOEBEBNEBRAEBERER
TEMEETZIRMNDEE ETH
ke BEZZENF+A=+—
HIEFE  aIRRESFRBRED
B RESERE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N R R E I EES

34. Earnings per share (continued) RER =)

Diluted (Continued)

mEE)

Profit attributable to equity holders of

AR BRHERE ARG5S

the Company (HK$'000) (F%&L) 1,963,724 3,517,312
Interest expense on convertible bonds MBRES 2MBERAZ
(net of tax) (HK$'000) (MMBr#imE) (F&T) — 68,587
Profit for calculation of diluted STESREERF Z 5 F
earnings per share (HK$'000) (F%&xT) 1,963,724 3,585,899
Weighted average number of ordinary B 217 & @ A% 2 in#E F 15 &
shares in issue (‘000) (FR%) 1,472,368 1,384,432
Adjustments for FHES K
— shares to be issued on conversion — REB A BRESREE
of convertible bonds (‘000) F 1T 2 B (FA%) — 53,423
— share options (‘000) — BERE(TH) = 830
Weighted average number of ordinary st ESFREE R F < LB
shares for diluted earnings N5 E (FRR)
per share (‘000) 1,472,368 1,438,685
Diluted earnings per share BREERN (BRET)
(HK$ per share) 1.33 2.49
35. Dividends 35. R &2
2008 2007
—Z2ENE —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#& T FA& T
Interim dividend paid of HK$0.0951 B R E TR EER
(2007: HK$0.099) per ordinary share 0.0951 BT (ZEZLF -
0.0997% 7T ) 140,022 145,764
Proposed final dividend of HK$0.105 BIRREBRESREBRRK
(2007: HK$0.32) per ordinary share 01058 T (ZTET £ -
0.327%7T) 154,599 471,158
294,621 616,922
The proposed final dividends have to be approved by BKAABRSBLEBRENRFLERRE

MRz REBEAR LI -
FAEE - RZBEAFTZA=
+-RZMBRAT DRRBLE
AR -

BERAREEERAF

shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
subsequent to the year end. The financial statements as at 31st
December 2008 have not reflected such dividend payable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

sre IR M

36. Notes to the consolidated cash flow SEEESREERMETE
statement
(a) Cash generated from operations (a) BEMBzHEE
Profit before taxation B 5 Bl v A 3,861,762 5,177,451
Adjustments for: R
— Interest income — MEWKA (12,376) (50,394)
— Finance costs — B ECR 226,765 136,916
— Share-based payments — UM AEERZEN
(Share options granted) (EXRLZBAREE) 3,004 43,401
— Share of loss/(profit) of and — DfhERERERE 2
other gains relating to jointly BE CaF) &k
controlled entities ,HJerJJﬂZ/‘_'\ 1,710 (101,964)
— Share of profit less loss — D B D T AR
of associates [ 33 599
— Depreciation of properties — MERRETE
and equipment 85,382 43,841
— Loss on sale of properties and — HEMERZEEBR
equipment 19,913 3,283
— Goodwill impairment — EmERE — 2,039
— Amortisation of land costs — T RK AN 5 8,110 4,240
— Fair value gains on investment — REVELTERS
properties (34,076) (386,732)
— Excess of acquirer’s interest over  — B 7 #E 25 = N UK B
cost of acquisition AR 2 B D (193,489) (1,052,965)
— Fair value loss/(gain) on — EREATEAEBER
financial assets at fair EIJE\EE’\JEM‘%EEE’U
value through profit or loss ANEEEES
(U 25) 7,992 (10,270)
— Net exchange gain — BN W FE (272,264) (162,760)
Changes in working capital (excluding &:&E & & & & (T 8%
the effects of acquisition and WEE RIE R ZBEKRE
exchange differences on REZRE) :
consolidation):
— Land costs — Ak A 864,860 1,530,877
— Properties for sale — A E 2 (4,260,958) 1,016,536
— Accounts receivable — FEURER ?y\ 74,023 (20,809)
— Prepayments, deposits and — BNFRE ERek
other current assets H AR E)J BE (735,651) (3,662,269)
— Accounts payable — EMERR 1,888,472 108,225
— Land cost payables — FEff T AR AR (385,919) (1,605,246)
— Deferred revenue — B A (874,376) (562,554)
— Accruals and other payables — FEETRIE R E M ER
1B 103,730 330,044
— Mainland China business tax — R RBEZEER 7,280 34,199
— Due to a jointly controlled entity — EN—EH£R
=5 E B 2 RIB 491,295 =
Cash generated from operations — REFBZAE 875,222 815,688
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. Notes to the consolidated cash flow
statement (continued)

(b) Major non-cash transactions

(i) During the year ended 31st December 2007, the
Company issued 182,232,346 shares at HK$21.95
per share totalling HK$4,000 million as part of the
consideration for the acquisition of 80% interest in
Believe Best Investments Limited (see also Notes 26
and 41(e)).

(i)  During the year ended 31st December 2007, the
increase in land cost included that of GZQREL
revalued upon completion of acquisition of further
interest in GZQREL amounting to approximately
HK$6,921 million (see also Notes 6, 15 and 27).

37. Financial guarantees

ra R R MO T
36. e HEREXRMETE )

(b) EEFRERF

() BEZZZTLF+=A
=+t—HLEFEARA K
AR A ERR21.95% T 2
8 1% 3% 17182,232,346 I
f&{n & £iE40008 &
BT ERWEREE
% & A R A F80%#E =
ZE KRB (R 26 &
41(e)) °

=+—HLEEER: *+
K AR 2 B ER T
BB B B i —
%5 2= 496,921,000,000 7% 7T
(RBfsE6 ~ 15K%27) °

37. BF IR

Group Company
-3 A F]
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EBENE —ZTTLF ZFBENE —ZZTLHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FET FE T FET
Financial guarantees not R BF # # & o
provided for in the E I B 2 Bt 75
financial statements are ERMOT -
as follows:
Guarantees given to banks &t B8 B AN &£ E ) ¥
for mortgage facilities Z2ETERREH
granted to certain buyers 1% 18 & X M [\
of the Group’s properties  #R1T{EH 2 #&4R 8,737,386 7,792,981 — —
Guarantees given to banks K B A 7 2 R 17
for bank borrowings of BEEmmERTT
subsidiaries fEH 2 ER — — 6,949,835 6,153,147
8,737,386 7,792,981 6,949,835 6,153,147
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38. Pending litigations 38. FIRFFFR
Various Group companies are involved in litigations arising in the AETEBR AT EER £ BED
ordinary course of their businesses. Having reviewed outstanding B RIERFNRA BREBEHMHATHEZ
claims and taking into account legal advice received, the REBEIREEREMGETFTZEERER
Directors are of the opinion that adequate provisions have been % BEERACEUMBEHRRPIELD
made in the financial statements. TR
39. Commitments 39. A& iE
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEREE
Capital expenditures at the balance sheet date but not yet REEBRAEAZEARX
incurred are as follows: M

Group
=
2008 2007
—EENF T LF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#& T THT
Contracted but not provided for B AT 4918 R B &
— Property construction costs — MEFERAN 410,988 519,057
— Acquisition of land and equity — WEE TR B AR
interest in certain Mainland BBz R
China entities % 2 HE A 656,473 1,340,795
— Capital contribution to BJ — RIERRANEZ
Dongfangwenhua (Note 15) EAREE(BEE15) 257,960 246,846
1,325,421 2,106,698
Authorised but not contracted for EFREERTLN
— Land costs — T HIAR AR 78,376 92,679
— Property construction costs — MEFERKAN 695,781 739,490
774,157 832,169
2,099,578 2,938,867
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39. Commitments (continued) 39. 7?(-1}% (%&)
(a) Capital commitments (Continued) (a) BEAXREIE(£&)
The Group’s share of capital commitments of a jointly WARBIEE EX 2 AREBE#L
controlled entity (Note 15), not included in the above, is as — M A = E B H AR
follows: (FFsE15) 20T -

2008 2007
—E2EN\F —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Contracted but not provided for B AT 4B R
— Property construction costs — MERERAN 221,944 319,525
221,944 319,525
Authorised but not contracted for EEREBERTAD
— Land costs — TR — 62,736
— Property construction costs — MEFEERAN 505,998 196,071
505,998 258,807
727,942 578,332
The Company has no capital commitment as at 31st RKABR-_ZEZENFE+ A=
December 2008 (2007: Nil). T HUBEARAEE(ZZT
+F |
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39. Commitments (continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments

The Group has operating lease commitments in respect of
premises under various non-cancellable operating lease
agreements. The future aggregate minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating lease are as
follows:

Amounts payable

39. & (@)

(b)

THHMAEN 2 KA

KERERE

AEERZNHERBEENE L
PR ZHELEHEBEM AL
EHEARE - RESAEHEE
HRBRZEREBRNES W
I

Group

£

2008 2007
—ET L
HK$°000
TET

—EENF
HK$'000
F#

— Within one year — —FRK 40,404 27,113
— Within two to five years — —_ZFZAHFER 116,382 97,237
— After five years — hE®# 9,108 24,278

165,894 148,628

The Company has no operating lease commitment as at
31st December 2008 (2007: Nil).

ARRAR-TENF+-A=
+— B (=
TELEF M)

() Future minimum rental payments receivable () REREREEWHESRE
The Group leased out certain investment properties under AEERBELEHEHMEE T
operating leases. The future minimum rental receivable REMZE - KB TAIEELE
under non-cancellable operating leases is as follows: HEZARZERKBES M
™

Group
£H

2008

—BBNF
HK$'000
FHT

2007
—EELF
HK$'000
FH& T

Within one year —F R 38,271 51,211
In the second to fifth years —ERFR 118,455 151,374
Over five years AFNE 97,268 97,029

253,994 299,614

KRR _EENF+=-A=
+—BUELMRREKES
(ZZEELF:8\E) -

The Company has no future rental receivable as at 31st
Dece